Public Document Pack

Safer Stronger Communities Select
Committee
Agenda
Wednesday, 21 October 2015
7.00 pm, Committee Room 4
Civic Suite

Lewisham Town Hall
London SE6 4RU

For more information contact: Simone van Elk (02083142336)

Part 1

Item Pages
1. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2015 1-12
2. Declarations of interest 13-16
3. Voluntary Sector Accommodation Consultation Update 17 - 136
4. Poverty review - evidence session 137 - 142
5. Development of the comprehensive equalities scheme 143 - 148
6. Select Committee work programme 149 - 170
7. Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet

Members of the public are welcome to attend committee meetings. However, occasionally, committees
may have to consider some business in private. Copies of agendas, minutes and reports are available
on request in Braille, in large print, on audio tape, on computer disk or in other languages.



Safer Stronger Communities Select
Committee
Members

Members of the committee, listed below, are summoned to attend the meeting to be held
on Wednesday, 21 October 2015.

Barry Quirk, Chief Executive
Tuesday, 13 October 2015

Councillor Pauline Morrison (Chair)

Councillor Pat Raven (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Andre Bourne
Councillor Brenda Dacres
Councillor Colin Elliott

Councillor Alicia Kennedy
Councillor David Michael
Councillor Luke Sorba

Councillor Paul Upex

Councillor James-J Walsh
Councillor Alan Hall (ex-Officio)
Councillor Gareth Siddorn (ex-Officio)




Agenda ltem 1

MINUTES OF THE SAFER STRONGER
COMMUNITIES SELECT COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 16 September 2015 at 7.00 pm

PRESENT: Councillors Pauline Morrison (Chair), Pat Raven (Vice-Chair),
Brenda Dacres, Colin Elliott, Alicia Kennedy, David Michael, Luke Sorba, Paul Upex and
James-J Walsh

ALSO PRESENT: Paul Aladenika, David Austin, Councillor Chris Best, Aileen Buckton,
Councillor Janet Daby, James Lee, Petra Der Man, Barrie Neal, Antonio Rizzo, Geeta
Subramaniam-Mooney, Ralph Wilkinson and Simone van Elk

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Andre Bourne

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2015

1.1 There was an amendment to the declarations of interest: Councillor Upex
requested that his interest as a Member of Green Cooperative Development be
changed to a Member of the Greenwich Cooperative Development Agency.

1.2 RESOLVED: that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2015 be agreed
subject to this amendment.

2, Declarations of interest
The following declarations of interest were declared:

Councillor Elliott — non-prejudicial — Council Appointee to the Lewisham Disability
Coalition.

Councillor Upex — non-prejudicial — Member of Voluntary Services Lewisham and
Member of the Greenwich Cooperative Development Agency

Councillor Raven — non-prejudicial — Trustee of the Lewisham Disability Coalition.
Councillor Morrison — non-prejudicial — Director and Chair of the Ackroyd
Community Association and Chair of the Crofton Park Community Library
Management Board.

3. Mayoral Response — VAWG awareness raising and prevention review

3.1 Geeta Subramaniam (Head of Crime Reduction and Supporting People) answered
questions from the Committee. The following key points were noted:

e That the additional resources allocated to proactive enforcement against
gangs nominal from September 2015 onwards, are funded from central
metropolitan police funds which the partnership has bid for, so there are no
direct financial implications to the Council.

e The rolling audit mentioned in the report is part of the work done by the Local
Children’s Safeguarding Board, which also provides training in this area.

Page 1



3.2

41

4.2

The Council provides up-to-date circulars for the child protection leads in each
school, as well as being in contact with the Head Teachers.

RESOLVED: to note the Mayoral response.

Lewisham Future Programme: 2016/17 DRAFT Revenue Budget Savings
Proposals for Scrutiny

David Austin (Head of Corporate Resources) introduced the main savings report;
the following key points were noted:

This report should be seen in the context of the Medium Term Financial
Strategy that was presented at Mayor and Cabinet meeting in July, which
presents the Council’s financial strategy up 2019/20. The Council is working
towards the savings targets set for the Lewisham Future Programme, as
public austerity is expected to continue.

The Comprehensive Spending Review will be announced on 25 November,
with the Local Government Financial Settlement (LGFS) expected to be
announced in early December. It isn’t until the LGFS that Council will know
what budget it can set in February.

It was agreed by Councillors last year that £45m of savings needed to be
identified in setting the budget for 2016/17. The proposals presented amount
to savings of between £25m and £26m, which leaves a gap of about £20m to
fill. Further savings are still being developed, and will be presented to the
Committee when they’re available.

The specific proposals for this committee to examine in detail amount to
roughly £6m over two years, of which roughly £1m is for proposals for the
2015/16 budget and £5.3m are proposals for the 2017/18 budget.

The proposal B2 Supporting People had already been discussed at Healthier
Communities Select Committee and they rejected the proposal.

Appendix 18 contains a summary of the equalities impact of the savings
proposals, which the Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee has
specific remit to look at.

Geeta Subramaniam and James Lee (Head of Service Cultural and Community
Development (job share) and Service Manager Prevention and Inclusion)
responded to questions from the Committee on savings proposals B2: Supporting
People. The following key points were noted:

Supporting People provides both accommodation-based and floating support
services. Any savings made from the current budget would have an impact of
service users, as not all current service users would be able to access the
service in the future.

There is a risk that costs will increase for other services, such as
homelessness, housing, adult social care, crisis management, rough sleeping,
and anti-social behaviour services .

Officers are working to identify ways to minimise the impact of these proposals
on vulnerable residents. Officers are also working to identify any alternative
support networks in the community that could replace services currently
provided by the Council.

2 Page 2



4.3

4.4

4.5

e The savings agreed for the 2015/16 budget are currently being implemented.
As this is a saving proposed for the budget of 2107/18, the proposal is still
being developed.

e The Committee expressed concern that as the proposal doesn’t contain any
detailed information about the proposal, the Committee wouldn’t be able to
assess the likely consequences of the savings.

e The service provides accommodation for residents who need support to
prevent them becoming homeless. They tend to have multiple complex needs,
and are not resilient enough for Bed & Breakfast accommodation. These
people tend to access the Council’s services via the Council’s Single
Homelessness Intervention and Prevention service (SHIP).

e The service currently provides 400 — 450 accommodation based units. All
provision is for Lewisham residents and provided inside the borough. The
savings proposed would likely result in a 20-25% cut in available units.

The Committee resolved to advise the Public Accounts Select Committee of the
following:

The Committee is concerned about the impact of this proposal on vulnerable
residents and feels without further information on the consequences for vulnerable
residents, the Committee rejects this savings proposal. The Committee supports
the concerns raised at Healthier Communities Select Committee meeting about
this savings proposal.

RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views to the Public Accounts Select
Committee.

Geeta Subramaniam and Petra Der Man (Principal Lawyer) responded to
questions from the Committee on savings proposals H2: Enforcement and
Regulation. The following key points were noted:

e The budget for 2015/16 meant a saving of £800,000 to the areas of
enforcement and regulation. This has meant a restructuring of the service,
which became operational at the start of August 2015. The new service
operates under a risk-based approach, where the highest risk cases are
prioritised in terms of inspection and enforcement. Officers have received a lot
of training to ensure they can work across all the different areas the
enforcement team now works on.

e This proposal entails a target of £1.2m saving in this area for the 2017/18
budget. There is a monthly review of the new team structure. A 6-month
review is due for January. Plans to meet this saving target will likely be
developed in February and March 2016.

e The services provided by the Enforcement and Regulation team are statutory
services which the Council must provide. However, neither the volume of
cases, the level of personnel nor the way services are tailored is specified in
legislation.

e Further changes and reductions to the team need to take account of partner
organisations’ views. Currently, the Food Standards Agency guidance
identifies levels of staffing against number of business premises.

3 Page 3



4.6

4.7

4.8

e The Committee commented that it wasn’t necessarily clear to Councillors what
services were available under the new structure, and at what times.

RESOLVED: that a brief note would be circulated to all Councillors to inform them
about the new Enforcement and Regulation Team, specifically the services
provided, the contact details for the team, and the hours they are contactable.

Geeta Subramaniam and James Lee responded to questions from the Committee
on savings proposals K4: Drug and Alcohol Services. The following key points
were noted:

e The first aspect of the savings proposal entails a change in the way
methadone is prescribed. The second element of the savings proposal would
entail reducing the contract price of the service when re-procuring in March
2017. The service is currently funded from the Council’s Public Health Grant.

e Currently methadone is prescribed for 12 weeks in all cases. Following this
proposal, more regular reviews of the prescriptions would be introduced which
would result in the prescription of methadone according to need. This could be
less than 12 weeks for non-chaotic users, which would result in a reduction of
prescription costs. Discussions with the current provider are on-going about
the proposed regularity of these reviews. There would also a change to the
way pharmacies are paid for the prescriptions, and the monitoring of the
patients taking the methadone.

e The success of the service is monitored against the National Drug Treatment
Framework. Lewisham aims to be in the top quartile nationally for
performance. A quarterly report is provided by Public Health England, but
providers also provide monthly data to the Council. This performance
monitoring happens in collaboration with partner organisations across entire
pathways for service users.

James Lee and Aileen Buckton responded to questions from the Committee on
savings proposals L5: Main Grant Funding to voluntary sector. The following key
points were noted:

e The proposal is for savings made in the 2017/18 budget, but no specific
proposal has been developed for how the reduction in funding would occur.
Some options for this saving could include cutting the funding for a specific
theme in the current Main Grant Programme, or there could be a saving
across all themes. The saving will result in a direct reduction in funding to the
voluntary sector.

e The Main Grants Programme is currently in its first of three years, and this
saving would only impact on year 3. Under the current Main Grants
Programme, organisations will be funded for the full three years of the
programme unless they’re not performing._This savings proposal would entail
changes to this agreement, and the Compact between the Council and the
voluntary sector states that consultation is required for such a proposal. An
Equality Impact Assessment would take place before a formal decision would
be made on what aspects of the Main Grants Programme would receive less
funding.

4 Page 4



e All organisations in receipt of Main Grant funding are monitored on their
performance against agreed targets. Officers also look at the governance of
these organisations in an effort to support them becoming more independent
of the Council’s funding. The Council is actively supporting the voluntary
sector in finding sources of external funding including crowd funding.

e All groups currently receiving Main Grant Funding have received a letter
informing them of this savings proposal, to allow them enough time to prepare
for a potential reduction in Grant.

e |f the Council would want to change the aims of the Main Grants Programme
as opposed to reducing the funding for it, this would require a full consultation
on the terms of the Compact between the Council and the Voluntary Sector.

4.9 The Committee commented that:

e One of the possible solutions to the levels of cuts in the Council’s funding is to
look to the voluntary sector for alternative provision, but the Council will be
cutting funding to the voluntary sector at the same time.

e Although some savings proposals ask for individual groups of residents to
provide alternative provision, there are different levels of capacity and viability
amongst areas of the Council for residents to organise themselves.

e When reviewing the impact of potential reductions in Grants, officers should
review the geographical spread of funded organisations across the Borough,
while keeping in mind that relatively well of wards can often contain pockets of
deprivation.

e There is some correlation between the organisations that receive Grant
Funding and the organisations that are or will be asked to take on additional
responsibilities, but not a direct correlation. Many savings proposals ask that
individual groups of residents taken on more responsibilities.

e There a differing levels of capacity and viability for residents to step up across
areas in the borough to. Officers should review how groups spread their work
across the borough, and which areas might experience a loss of provision.
Some groups are better organised to campaign for external funding.

4.10 RESOLVED: that officers would report back to the Committee in the new calendar
year on their work to support voluntary sector organisations in identifying external
sources of funding.

4.11 Aileen Buckton, Antonio Rizzo (Service Manager Lewisham Library and
Information) and Ralph Wilkinson (Head of Public Services) responded to
questions from the Committee on savings proposal L6: Library and Information
Services. The following key points were noted:

e This proposal is a continuation of the library model implemented as a result of
the last major reduction in budget for the library services. The community
library model would be extended to Forest Hill, Torridon Road and Manor
House libraries.

e Partner organisations would be identified to manage the buildings, while library
staff would continue to provide the actual library and advice service on a
peripatetic basis. Partner organisations that become responsible for managing
any or all of the Forest Hill, Torridon Road and Manor House buildings would

5 Page 5



need to sign up to a service level agreement that will guarantee access to
library services from the building. This agreement is likely to differ per building.

e All community groups currently responsible for the management of a library
building assigned up to promoting the love of books and reading and are
committed to good outcomes for their local communities. Opening hours of the
libraries and number of visits have increased and partners have invested in
outreach work in their communities. Income is earned in different ways
including by renting out space in the buildings. This model of library provision
is now seen as good practice.

e The libraries in Deptford Lounge, Lewisham and Downham Health & Leisure
Centre will form hubs, and would actively support the Council’s digital by
default agenda by assisting people in accessing services online, who might
otherwise find this extremely difficult. Staff are being supported in becoming
confident enough to assist residents in accessing digital services.

e The ground floor of Laurence House would be reconfigured to accommodate
as many face-to-face services as possible and form a cohesive group of these
services. The current Catford library would be part of this reconfiguration. This
proposal would entail reducing the staff employed as part of the library service.
The Council is struggling to fit all relevant services into the available space on
the ground floor. Meanwhile, the Council is also trying to fit as many staff as
possible into the other floor space at Laurence House in an effort to rationalise
the number of buildings it uses.

4.12 The Committee commented that:

e The amalgamation of services in Laurence House will require more joined up
thinking. The possibility of offering space to an independent advice service on
the ground floor of Laurence House should be considered, as many residents
may benefit from independent advice being available close to Council services.

e The library service has an excellent digital offer, with online access to
newspapers as well as magazines and an increasing number of books can be
borrowed digitally. Residents should be made aware of these services.

413 The Committee resolved to advise the Public Accounts Select Committee of the
following:

The Committee supports the proposal to consult on changes to the library services
in Forest Hill, Torridon Road and Manor House. The Committee submits that there
is insufficient information about the proposal to integrate the library provision in
Catford into the repurposed ground floor space within Laurence House. It is
currently unclear what kind of services would be on offer from the library, how the
space in Laurence House would be used, and what the interplay between the
library service and other Council services would be. The Committee submits that
the library and information service could play a valuable role in supporting
residents in accessing digital services, and that a more comprehensive look
should be taken at how all the services on offer on the ground floor of Laurence
House work together to support residents.

4.14 RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views to the Public Accounts Select
Committee and that all Councillors be provided with information about the digital

6 Page 6



services the library and advice service offers, to enable them to promote this to
their residents.

4.15 Standing orders were suspended at 21.30 to enable the completion of Committee
business.

4.16 James Lee and David Austin responded to questions from the Committee on
savings proposal L7: Leisure Services. The following key points were noted:

e The proposal is for savings to be made in 2017/18 budget, where the contracts
for leisure services would be reduced by £1m. No specific proposals have been
developed yet for what the new contacts would provide. Options may include a
drop in concession rates, a change in the leisure services and sports on offer,
an increase in space provided for classes instead of soft play for families, or
some combination of all of the above.

e The £1m proposal is indicative of the amount officers think can be saved from
renegotiating the leisure services contracts. Until negotiations with providers
have progressed, a breakdown of which provision would be reduced to achieve
this £1m could not be provided. The target of saving £1m from the leisure
services contracts has previously been agreed by Members as part of the
Lewisham Future Programme.

4.17 The Committee commented that:

¢ If the subsidy for the leisure centres was significantly reduced and there was
more freedom for contractors to set their prices, the Council could face a
situation where businesses would effectively be allowed to run out of Council
buildings.

e Officers could consider the option of closing some leisure centres entirely rather
than reducing the quality and quantity of provision across all sites.

e Some elements of the leisure centres, such as halls, provide important
opportunities for social interaction as well as physical exercise.

418 The Committee resolved to advise the Public Accounts Select Committee of the
following:

The Committee requests that when examining re-drafting of Leisure Centre
Contracts in the search for £1m per annum savings, officers should: (i) estimate
the effect on pricing and on the content of provision bearing mind many residents
are on low incomes linked to poor health outcomes and some services are not
commercially viable without subsidy; (ii) estimate the potential for savings made by
closing entire facilities; (iii) give special consideration to those facilities that have
potential dual exercise and social/community use such as halls and outdoor
spaces.

419 RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views to the Public Accounts Select
Committee.

4.20 Ralph Wilkinson and Aileen Buckton responded to questions from the Committee

on savings proposal O5 Discretionary Freedom Pass. The following key points
were noted:

7 Page 7



e This proposal does not relate to the provision of the national freedom pass. This
proposal relates to the provision of the discretionary freedom pass provided by
the Council on the basis of locally agreed criteria.

e This saving was proposed last year, but rejected. It has now been proposed
again as part of the effort to save the required £45m by April 2018, and in the
context of the other savings being proposed.

e The current users total 1,471, of which 162 have been awarded under the
mobility criterion and 1,309 under the mental health criterion.

e The Committee felt that a review of their cases to determine the eligibility of
users for the 60+ London Oyster Card and the Job Centre Plus travel discount
card, should be relatively straightforward. Those users eligible under the mental
health criterion might not be immediately eligible elsewhere. Their needs for
assistance with travel would be part of the normal assessments for eligibility for
adult social care. These assessments concern many aspects of residents’ lives,
and transport needs can't be singled out for review.

421 The Committee commented that:

e The Discretionary Freedom Pass serves as a safety net for vulnerable
residents.

o If other free or concessionary travel schemes are available for these residents,
they should be encouraged to use these alternatives instead of making this
saving. Identifying residents’ eligibility for some of the alternative travel
schemes should be relatively straightforward for officers.

4 22 The Committee resolved to advise the Public Accounts Select Committee of the
following:

The Committee rejects this proposal in its current form, as the Committee feels
vulnerable residents should be protected. The Committee submits that officers
should instead encourage residents to use alternative travel concessions. Officers
should review which residents are eligible for the 60+ London Oyster Card and the
Job Centre Plus travel discount card, while the travel needs of residents currently
using the Discretionary Freedom Pass due to a mental health condition should be
reviewed as part of the standard assessments for eligibility of adult social care.

423 RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views to the Public Accounts Select
Committee.

4.24 Paul Aladenika (Service Manager Policy Development and Analytical Insight)
responded to questions from the Committee on the 2016/17 revenue budget
savings report equalities summary. The following key points were noted:

e Of the savings proposals, 25 are estimated to have an impact on equalities. Of
these 17 would be a medium or high impact, while 8 would have a low impact.

e The report also provides a summary of the expected impact on equalities per
protected characteristic.

e The Council is required to have due regard for the likely impact of these savings
proposals on protected groups. It can then consider that impact to be

8 Page 8



reasonable, or even positive. It should consider relevant data in making this
assessment, and if mitigation of expected negative effects is possible, the
Council should address this in its decision-making.

4.25 The Committee requested that the following information be included in the
equalities summary:

e The equalities impact on residents for the protected characteristic of age
should be split out between the impact on young people and the impact on
older people.

e The equalities impact on residents for the protected characteristic of disability
to be split out between the categories of mental health, mobility and learning
disability.

e The savings proposals to be presented in such a way that it would be clear
which residents with protected characteristic(s) would be impacted by multiple
saving proposals at once. This should include previous budget for services,
how much of this budget would be taken and how much would be left after the
proposals were implemented.

4.26 RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views on the savings proposals to the
Public Accounts Select Committee.

5. Main Grants Programme 2015-18 — Equalities Update
5.1 James Lee introduced the report. The following key points were noted:

¢ Voluntary Action Lewisham (VAL) was awarded funding under the Main Grants
Programme to coordinate borough-wide work on equalities.

¢ VAL has established an Equalities Working Group whose members are the
Main Grants funded Equalities organisations. It is currently working up a
detailed action plan.

e EqualiTeam’s draft business plan includes 5 strategic aims for the
organisations, seen and agreed by Mayor and Cabinet. They are in the process
of developing a set of actions to achieve those aims. At their board meeting in
early October, officers will be able to review these plans and subsequently
report back to the Committee.

5.2 James Lee and Aileen Buckton responded to questions from the Committee. The
following key points were noted:

e The organisation has not received any funding from the Council since the last
Main Grants Programme.

e The organisation has had substantial internal changes, with new Board
Members and new Trustees.

e The Committee expressed its discomfort at how the handling of the continuing
funding of EqualiTeam (using previously agreed funding) has been managed.

e One Member of the Committee commented that based on the current
information and without hearing from EqualiTeam directly, it was difficult to
assess whether the ongoing funding was justified.

9 Page 9



EqualiTeam has scheduled a board meeting for early October, which officers
aim to attend after which officers would be able to provide the Committee with
more information.

5.3 RESOLVED: to register the Committee’s discomfort at how the continuing funding
(using previously agreed funding) of EqualiTeam has been managed and to
receive a further update on this item at the Committee’s October meeting.

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

Safer Lewisham Plan 2015-16 — 6 month update

Geeta Subramaniam responded to questions from the Committee on the report.
The following key points were noted:

The Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime (MOPAC) has identified seven priority
crimes. In Lewisham in the last 12 months, the figures for three of these crimes
have gone up. There has been an increase in the theft of mopeds, an increase
in the number incidents of sexual violence and an increase in criminal damage
offences.

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) is captured under the reporting of
seven separate areas of crime such as Female Genital Mutilation and forced
marriages. The Council does work in awareness raising for these issues,
especially in school around the summer holidays, and also work with health
visiting midwives.

Incidents of knife crime and serious youth violence have increased in the
borough, especially amongst young people. A large piece of work is underway
between Council officers, focus groups, community groups and people who
work with young people to have a clearer local picture of the issues .

RESOLVED: to note the report.

Select Committee Work Programme

Simone van Elk (scrutiny manager) introduced the report.

The Committee discussed the report and the following key points were noted:

The Committee agreed the timetable for the poverty review.

The Committee agreed to add an item to their October meeting to update them
on Equalities Grant Aid Funding.

The Committee agreed to invite the local police and fire brigade to one of their
upcoming meetings to update the committee on their work as well discuss their
approach to potential reductions in their budgets.

The Committee requested that the item on the development of the
Comprehensive Equalities Scheme would include suggested actions and/or
action plans to combat inequalities.

RESOLVED: That the work programme be agreed subject to the amendments
discussed.

Items to be referred to Mayor and Cabinet

10 Page 10



8.1 RESOLVED: to refer the Committee’s views on savings proposals B2, L6, L7 and
O5 to the Public Accounts Select Committee

11 Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee
Title Declaration of interests
Contributor Chief Executive ltem 2
Class Part 1 (open) 21 October 2015

Declaration of interests

Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the

agenda.

1. Personal interests

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member
Code of Conduct:

(1)
(2)
3)

Disclosable pecuniary interests
Other registerable interests
Non-registerable interests

2. Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:-

(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or
gain

(b) Sponsorship —payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial
benefit from a Trade Union).

(c) Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they
are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods,
services or works.

(d) Benéeficial interests in land in the borough.

(e) Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more.

(f) Corporate tenancies — any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the
Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a
partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of
which they have a beneficial interest.

(g9) Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:

(a) that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land
in the borough;

Page 13



(b) and either

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of
the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued
share capital of that class.

*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.

Other registerable interests

The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the
following interests:-

(@) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you
were appointed or nominated by the Council

(b)  Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public
opinion or policy, including any political party

(c)  Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £25

Non registerable interests

Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely
to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more
than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is
not required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).

Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation

(@) Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are
present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any
event before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in
the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest
the member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw
from the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to
influence the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest
which has not already been entered in the Register of Members’
Interests, or participation where such an interest exists, is liable to
prosecution and on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000

(b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before
the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in

Page 14



consideration of the matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below
applies.

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the
member’s judgement of the public interest. If so, the member must
withdraw and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to
influence the outcome improperly.

(d) If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a
member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect
those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to the
declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable
interest.

(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s
personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the
advice of the Monitoring Officer.

Sensitive information

There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not
be registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and
advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance.

Exempt categories

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so.
These include:-

(a) Housing — holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter
relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception)

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless

the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which

you are a governor,

Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt

Allowances, payment or indemnity for members

Ceremonial honours for members

Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception)

N NoJNeRN o]
N N

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee

Report Title Voluntary Sector Accommodation Consultation Update
Contributors Head of Culture and Community Development jltem: 3
Class Part 1 Date: 21 October 2015

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 To provide feedback to Safer Stronger Select Committee on the responses to consultation on

proposals for closure, redevelopment and change of use of some of the borough’s community
centres.

2. Background

2.1

2.2

As part of the Council’s fundamental review of all its budgets, it has been looking at the costs
of maintaining its range of assets and the potential income that these assets could generate
for the Council that could be used to fund other services. In order to release substantial
revenues savings and therefore safeguard frontline service delivery, the Council is in the
process of reducing its public buildings. This work has already commenced with the transfer
of staff working in the Catford complex into Laurence House, and the changed use of the
Town Hall.

In April 2015 Mayor and Cabinet considered the outcome of a three month consultation with
the voluntary and community sector on a new framework for the council’s use of assets to
support the sector. This framework was agreed by Mayor and Cabinet and sets out four
categories for VCS assets as follows:

e Sole occupancy of a building (not at full market rate) — This would be a building,
wholly or predominantly utilised by one VCS organisation. In order for an
organisation to have sole occupancy of a building it would need to demonstrate a
need for specialist facilities that could not be provided elsewhere and/or within a
shared facility. The organisation would need to demonstrate that it can’t afford full
market rate. The organisation would also need to be delivering services that meet
our priorities.

e Voluntary and Community Sector Hub — This would be a shared building with all
inclusive affordable rents. This would be the preferred category for organisations
that are providing services that meet our priorities (and cannot demonstrate the
need for specialist facilities above). The Hubs will provide office and meeting space.
Activity space where appropriate and possible may also be provided, otherwise this
would need to be hired elsewhere.

e Community Centre — This would be a neighbourhood based facility with activity
space that is predominantly geared towards providing services at a neighbourhood
level. Community Centres currently have a range of different terms and conditions,

Page 17



2.3

2.4

some are on full repairing leases, some directly provided and others managed by
Premises Management Organisations (PMOs) but with Repairs & Maintenance
provided by the Council. Many community centres are currently underutilised and
we would be looking to rationalise the number of centres taking into account what
other community facilities are available in the area. As the number of centres is
reduced we would work to reduce the overall financial burden to the Council and
put in place equitable arrangements across the portfolio.

e Sole occupancy of a building at full market rate — This would be for larger VCS
organisations that can afford to pay full market rates, for those that are not
delivering services that meet our priorities or for organisations that are delivering
services that meet our priorities but that do not wish to be housed within one of the
VCS hubs. These organisations would still be able to access buildings (where
available) on the Council’s standard letting terms and conditions.

Following the adoption of the framework the next step was to develop an implementation
plan to demonstrate the impact of the framework on the existing portfolio of community
premises. The following principles that were agreed as part of the framework were used to
guide the development of the implementation plan:

e Demand for subsidised space will always outstrip the available resources and it is
therefore essential to have a process for allocating support that is open and transparent.

e Lease and hire arrangements should be equitable.

e Council Assets used by VCS organisations need to be fully optimised to ensure the
Council is achieving best value for its’ residents.

e The overall cost to the Council of assets used by VCS organisations should be reduced in
order to release savings.

e The model for the use of Council assets to support VCS organisations in the future
should allow some flexibility for changing needs.

e The model should support the Council’s partnership approach

e Enabling VCS organisations to access Council assets is a way of supporting the sector.

e The model should help the sector to help themselves by optimising the use of their
resources.

In addition the following factors have been considered in developing the implementation
plan:

e Usage levels

e Other facilities in the locality

Impact on council’s ability to meet its statutory duties
Existing lease arrangements

Potential for redevelopment

Potential for shared use

e Condition of the asset

The Implementation Plan was taken to Mayor and Cabinet in July 2015 and contained
outline proposals for how each of fifty assets fitted into the framework. Within the
community centres category there were a number of proposals to close or redevelop a

Page 18



2.5

2.6

3.1

centre. It was agreed that further consultation should be undertaken and the outcome of
this reported back to Mayor and Cabinet before implementation could proceed.

The plans set out in this report reflect in part a response to the requirement to ensure
childcare and school places. Local authorities are under a duty to ensure that there is
sufficient childcare provision in their areas. The provision must be “sufficient to meet the
requirements of parents in the local authority’s area who require childcare in order to
enable them to take up, or remain in, work, or undertake education or training which could
reasonably be expected to assist them to obtain work.

Ensuring that the supply of school places meets demand remains a statutory duty of local
authorities. In terms of meeting demand, local authorities are also subject to constraints
under the Education Act 2011. The 2011 Act requires that this demand for school places be
met through the building of new free schools and academies, and the expansion of existing
schools where possible.

The plans set out in this report also reflect in part a response to the massive housing
challenges in Lewisham and London more broadly. A combination of population growth and
an acute shortage in the supply of new homes has led to an affordability crisis in every
sector of the local housing economy. This is reflected in the fact that the average house price
in Lewisham is now more than 12 times the median local income, and that rents in the
private rental market have increased by a third in the past three years. It is expressed most
clearly however in the rise in homeless households living in temporary accommodation, a
number which now stands at more than 550, representing a ten-fold increase in just over
two years.

The Council has initiated a wide range of responses to this crisis, principal amongst which is
a return to Council house building in order to increase the rate at which new affordable
homes are made available to residents. The Council has committed to delivering at least 500
new Council homes by 2018 as part of a mixed-tenure development programme. Sites for
new homes are generally identified with the following criteria:

. Preference for sites with a capacity of more than 10 homes

o Underused and or redundant land

o Locations which are popular for both rented and homes for sale
. Places which may benefit existing as well as new residents

In a number of cases the community centres under consideration in this report have the
capacity to contribute towards the delivery of the house building programme by
reconfiguring the layout of a site, to deliver both new homes and improved community
facilities.

Consultation

There are 16 assets where further consultation has been undertaken. Meetings were held
with the management committees and users of these centres. A list of these meetings is
contained at appendix A. Management committees and users were invited to make written
submissions to the consultation and these are summarised in section 4 of this report and
provided in full in appendix B.

Page 19



4.1

4.2

Summary of Responses

A summary of the feedback for each centre is given below and an initial response to the
issues raised. A further response and recommendation for each asset will be presented in a
paper to Mayor and Cabinet on 11t November 2015.

Barnes Wallis Community Centre: Telegraph Hill Ward

Original Proposal: To redevelop the site of the community centre for housing and reprovide
community space within the new development.

Consultation Feedback: The consultation meeting was well attended with representatives
of the management committee, user groups and local residents. Attendees were
overwhelmingly opposed to the proposal. The main reasons given were the importance of
the centre to enabling local community activity to take place, the hard work and
commitment of local residents who have kept the centre operating and a view that
additional housing and associated increase in the local population could bring with it social
problems and place a strain on local public infrastructure. Concern was raised about the
level of disruption to centre users that redevelopment would bring in particular with
reference to the newly established nursery. People also spoke about a deep personal
attachment to the building and a fear that whatever replaced it would not meet the needs of
the community in the same way. A number of other potential sites for housing were
suggested and the council was urged to look elsewhere and leave the community centre as it
is.

Response: The council recognises the need to ensure that community activity is able to
continue on the Somerville Estate and the role that community and voluntary organisations
and the individuals who give their time to deliver these activities play. It is for this reason
that the council will ensure that any redevelopment of the site makes provision for
community space to compliment other facilities in the area such as the new big lottery
funded community space at Somerville Adventure Playground. The council acknowledges
that any redevelopment is likely to cause disruption both to centre users and neighbouring
properties and detailed planning will be done to try and minimise this disruption. The
redevelopment of the centre would be part of a wider estate development with a number of
sites being developed. It is unknown at this stage how many new homes could be provided
on the community centre site, but the council feels that the potential to provide new homes
and a new community space and the benefits this will bring could outweigh the short term
disruption that would be caused.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to the Barnes Wallis community centre site
being included within the wider development of housing on the Somerville Estate. This
would be subject to detailed design work to include the provision of community space that
complements other facilities in the locality and that the views and needs of users and
residents are used to inform the design. Barnes Wallis community centre to be retained until
such time as any housing development is agreed.

Page 20



4.3

4.4

4.5

Brandram Rd Community Hall: Blackheath Ward

Original Proposal: To close Brandram Rd Community Hall and make the site available for
disposal.

Consultation Feedback: The management committee and users of Brandram Rd are
strongly opposed to the closure of the centre. A petition with 1400 signatures at time of
writing has been submitted alongside the consultation response. The management
committee recognise the need for the council to make savings but feel that the Hall provides
a valuable community resource. They have made an alternative proposal that they take on a
full repairing and maintaining lease and pay any surplus income over expenditure as rent.

Response: The council recognises the value of the community activities that take place at
Brandram Rd Hall but feel that there are a number of possible alternative venues in the
locality. Lochaber Hall which is just across the ward boundary has a main hall, small hall and
créche and could accommodate some users from Brandram Road. There is also St
Margaret’s Church nearby that can be hired out for up to 50 users in the crypt and a
maximum of 300 seated; and Kingswood Halls which has a large hall (130 seated) and
annexe (40 seated), available at £20-£40ph. Manor House Library offers five meeting rooms,
ranging from small (10 seated) to large (30 seated); prices range from £12ph to £38ph as a
subsidised rate. The Brandram Road site has been assessed as having the potential for nine
housing units.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to the alternative proposal presented by
Brandram Rd Management Association and the timing of any future housing development.

Champion Hall: Bellingham Ward

Original Proposal: To close the hall and redesignate solely for childcare use.

Consultation Feedback: The management committee recognised that the council needs to
make savings but felt that although the hall provides valuable childcare facilities it should
still accommodate other users. The committee presented an alternative proposal to take on
a full repairing lease for the Hall and pay rent but to still accommodate other community
uses alongside the childcare provision.

Response: The proposal put forward by the management committee may yield less income
than could be achieved by marketing the hall as a commercial nursery. However the
additional community benefits that continuing to operate as a community centre and the
saving that would be achieved through the management committee paying rent and taking
on repairs and maintenance liabilities may provide a good value use of the asset.

Consideration: consideration is being given to the alternative proposal to negotiate a lease
with the Champion Hall management committee that would safeguard the childcare offer at
the hall, provide continued community benefits and achieve a saving for the council.

Clare Hall: Brockley Ward

Original Proposal: To designate the hall as a nursery.

Page 21



4.6

4.7

Consultation feedback: The hall is solely occupied by Little Gems nursery although it is
occasionally used for councillor surgeries and meetings of the Tenants and Residents
Association. The nursery management are happy to take on a lease for the building as a
nursery and have commenced negotiations. They have indicated that they would be happy
to continue to accommodate the other occasional uses.

Response: the consultation feedback was in agreement with the original proposal.

Consideration: negotiations have commenced for a full repairing lease with Little Gems
nursery on similar terms to other nurseries in council buildings.

Evelyn Community Centre: Evelyn Ward

Original Proposal: To redevelop the site of the community centre for housing and reprovide
community space within the new development.

Consultation feedback: The consultation meeting was attended by the TRA chair and
members of the various user groups, including a nursery, a number of church members and
Vietnamese women’s group. There was consensus amongst the attendees that the centre
was well used and was the heart of the community; particularly from the nursery that had
been established for over 20 years and served a number of children with additional needs
and from vulnerable homes. The centre is also used by the TRA for resident meetings and
they did not want these links with the community to be broken. Some users did highlight the
repairs required at the centre and the lack of storage available and felt that redevelopment
could provide an opportunity to look into these issues. However, there were concerns raised
about the loss of greenspace cause by another housing development and that reproviding a
smaller centre on this site would not be able to accommodate all of the current users.

Response: The council recognises the need for community activity on the Evelyn Estate. Itis
for that reason that the original proposal was to redevelop the site and reprovide
community space as part of the development. Looking at the site in more detail there is
concern that it would not be financially viable to provide both housing and community space
on the site due to the very close proximity of designated open space surrounding the centre.
It may only be feasible to develop along with other sites nearby and currently no such sites
have been identified.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to Evelyn Community Centre being retained but
that the site remain earmarked for possible housing development with community space
should other sites that could be developed alongside it be identified at a later date.

Ewart Rd Club Room: Crofton Park Ward

Original Proposal: To close the club room and develop housing on the site.

Consultation Feedback: A meeting was held at the club room which was attended by
members of the management committee, a representative from the Housing Co-op, users
and residents. Attendees were opposed to the closure of the centre and put forward an
alternative proposal that the club room be transferred to the Housing Co-op to remove

Page 22



4.8

4.9

repairs and maintenance costs from the council. They also raised reservations about the
suitability of the site for housing given its very close proximity to the surrounding buildings.

Response: In looking at the site further it is felt that it would not be suitable for
development and the only housing option would be a simple conversion to a single flat. This
would be insufficient benefit to warrant the loss of the community space and the alternative
proposal of a transfer to the housing co-op would achieve the required reduction to the
council’s revenue budget.

Consideration: consideration is being given to the Ewart Rd Club Room being transferred to
the Housing Co-op either as a freehold transfer or on a full repairing lease for community
use.

Goldsmiths Community Centre: Whitefoot Ward

Original Proposal: To retain community space on Goldsmiths Community Centre site either
by retaining the current building or through developing the site for housing and reproviding
community space.

Consultation feedback: the Goldsmiths Community Association who hold a lease for the
building which expires in 2038 wish to make the necessary repairs to the building to
continue to operate the centre and are currently opposed to the idea of redevelopment.
They have requested an extension to their lease to assist with capital fundraising.

Response: Given that the current lease has a further 23 years before it expires any plans for
the site need to be developed in collaboration with the current leaseholders. The council is
sympathetic to Goldsmiths Community Association’s desire to raise funds to repair the
centre but are not in a position to make capital funding available. If the association are not
able to raise the capital funds needed then further discussions about redevelopment may be
required.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to retaining Goldsmiths Community Centre; and
to revisit the future use of the site dependent on progress on raising the capital required for
the works to the building.

Honor Oak Community Centre: Telegraph Hill Ward

Original Proposal: to redevelop the community centre site for housing and reprovide
community space as part of the development.

Consultation feedback: A meeting was held at Honor Oak Community Centre that was
hosted by the Honor Oak Community Association and attended by centre users and
residents. An additional meeting was held with the management committee of the
community association. A petition of 668 signatures, at the time of writing, opposing the
proposed redevelopment has been submitted. The community association and attendees at
the public meeting were strongly opposed to the proposal. They were concerned that any
replacement community space would not meet the community’s needs and they expressed
fear that the council would not provide any space at all. They were concerned about the

Page 23



impact on the youth centre that adjoins the community centre and the need to ensure that
youth activity on the estate did not suffer as a result of the proposal. Concerns were also
voiced about the impact of more housing on the Honor Oak Estate in relation to the strain
on public infrastructure and the potential for increased social problems. An application to
add the Honor Oak Community Centre and Youth Centre to Lewisham’s register of assets of
community value was received and accepted. A request has also been made by the Honor
Oak Management Association for a community asset transfer.

Response: The council recognises the need to ensure that community and youth activity is
able to continue on the Honor Oak Estate. It is for this reason that the council will ensure
that any redevelopment of the site makes provision for youth and community space. At
present it is not certain how many new homes could be delivered, although for the purposes
of modelling the programme the current assumption is 57 units. This is only an indication,
detailed design work and further consultation about what youth and community space was
needed would be undertaken before the development could be taken through the planning
process. Although the council recognises that development would cause some disruption
the benefits of more social housing and new community facilities could outweigh the short-
term disruption that would be caused. It is unlikely that the council would wish to consider
an asset transfer at this time as this would not allow for any housing development.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to the Honor Oak Community Centre site being
earmarked for housing development with youth and community space but that the position
of the Honor Oak project within the housing programme be reviewed to allow more time for
further consultation and detailed design work to be undertaken. Given the pressing need to
deliver new affordable homes for our residents, officers will continue to programme for 57
new homes to be delivered in this area, alongside wider community investment, by March
2018.

4,10 Lethbridge Club Room: Blackheath Ward

Original Proposal: to close the Lethbridge Club room when the new community centre that
is being provided as part of the redevelopment of the Heathside and Lethbridge Estate is
completed.

Consultation feedback: this has been planned for several years and there has been a great
deal of engagement locally on the provision of the new centre. Interest has been shown in
the plans for the site once it is closed by users being displaced from other centres.

Response: The Lethbridge Club Room site is included within the plans for the redevelopment
of the estate and is not available for other community use.

Consideration: It is not considered necessary to propose any changes to what has already
been agreed for this site; that the planned closure of Lethbridge Club Room takes place once
the new centre on Heathside and Lethbridge is ready for occupation and that the site
continues to be earmarked as part of the estate development.

Page 24



4.11

4.12

Saville Centre: Rushey Green Ward

Original Proposal: to close the Saville Centre and relocate users to other centres where
possible.

Consultation feedback: the user groups at the Saville Centre were disappointed that the
centre was proposed for closure as a number of them have used the centre for many years.
The compact nature of the building and close proximity to several bus routes make it
particularly well suited to the vulnerable and older adults who are the main users of the
centre. Some concern was expressed about how well other centres may be able to
accommodate users with additional needs such as the Social Eyes visually impaired group
and one user explained that their funding required them to remain within one of two super
output areas.

Response: the council recognises that a number of the user groups at the Saville centre have
particular needs that will have to be taken into account when looking for alternative spaces.
However, there are a number of spaces in the area with spare capacity some of which are
used to accommodating vulnerable adults. These include the Point community centre on
Rushey Green which has a main room with seated capacity for 30. Calabash Day Centre with
a community hall for hire and fully equipped kitchen (Hall A - capacity 200, Hall B - capacity
200), Lewisham Irish centre with a main Hall with capacity for 150 standing and three
offices, open 8:30am - 10:30 pm 7 days a week, Mecca Bingo Ltd, Unit 4, Plassy Road, have a
meeting room for hire in the mornings before 11:30 and lounge area with capacity for 70
users and the St Laurence Centre. In addition a couple of the user groups indicated that they
did not need to be located in Rushey Green ward as they serve the whole borough.

Consideration: Consideration continues to be given to closing the Saville Centre and
relocating users to alternative premises where possible.

Scotney Hall: New Cross Ward

Original Proposal: To close the Hall and redevelop the site for housing.

Consultation Feedback: The current users of the Hall acknowledged that the building is not
well used but stressed that this is largely due to the poor state of repair. They expressed
concern about the lack of any other facilities in the area for community activity to take place
and felt that the Winslade Estate is geographically isolated from other parts of the borough
and generally not well provided for.

Response: The proposal to close Scotney Hall was largely due to the very low usage and
poor condition of the building. However the council acknowledges that there is little current
community premises provision on or near the Winslade Estate. The proposed
redevelopment of Scotney Hall would need to form part of a wider scheme taking in other
sites in the area and this is not likely to take place for a number of years. It is proposed to
consider some temporary repairs to Scotney Hall to extend it’s life for a further 3-5 years
subject to affordability. The community premises needs of the neighbourhood would then
be reviewed again prior to any redevelopment and consideration given to reproviding some
community space as part of the new scheme.

Page 25



4.13

4.14

Consideration: Consideration is being given to the Scotney Hall site being designated for
future housing development but that it be retained in the meantime subject to the
affordability of necessary repairs. Consideration will also be given to reproviding some
community space as part of any future housing scheme.

Sedgehill Community Centre: Bellingham Ward

Original Proposal: redevelopment of the site for additional school places and a community
use agreement.

Consultation feedback: Happy Days nursery who are based at Sedgehill Community Centre
and provide breakfast and after school clubs for seven local schools as well as pre-school
childcare, were very concerned about the potential impact of the proposal on their business
and the families they serve. They have asked the council to consider selling a part of the site
to them to enable the continuation of the nursery. The Greater Faith ministries also
expressed concerns about the proposal and wanted an undertaking to involve them in the
planning for any redevelopment. Sharon Abraham Dance school who have been using the
hall since just after it first opened were disappointed that they would need to move but
understood the council’s rationale and felt that space within a secondary school could
potentially meet their needs.

Response: It is anticipated that the school places being considered for this site will be for a
school expansion. Any development will be subject to consultation on school expansion and
a detailed feasibility study including a financial viability assessment. There is specific design
guidance for schools that any new building would need to adhere to and affordability will be
a key consideration. These two factors will limit the flexibility to incorporate any specific
requirements linked to the community use of the school but engagement would take place
to ensure that the best use of the space could be achieved given these constraints. It is
unclear at this stage whether the current nursery provision could be accommodated as part
of the expanded school. However, as part of the feasibility work for the school expansion an
audit of pre-school childcare provision in the ward will be undertaken and opportunities to
expand the number of registered childminders and other nurseries will be considered.
Sedgehill School currently opens for community use after school hours until 7pm Monday to
Friday and from 10am to 6pm on Sundays and could be considered as an alternative venue
for Greater Faith ministries and/ or Sharon Abraham dance school.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to the Sedgehill Community Centre site being
earmarked for potential school places subject to a detailed feasibility study, school
expansion consultation and planning permission. Consideration also to be given to different
ways to use the site in order to provide for school expansion and the different impact
options would have on community uses.

Silverdale Hall: Sydenham Ward

Original Proposal: to close Silverdale Hall and seek to relocate users to the Sydenham Centre
where possible.

Page 26



4.15

4.16

Consultation Feedback: Silverdale Hall is managed by the Venner Road Community
Association. The Venner Rd Management Committee felt that current activities at Silverdale
could be relocated and the main user who provides Pilates classes has visited the Sydenham
Centre.

Response: A housing capacity study for the Silverdale site indicates that five flats could be
provided, with a total of 13 units using some adjacent land. In addition to the Sydenham
Centre there is also alternative community premises provision at Here for Good-Community
Centre which has a hall for 30 to 40 people. TNG Youth and Community Centre offers
meeting and event space with a main hall which has capacity for up to 100 people and is
equipped with a sprung floor and blackout blinds; and the Golden Lion Pub, 116 Sydenham
Rd, has a function room for hire for up to 50 people. The availability of alternative spaces in
the area combined with the capacity of the site to offer much needed housing confirms the
original proposal to close the centre.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to closing Silverdale Hall and seeking to relocate
users to other local provision where possible.

Venner Rd Hall: Sydenham Ward

Original Proposal: to redesignate the site for childcare use.

Consultation feedback: The Venner Rd Management Association recognised that the council
needs to make savings but felt that although the hall provides valuable childcare facilities it
should still accommodate other users. The committee presented an alternative proposal to
take on a full repairing lease for the Hall and pay rent but to still accommodate other
community uses alongside the childcare provision.

Response: The proposal put forward by the management committee may yield less income
than could be achieved by marketing the hall as a commercial nursery. However the
additional community benefits that continuing to operate as a community centre and the
saving that would be achieved through the management committee paying rent and taking
on repairs and maintenance liabilities may provide a good value use of the asset.

Consideration: consideration is being given to the alternative proposal to negotiate a lease
with the Venner Road management association that would safeguard the childcare offer at
the hall, provide additional community benefits and achieve a saving for the council.

Wesley Halls: Downham Ward

Original Proposal: To redevelop Wesley Halls for housing and reprovide community space as
part of the new development.

Consultation feedback: The management committee and current users of Wesley Halls are
opposed to the proposed redevelopment of the Halls. They highlighted the history of the
building and the wide range of users. They recognise the need for additional housing in the
borough and would not be opposed to houses being built on the vacant adjacent plot on

Page 27



Bankfoot Rd but wish the Halls to remain untouched. A petition has been started, opposing
the redevelopment of the hall, which at the time of writing had 722 signatures.

Response: A detailed capacity study of the site is required to identify the housing options
that would be possible alongside Wesley Halls or any redeveloped community space which
could accommodate the level of local community activity. This proposal would be subject to
considerable design and space allocation which would require detailed feasibility work and
further community consultation.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to undertaking more consultation with the
Downham Community Association, users and residents on the best way to provide both
housing and community space on the site and adjoining land.

4.17 Woodpecker Community Centre: New Cross Ward

Original proposal: to close Woodpecker Community Centre and redevelop the site for
housing.

Consultation feedback: Milton Court TRA and the current users of the Woodpecker
Community Centre are opposed to the proposal. They feel that the community centre needs
to be a hub for the local community and that other community facilities in the area would
not be sufficient. A number of other potential sites for housing were suggested and the
council was urged to look elsewhere and leave the community centre as it is.

Response: The following alternative provision is within a mile of the Woodpecker
Community Centre: St Michaels Community Centre has a large hall (capacity up to 200),
kitchen and outside space for hire for £30ph (with a £250 refundable deposit). The
Samaritans of Lewisham Greenwich and Southwark have a small seminar and large seminar
room for hire for up to 40 seated; available 9am to 11pm for a minimum charge of £30 per
session. Deptford Green School have classrooms and dance/drama studios for hire on
Saturdays between 10am and 5pm, prices range between £15ph and £25ph depending on
number of users and size of classroom/ studio. Moonshot Centre offers an atrium, two
dance studios, lecture room, library, two offices, drama room and three activity rooms for
hire.

Woodpecker Community Centre is currently used 5 days a week by a private school
providing education for 20 children. This limits other uses of the building. Casual usage for
private hires and resident meetings have been very low for the last two years and could be
accommodated in the alternative venues. There is significant potential to develop the area
around the Woodpecker Community Centre including some of the sites suggested during the
consultation. As well as providing much needed housing the redevelopment would also
significantly improve the quality of the public realm.

Consideration: Consideration is being given to closing the Woodpecker Community Centre
and the site being designated for housing as part of a wider development. Consideration is
also being given to the private school being allowed to remain in the centre in the interim
period until the site is developed subject to suitable terms being negotiated.

Page 28



5. Conclusion

5.1 This report provides Safer Stronger with an update on the consultation on proposals relating
to 16 of the borough’s community centres. Comments are invited from the committee to
further inform the report that will be taken to Mayor and Cabinet on 11* November 2015
with recommendations on the next stage for each proposal.

Appendix A — list of consultation meetings

Appendix B — consultation responses

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A - Consultation meetings

Date of meeting

Community Centre

Meeting attendees/ representatives

02-Sep-15

Sedgehill Community Centre
69-85 Sedgehill Road
Bellingham

SE6 3QN

Happy Days Nursery

02-Sep-15

Saville Day Centre
436-438 Lewisham High Street
SE13 6LJ

Lewisham Pensioners Forum Providence LINC
United Services

Thursday Club

Social Eyes

My Complete Focus/ CIC

Christ Chapel

03-Sep-15

Brandram Road Community Centre
25-33 Brandram Road
SE13 5RT

Brandram Road user group

04-Sep-15

Sedgehill Community Centre
69-85 Sedgehill Road
Bellingham

SE6 3QN

Greater Faith Ministries

04-Sep-15

Honor Oak Community Centre
50 Turnham Road
SE4 2JD

Honor Oak Community public meeting - Residents

07-Sep-15

Honor Oak Community Centre
50 Turnham Road
SE4 2JD

Honor Oak Community Trustees

07-Sep-15

Woodpecker Community Centre
101 Woodpecker Road
SE14 6EU

Milton Court TRA

Kings Kids Christian School
Christ above all Gospel Church,
The Quay Point.co.uk

08-Sep-15

Barnes Wallis Community Centre
74 Wild Goose Drive

Somerville United TRA
Residents

SE14 5LL Somerville adventure playground
Centre users - ‘Joy’
Tenants Fund
Genie Tutors
New Cross Ltd
Nursery
Tae kwon do
Church of Christ
09-Sep-15|Wesley Halls Downham Community Association
2 Shroffold Road
BR1 5PE
11-Sep-15 |Sedgehill Community Centre Sharon Abraham Dance School
69-85 Sedgehill Road
Bellingham
SE6 3QN
14-Sep-15 |Scotney Hall REMEC
17 Sharratt Street
SE15 1INR
16-Sep-15 |Clare Hall Little Gems Nursery
St Donnatts Road
SE14 6NU
18-Sep-15 |Ewart Road Clubroom Ewart Road Housing Cooperative Ltd
44 Wastdale Road
Forest Hill
SE23 1HN
18-Sep-15 |Venner Road Hall Venner Road Hall Community Association
Venner Road
SE26 5EQ
Silverdale Hall
8 Silverdale
SE26 4SZ
21-Sep-15|Evelyn Community Centre Evelyn TRA
Kingfisher Square Bunny Hop Nursery
1 Clyde Street Mount Carmel of the Apostolic Faith
SE8 5LW Viethamese Women and Families Association
23-Sep-15|Champion Hall Champion Hall Community Association
1 Holmshaw Close
SE26 4TH

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B — Consultation responses

Barnes Wallis Community Centre

11t September 2015
Following our recent meeting regarding the future of the Barnes Wallis last Tuesday evening.

After the meeting we were left in a bad feeling that Joan Millbank and Bradley Cummings had tried
to sabotage the feeling of our committee members by telling members that Bradley had space in his
new building which my members can rent. | did not invite Bradley to this meeting, Joan Millbank
must have.

As all my members said this centre is a hub for our local community. From ballet and Tae Kwon Do
for the children to Seated exercise and Line dancing for the elderly, plus our very strong Church of
Christ assembly. Our Somerville United TRA operates from the centre. We hold general meetings
every two months to inform tenants and residents of any changes and hear from them of any
problems they are experiencing. The TRA organises coach trips and outside party every year to get
people involved and talking to each other. | am also the chair of our local Telegraph Hill SNP team,
which is why we have a very low crime rate on the estate. We also operate a very good nursery and
school with in the centre. Tenants and residents come into the centre seeking information on Rent,
council tax, repairs, anti-social behaviour etc. and asking on classes in the centre.

We have also been informed that you plan to demolish our shops and offices in Wild Goose Drive.
This was not mentioned at the meeting, the same as we never received any notices, plans before
this meeting.

Should this proposal go ahead, it leaves me with no option but to resign my posts as Manager of the
Barnes Wallis, Chair of Somerville United TRA, Chair of Telegraph Hill SNP, member of Lewisham
Tenants Fund and a member of Lewisham homes area panel, which will be a sad loss to our local
community which | have built up over the last ten/eleven years. To ensure the smooth running of
the centre, | have not had a holiday for the last 10/11 years, working most weekends also.

We have been working hard for the last six months to become a registered charity, Only last week
we received an email from the charity commission saying we are now included in their register.

In the last 10/11 years we have had nothing from Lewisham Council to help us, but look what the
council has done. Charge us for water rates £2,300, Business rates of £6,300, No repairs, some over
one year old, we have spent between £5000 to £6000 on repairs to the centre, alone in the last year.
You may remember that we pointed out several sites on the estate where you build new homes, one
being on the corner of Mona Road, a green area, you said that would not happen, well this morning
| received papers from you saying that homes will be built on that green area. We still believe that
the area at the rear of Edmond Court, the car old parking area and old ball court would be a great
area to build new homes instead of demolishing the Barnes Wallis centre.

Page 33



Through our TRA, | shall be calling a meeting for our tenants and residents to hear your proposals
and what action we will take against the closure of the Barnes Wallis.

Yours sincerely
Ken Wakeman

Manager

Page 34



234 September 2015

Following a very well attended TRA meeting last night, the tenants and residents of the Somerville
estate have asked me to write to you regarding the following issues.

1. The rear of Edmond Court including the ball court and old garage area is not to be used for
new housing, not enough space and to close to other people homes.
2. With all the extra housing being proposed, tenants and residents are concerned that the
amount of parking on the estate, which at the moment is limited, would run out of control.
3. Avyoung school girl from Mona Road, said that she is frightened to go out of a night time
because
of strangers walking about, with building more flats and houses on the grass at Mona and

Dennett’s
Road, this would cause her more problems.

4. Our members said that Edmond Waller School is already full to busting point, and any more
children will not be able to attend the school.

5. Members stated that the council should meet us half way with their proposals, and not to
knock the Barnes Wallis and shops down, but to leave it as it is, as it is the hub of the
community, and always open for tenants, residents, young, elderly and disabled to attend
meetings and classes.

6. With all the extra flats and houses, tenants and residents are worried about extra traffic on
the estate, speeding cars and vans, as lots of Edmond Waller and Kender Street children
walk through the estate.

7. Extra rubbish will be generated by this proposal, the situation is bad at this moment without
extra more being put upon us. Our present caretaker can hardly cope with his work, any
more will tip him over the edge.

8. Demolition of the Barnes Wallis would also mean the cutting down of cherry trees, walnut
trees plus another one, which is against the environment

9. One member of the TRA has a relation working for the South London Press, who will be
asked to contact myself to see if we could get space in the paper to write about our
situation.

10. One committee member will be going door to door around the estate to get signatures for a
petition which will be presented later.

Yours sincerely
Ken Wakeman
Chair

Somerville United TRA

Page 35



Hi Liz

Just to let you know that following a management meeting of Lewisham Tenants Fund, they will back
any action against the demolition of the Barnes Wallis Community Centre.

Our Somerville United TRA will be holding a meeting next week with the residents to see what action
we will take to stop this happening.

Kind regards

Ken

Dear Steve,

| am writing to you as the individual who has brought in over £1.3 million to the Somerville Youth &
Play Provision in New Cross from external funding bodies in the last year.

| understand that proposals are underway to close the Barnes Wallis centre on the Somerville estate,
as well as the Honor Oak Community Centre on Turnham Road in Brockley.

The funders for Somerville have grasped just how necessary community spaces like this are. You are
responsible for the facilities in our deprived communities and in my opinion you need to have a
clearer understanding of the local needs that these places address. Please consider these facts:

Issues and evidence of need through research and consultations:

Lewisham is the 31st most deprived Local Authority in England (bottom 10%) and the 13th most
deprived London borough (Lewisham JSNA 2011); relative to the rest of the UK Lewisham’s
deprivation is increasing (most recent Indeces of Multiple Deprivation 2010). 34% of children in
Lewisham live in poverty which is the 18th worst Local Authority in the UK (End Child Poverty Report
October 2014); an estimated 20,355 children live in poverty in Lewisham (Lewisham Children and
Young People Plan 2012-15). Within the New Cross ward 33% of children in our nearest primary
school are entitled to free school meals (DfES 2012) and 26% of year 6 children are obese (Childrens
Centre Area 1 profile 2012).

Facilities like Somerville, Barnes Wallis and Honor Oak Community Centre address the following
specific needs:

1.Children and young people living in cramped, poor quality housing need places to exercise and a
safe space to play and engage in positive activities. Within New Cross 20% of the population live in
poor quality social housing (IMD 2010); an estimated 95% of Somerville’s attendees live in social
housing. 68% of participants said they are “more fit and healthy” from being here (Oct 2014 survey
of 44 participants). The nearest free outdoor sports facility is almost 1 mile away.

Page 36



2. A lack of local provision for young people can result in crime, gang involvement, anti-social
behaviour and substance misuse, further reducing their life chances. 75% of our participants said
they are “less likely to get into trouble by being at Somerville" (2014 survey); this is supported by
informal feedback from our Safer Neighbourhoods team and local residents.

The Telegraph Hill Assembly Action Plan (2012) identifies youth issues as the highest local priority,
with 12 of the 23 objectives focused on youth needs. Almost half of our young people say “there is
nowhere else that we can hang out” (2014 survey). There are no other youth services within a mile
and the nearest adventure playground is almost 2 miles away. Our events are often over-
subscribed, e.g. over 600 young people attended the Skate Park Event in 2013.

3. Many of Somerville’s young people have low levels of skills and educational attainment, Special
Educational Needs (SEN) or behavioural problems, and increased risk of exclusion from school. DfES
data (2012) shows that nearly a third of children in the 3 nearest primary schools have SEN (with or
without statements). Over 70% of participants said that they “learn new things” and “being here
helps me feel more confident and good at stuff” (2014 survey).

4. Somerville’s young people struggle to overcome multiple barriers to employment and need
additional employability support. In New Cross ward 7.8% of households with dependent children
have no employed adults compared to 4.2% in England (Census 2011). Expectations of securing
employment remain low. The 102 young people who gained employability support through
Somerville in 2014 said they could not have accessed support elsewhere; the local Connexions
service closed in 2011 and has not been replaced. Somerville has also been shown to help the
majority of employed parents to stay in work: "It's a Godsend in school holidays and free which
means | can go to work."

5. Many of our children and young people are socially isolated; around 75% are from BME families
/refugees / asylum seekers or from single parent or workless households. These families tend to
have limited support networks, low levels of community engagement and a lack of knowledge of
support and advice available. 66% of participants agreed that “Somerville makes me feel less lonely”
(2014 survey). Informal feedback from parents shows a lack of community feel on local estates and
a need for community activities.

How community facilities fit with national, regional and local strategies and priorities:

The Governments ‘Positive for Youth’ Strategy (December 2011) states “a common goal of young
people having a strong sense of belonging, and the supportive relationships, strong ambitions, and

|ll

good opportunities they need to realise their potential” and includes a commitment to retain a

statutory duty on local authorities to secure positive activities for young people.

At a regional level the London Mayor “wants to increase opportunities for—and promote the
aspirations of —children and young people in London, to improve their life chances and reduce youth
crime” (ref: Young Londoners—successful futures, 2010).

The 2009 Young Londoners Survey found that children and young people in urban and deprived
areas of London are likely to have fewer opportunities to engage in positive activities than those in
more affluent areas—and this lack of provision can hold back their social development and life
opportunities (8). Furthermore, National research for the Cabinet Office shows that closure of youth

Page 37



clubs have been a factor in the riots in England; in neighbouring Peckham on 8th August 2011,
clashes between police and groups of largely local young people sparked violence that turned into
looting (ref: The August Riots in England, understanding the motivations of young people).

Lewisham Council’s Children and Young Peoples Plan (CYPP) 2012-15 states its vision as “Together
with families, we will improve the lives and life chances of the children and young people in
Lewisham” and its priorities include reducing childhood obesity, teenage conceptions, substance
misuse, anti—social behaviour and youth crime, ensuring children and young people access culture,
sport, leisure and play activities. Fine, but how, without these places?

Can | remind you that Lewisham also says it will “continue to put a high priority on the provision of
play areas ...”.

You probably don’t need reminding that there have been two youth murders in our area (SE4) in the
last month. Any decision to remove such community facilities, that are primarily of benefit to
children and young people, will be fuelling the fire for future violence that is borne out of
communities that are fearful and broken.

Once these places are gone they are very hard to replace. Please reconsider the options.
Kind regards

Clare Sharpen (MA Cantab, MSc)

Page 38



RESPONSE TO THE PROPOSED CLOSURE/DEMOLITION OF BARNES WALLIS COMMUNITY
FROM JOY (JUST OLDER YOUTH)

As a regular user of the Barnes Wallis Community Centre, JOY wishes to express its concern
and register its protest about the proposed closure/demolition of this Centre.

We are concerned about the effect that this closure will have on the future of JOY classes,
however it is not just about JOY. The centre has been at the heart of the Somerville Estate
for decades and continues to be so. It is still used regularly by a number of groups, including
JOY.

We regard Barnes Wallis as our home. In order to keep costs low JOY has no permanent
base. We use the centre for holding our monthly meetings, training sessions and meeting
people from other projects as well as the classes. We also use the hall for our fundraising
events, which are absolutely vital for JOY to continue to offer affordable, low cost classes.

On Monday mornings, we hold our seated exercise class in the hall, followed by a social
gathering where people can stay, have a cup of tea or coffee and have a chat. This class
attracts 20 plus participants.

On Tuesday afternoons we hold our singing class attended by 15 plus participants.

On Wednesday mornings, we use the foyer of the Centre for meeting up before our weekly
health walk (10 — 15 participants) and our Let’s Dance class uses the hall for its weekly 2
hour class with 20 plus participants.

On Thursday mornings, we use the Centre for our weekly Zumba Gold class with 15 plus
participants and in the afternoon our Craft Club takes place with a smaller group of about 7
— 10 participants.

Over 90 people from JOY use the centre on a weekly basis, many of whom come from the
surrounding area.

It been suggested that we could use the new building at Somerville Adventure Playground,
however it has not been made clear to us the size of the space that would be made available
and whether it could accommodate all the groups from the Centre.

And as for the site at Besson Street, which we are told will have community space, we are
just not confident that this will ever happen. For years it has been on hold and promises
have not been fulfilled.

We do use All Saints Community Centre but it would not be able to house JOY classes that
take place at Barnes Wallis.

And if the Barnes Wallis site is to be developed, how do we know that there will be
adequate community space?

Page 39



We realise that this proposal is based on financial considerations — the Council has to save
millions of pounds, but surely Barnes Wallis is not such a drain on council resources? The
Centre is run by volunteers and makes most of its revenue from rentals such as ours.

What about community? JOY provides an excellent programme of weekly activities for older
adults such as Seated Exercise, Zumba Gold, Crafts, Singing, Dancing as well as other as
other activities at other centres. We run on a shoe string — volunteers run the project. We
have no paid workers apart from our tutors. We have no base or place that we can hold
classes.

Without Barnes Wallis, JOY would struggle to run such a full programme of affordable
classes. Its closure would definitely have ramifications for JOY’s future as well as the other
projects that use the Centre. It provides a lifeline for us and for local people.

Please do not allow this valuable community resource to be destroyed.

Jane Keane (ChairJOY) 30/9/2015

Officer Comments:

There are currently no plans to demolish the shops and offices in Wild Goose Drive,
as the wider regeneration plans for the Somerville Estate are at a very early stage of
development.

The other sites mentioned will be looked at as part of the feasibility study for new
housing on the estate.

The proposal is not to close the Barnes Wallis Centre but to redevelop the site and
include the provision of community space that will take into consideration the views
and needs of users and local residents in shaping the plans. We will also look at how
the other community provision in the area complements any new centre.

Page 40



Brandram Community Centre

[The following represents part of the Brandram Road response to consultation. The full response will
be submitted to Mayor and Cabinet on 11t October 2015]

Representation re closure/redevelopment of Brandram Road Community Centre
(BRCC) 25-33 Brandram Road, London SE13 5ET.

Any proposed redevelopment of the Brandram Road Community Centre (BRCC) and the site on
which it is located is subject to certain extremely sensitive considerations which relate to (a) the
building itself and (b) the site’s location.

The Building
¢ The BRCC (1978) was designed by the award-winning architect, Royston Summers (1931-2012)

Please see the supporting document (1) Royston Summers Obituary RIBA Journal for an overview of
Mr Summers’ work.

Royston Summers lived and worked locally in the Borough of Lewisham, and completed several
projects for Lewisham Council during the 1960s and 1970s.

¢ Buildings designed by Royston Summers are already on Lewisham Council’s Local List

Lewisham Council has only two sites from the 1960s and 1970s on its Local List. A group of seven
houses fronting the Heath designed by Royston Summers, North Several (1963) is one of the two.

Please see supporting document (2) North Several, Blackheath - Local List Appraisal.

¢ Buildings designed by Royston Summers elsewhere in England are subject to statutory
protection

In 2013, Elmbridge Council deemed Riverside Drive (designed 1968-69, built 1971-78) in Esher as a
Conservation Area in its own right. English Heritage wrote: 'an exceptional and probably unique
post-war development [...].'

Please see supporting document (3) Lakeside Drive CA.
e Strong and distinctive architectural detailing

Many of the features of both North Several and Riverside Drive are present on the Brandram Road
Community Centre.

In addition to an intact exterior, its interior also remains very much largely as built.
Please see attached documents for various photographs of the site, both exterior and interior:
(4) BRCC - front elevation

(5) BRCC - side and rear elevation

Page 41



(6) BRCC - windows and wood panelling
(7) BRCC - foyer and flooring
¢ Historic England and The Twentieth Century Society

With all of the above in mind, recent representations regarding BRCC have been made to both
Historic England and The Twentieth Century Society. Lewisham Conservation are likewise being
consulted.

The Site’s Location

The Brandram Road Community Centre is located on an extremely sensitive site in terms of any
proposed redevelopment.

e The BRCC is located within the Blackheath Conservation Area

The site was incorporated into the BCA in April 1978, and the Centre received its planning
permission in October 1978.

Please see supporting documents (8) Brandram Road conservation area notice and

(9) BRCC planning permission notice.

¢ The BRCC is located in a sub division of the BCA denoted a Character Area

It is bordered on two sides by ‘Buildings making a positive contribution’ to the Character Area.
Please see supporting document (10) Blackheath CA Appraisal (pp74-75)

e The BRCC has a Grade Il listed boundary wall

The site is directly adjacent to the Grade Il listed Merchant Taylors’ AlImshouses (listed March 1973),
which have a Grade | listed chapel within their grounds. It is deemed likely that any redevelopment
of the BRCC site would therefore require Listed Building Consent.

The Surveyor of the Merchant Taylors’ Company has requested he be kept informed of any
redevelopment proposals accordingly.

Summary

The Brandram Road Community Centre is a building of quality in terms of both its design and the
materials used. Other buildings designed by its award-winning architect have already been deemed
to merit both protection and recognition.

The building, by virtue of its distinctive yet subservient design with respect to adjacent buildings,
makes a positive contribution to the streetscape in an extremely sensitive location.

Page 42



Cortext | Past masters

OBITUARY

Clever, thorough, multiple medal
winner who lived the contradictory
highs and lows of small practice

w1 ROYSTON susmess went to the RIBA to
collect his medal for Cood Design in Housing
from the housing minister, Tony Benn. After
receiving the award for his Morth Several
terraces in Blackheath, he set off to collect his
dole money, Such are the vagaries of life in &
small architectural practice.

Ry was born in Walwerhampton and atter
Mational Service in the [ntelligence Corps
in Germany, he went 10 Downing College,
Cambridge. Here he read classics for tweo
years before switching to English under Frank
Leswis. He graduated in 1994. L

Adter anunsmscessful six months ag a
traines with John Lewis = sacked for LE|.|1|'||_L
customers what they ought to like — Roy
joined thie Architectural Association Schoal
of Architecture. Five years Later he joined the
architectural department of Comwall County
Council as part of the team responsible for
Mew Cournty Hall in Truro{Grade 2 listed in
1997, designing a range of office furniture that
later went Into commercial production. His

first solo job was a new library in Sahash.

In 1964 he set up his own practice in
Blackheath, London. North Seweral was his
first project 1o attract attention, a group of
terraced houses on the edge of Blackheath,
1t was built by a company formed by the
proposed residents (including Summers) and
had a communal garden, and the carpets, tiling
sanitary ware, kitchen cupboards, bedroom
cupboards etc were identical throughout the
houses 1o save money. The wall panelling was
the same plywood as used in storage booes.
The solar gain was calculated over a weekend
by Ove Arap ina very early use of computers.
The houses cost the same per sq ft as the
council housing of the time, though they were

| much bigger.

Other housing schemes followed, notably

| the prestigious, low -density Lakeside

Dirive, in Esher, Surrey, which won the RIBA
Architecture Award in 1976 and the DoE
bedal and Driploma for Good Design in 1980,
Ry then worked for Lambeth Borough
Council, designing §1-storey tower blocks to

tackbe Brixton's terrible housing problems (the |

exXperience formed the basis of Benefoctors, a
play by his friend and Morth Several neighbour
Michael Frayn), The flats were never buili.

He completed projects for the London
Baorough of Lewisham, including the first-
ever solar-heated council flats, which won
a Chartered Institute of Building Services
commendation for ener gy use in 1992

Refurbishment s also came tohim - a
chateau in France, the Bishop's Palace at
Winchester, a couple of Grade 2 Diocesan
hsouses, restoration and conversion of
Redlynch Park (Grade 2). He worked bricfly in
Qatar and Mallored on houses and his Last job
was a delightful privite house in Bromley.

Rovy was an excellent pl.il'l:lbt‘l:. meticulous
and obsessional, passionate about proportions,
use of space, appropriate materials and always
aiming for the best possible result. And if you
il nast agree with him he would goon arguing
unitil you gave im.

Married in 1957 to Elizabeth Forster, Koy
had four children, who survive hime. As long
a8 It was able, he pursued his paseions of
mountaineering, walking, photography,
and gardening. After along illness he died
peacefully on 3o May 2012 in Bristol =

M‘Lurrﬂlﬂ.lﬂw piecied 1651, Bectod
mmm;mwu Londan
Wialter Factt Freicls, siecied 1850, Anstrthar, Fla

Lol Arths Gear elecied 1650, Hesriptor, Mostoh

hmmgmmnlﬂndlm HMoresch
wmmm percied 1 D45 '.i.l'hw\-'.l
mww;mmm 45, Wikmislow, Chashie

u—u—.(m—ubm_ Cirtistivl, olactead 1 560, ﬁb-m.-rhlq.ﬁ
Rodney Herben Tayiol, miecﬁﬁaﬂudﬂn
illaen Chalereess Trorraon, shecind TR0

[Py — P 15880, Tonbicige, el
Frank Fchiard Wabsrs, miecims 1958, an e
mmm piecied 1055, Megion Cheshim

Bml'.d-hlh'\-Bﬁﬂllnin sected 1940, Kenadm), Cumibna

Princa Jof Beshcp, esecied 1 860, ARrncham, Cheshes
FErTein Fiarey Bohor, skt 1951 o
By Reoysion- Williams, mlected 1842, London
J_frtm,-'yu.n-mum Hﬂ\:l:tn:-'l'illr Hnrell,rl - Pk,

Knneth Afur Coombs, sscted 1956, Liees, Enst Sss

| Tarence Lanceiat Eard stecipd | 356, WorCeter

St Wilare, siocind 1951, Jersey "
Aniharry Cive-Browng-Cave, slected 1 Bod, 5800
Jonn Fredench Gray Berdest, sleciad 1763, Exsex
Raymond John Hey, slecid 1048, Cifo

Kerneth Wi Wislorn pieched 1850, Yo
Exhwin Artfar Mousiiond, siected 1850, Sloke-oe- Tt

g L oo Al siecied 1072, Corora Dal Mar, Calior
memmmm e m:hin'm K
Hmp-uwnamm:mm V@38, London

Ban Herbert Ross, sleched 1865 Budiexgh Salerdon, [
Jcires Fiarihey Snower, slecied 1552, Kanibcrth, Wanwi
i:.m.g-TriEm_mEm elecied 1951, Shatoima, Dors

| Cirve Terry Braahiganm, ﬁuhl-cl'lin .Ja-ra-mmu Wl

mmw ﬁhc!i-d “312 S-I.I-lbl..i'f
et D AN maﬁua_memm sgh. Cuntarion
Hilay Lt whocing 1502, Vichona, Ausiis

Tnomas Baron, skected D61 Fwamm’-‘ﬂaw
H.:n'.H.rur,mimgr ] l'i'5-l ll'rtd: =

[=1% M::L‘l.rdw F-'lzrurnr\-;re- wecied 1855, N5W, Aust
u-,-uw Asana Wies, slecied 1'3!&2 Ean'.lﬁ

Comeus Brerian My, secied 1971, Sransea
Ermest Coopes Wakanson ssecind 1952, Newcastie i

Masrica Jamas Wi horhampton, siected 1954

Tio i than RIS, o i dhesiin oF & masmifeer, phiaas aim
rambarshin senicosSeiba org will delads of ri? of b

VW PIBACIRMAL SO DOTORER

Page 43



vy ebed

Street / Road Name / Number

New King Street The Harp, 2- 4
North Several 107
Pepys Road Church of St Catherine

Pepys Road / Vesta Road Haberdasher's Aske's
Hatcham College (former

17 February 2014

Brief Description
Built in 1897, this is a large and attractive pub that sits facing down Deptford High St
from Evelyn Street. It is astride the two junctions with New King Street and Watergate
wmmmmummm-‘m It makes a

to the

The pub is in an omate classical style with B and is to the
Wlﬂlwﬂlmmﬂp&*mnﬁm‘mmtnmym
which falls to a simple pitched roof to the rear. There are two omate dormers to the
roof with a circular window to one and a tablet of a harp to the other. There is an
mmmmmnmﬂmmmmmm
have de ti and the p reveal a g ns

MToMMhorhmm have been d
into windows but the pediments above the fascias revealing the original locations. All
the original timber windows remain to the upper floors.

This building meets the Local List criteria for local architectural and local historic
interest.

Houses. 1963. By Royston brick and glass. Three
storey, one full-width, floor to ceiling bay of nine lights. Plain brick elevation to side.
of

managed gardens. i
right and j list Mich menlndd:ulnrfunh.ofmmcm
mmmmmmmm
1894 Simple Gothic style church built of rubbh Saint

Catherine is the patron saint of haberdashers. RM1s1sm-mmmm
bomb damage in 1940.

1875 Group of fine Gothic Revival style school buildings in stock brick with red brick

mMMMMNMMMMMMhM

Worshipful C H hers using an given my their member,
mmnm-mmmmmmmu1wmﬂnm
bottom of Road. The statue of Robert Aske in the forecourt is statutorily
listed (Grade Il).

Conservation Area
Deptford High Street Conservation Area

Blackheath Conservation Area

Telegraph Hill Conservation Area

Telegraph Hill Conservation Area

Page 50 of 68



Page 45



T .___m_ :mﬂ__*__.m =._ _1..,._ __.
SRR
mmm:m_ mz_E i :r_ b
il Hi m_:: A
:_ _m_ i it W_mr R m__h.ﬁ_
r_h :: ﬂm“:ﬁﬁ.__?.___.. i

T
e

15 “ﬁ ok ﬁ

_.”_ m HL .. w _-—m_m

Twe Loepasd Cazerre, LITH My 157E
B e il

!H'-I'lr-.
m

il
i =m [Tk
d
....'L
ﬂ
'I-|.l ke v
.-:E“
L ]
ﬂ
P gy
T_
E'h='
=l -,
TOWN AND CCHINTEY
PLAMNING ACTS
L LA O T R OO L
Toes awr. T Frasess damn AT
Ll § e S g i e
(=B ]
n.uu-hq'll-llllllﬂ-‘-llﬁl_—-—.l-:ud
Arean” Fana

Page 46



Tl digly b e Pyl pige 8 ol bl s -
Fewiirr B, Toms g Qo P vty dal TEt)

B e
- )
O = oI N
,;:i_-.\_ |"'-_h.- |.'|.'-\.I]:|.
CE R CFRENT FRIFOSAL T THE

SORCHMEH OUmCI.  FE e

E%:JI\DCNEICHCH...EH
LEWISHAM

FLAMRING CEPRRTMENT

1 Hall ha rizas

Fa sy Gopes
Lo SEHS 4F

til gy O =F3 000 e

T arerton Sumaais
RIS R ey e

27 OCT 1578

Town sl Lo ary Flanaing Aot 1876

Tewr are Cinrdrp Pdgenrny Geamil Bpgaidlirs 1503

Plaraing peTLasion o desmed 1 be granied by ibs Secimiary of Smie b the B roamend
e e wwres Begdntiane loe e Izlkeming dess bpwanr —

Cuin of Aplication gl Lesssbes 1577

Plar Megl olared Ma.

R

ity e

iﬁ

!i

i
EE E

Mr

budrg

dpeeiting
irazy weiinl

I

£
i

|

it
i

WM Wiowt glan Mo LAY eed 1%

al ﬂ:;—_'_ll-l‘i
:ﬂ h;:ﬂ.pll—llr
e from Fludywer Blawrly

N1 vl

Bl Mlemleg S0 or

FEITL M i eialmmio] B we) v Tl |0 B Pl Lo o o wgds o e 8 B el iy

e

i B D Aok Dip CD AFLE FRTF Barcagh Flaeaing Diheoe:

Page 47



Woluntary Sector Accommaodation - Response to consultation

As part of the further consultation on proposed closures and redevelopments of community centres, we would like to inclede information on current centre
activities and users, along with your response in the report back to Safer Stronger Select Committee and Mayor and Cabinet.

Community Centre: BRANDRAM ROAD COMMUNITY CENTRE
Day Group/ user Type of session/ activity Number of | Types of users Session feesf charges Additional
usersf requirements;’
attendeeas user
-
Exompie: Dance fed Lina dancing doss 15 Dider ppopie (oged | £5 per session Some imited
Monday 5] muhility wsers
Monday Drop in club for the owver 6Fs An opportunity to mest Mo regular | Age 60 + Free to attend Some limited
your neighbours, share atendess mobility users
interests and meet new as yet
friemds.
Monday Commumnity Events: Indian Head Massage 10 Age 18 and owver | Free to attend Free parking at
Workshop. Learn a simple the centre
Gaye Sturrock - Tutor of the routine that is highly makes a
London Centre of Indian effective in combatting classfevent
Champissage Inmternational stress. This class gives you more
the chance to try out the appealing and
seated massage (through means that
clothes) of the shoulders more peocple
head & neck. can attend.
4 weeks
Monday Davies School of Dance Ballet & Tap - Established 11 Ages 3- 16 £4 per session Parking is very
for over 20 years. Davies convenient as
Ann Davies School of Dance offers a . uiprment
range of dance classes for Fees are deliberately kept low ﬁ:Edps to be
children of school age, to enable children from a carried in. It's
ranging from Tap & Ballet wide range of backgrounds to | also very

Q¥ abed




61 abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

to Street Dance. Ann
Davies has trained with the
Royal Ballet & is a fully
qualified & experienced
teacher. Examinations in
IDTA offered with a 100%
pass rate. Ewvery year your
child will perform on our
annual show designed to
showcase their skills &
build their confidence.
Past pupils have moved on
to further study at the Brits
& have even performed in
West End shows.

attend. Free trial sessions are
offered along with free classes
during the lead up to the
students taking their dance

exams.

useful for
parents and
children.

Monday

Yoga — Hatha - All Levels

Sarah Hanks (18.45)

A class that focuses on
improving well-being
physical and

mental. Physical work
benefits, stability, mobility
and strength. Classes
always include a period of
meditation and rest.
People often begin yoga as
they have an injury or
problem, i.e. a bad

back. Yoga has been
demonstrated in a NHS and
British Wheel of Yoga study
to benefit back pain.

16

Wide range of
ages, 18-70's.
Mixed gender.

£12 per class or £7 for

concessions.

(this is the same as doing a
yoga class at a local authority
gym)

Parking is a
premium for
all regular user
groups of
Brandram Hall




0G abed

Valuntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

Monday

Yoga For You

Sarah Hanks (20.00]

Postures in a flowing
sequence YOGA Level 2. A
class that focuses on
improving well-being
physical and

mental. Physical work
benefits, stability, mobility
and strength. Classes
always include a peried of
meditation and rest.
Fundraiser in Jan 2015 for
Lewisham Foodbank
TRessel Trust and raised
£L50+

10

Wide range of
ages, 18-T0rs.

Mixed gender.

£12 per class or £7 for

CONCESSIONS

(this is the same as doing a

yoga class at a local authority

gym)

Parking is a
premium for
all regular user
groups of
Brandram Hall

Tuesday

Theatre Tots

Lawra Sydonis

Theatre tots offers drama
session for early years
children and their parents
and carers. Following
themes and using songs,
dance and stories Theatre
tots explores early
imaginations.

The storage in the hall
makes it possible for us to
store equiprment which is a
rare bonus for any users.
The hall is very well kept
with baby change,
committee room, equipped
kitchen, stair gates and

15
children
and their
carers

Azes0-5

£6 per class

Theatre Tots offers siblings
10% discount and we are
inclusive to children with
additional needs. 5o if a child
neads support we cover the

cost to enable them to join in

In the past this has included
blind, deaf children as well as
children in the autistic

spectrum.

The parking is
a big draw for
our customers
—from a safety
and
ConVenience
point of view.
Wealso have a
few users with
additiona
needs and the
parking
enables them
to partake.




LG 8bed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

small garden area.

Tuesday Theatre Tots Theatre tots offers drama 1% Agez (-5 £6 per class The parking is
session for early years children a big draw for
Lawra Sydonie children and their parents and their Theatre Tots offers siblings our customers
and carers. Following CATErs 10% discount and we are —from a safety
themes and using songs, inclusive to children with and
dance and stories Theatre additional needs. 3o if a child | conwvenience
tots explores early needs support we cover the point of view.
imaginations. cost to enable them to join in. | We also have a
The storage in the hall In the past this has included few users with
makes it possible for us to blind, deaf children as well as | additiona
store equipment which is 2 children in the autistic needs and the
rare bonus for any users. spectrum. parking
The hall is very well kept enables them
with baby change, to partake.
committes rocm, equipped
kitchen, stair gates and
small garden area.
Tuesday Helen O'Grady Drama The prime aim of the 45 Ages 5-18 £8.50, with concessions for MN/A
Acaderny Academy as well as Children siblings.
dewveloping creative skills, is | spread
MNeil I¥Gorman to use drama to develop 3Cross We also offer scholarship
the vital life skills children three one places to local schools for
need in order to have the hour time pupils they feel would benefit,
best possible start im life. slots. but would otherwise be
We have been developing unable to afford it.
their confidence, self-
esteem £ communication
skills for nearly 20 years at
Brandram Road
Community Centre
Tuesday Filates Intermediate/Advanced. 20 Age 20— 80+ £17 per session Car park iz

Imiprowves health & well-

wvery useful for




2G abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

Micole Gatter

being for all ages,
Particularly those suffering
from lomg-term back/neck
pain £ can also be
successful in helping with
chronic conditions such as
M35, Asthma & Hyper
Maobility, potentially
reducing the demand on
the MHS. Awvaluable
service for the elderly,
helping to remain active &
improve strength, mobility,
independence & building 2
network of friends. Pilates
is excellent for both
physical & mental
wellbeing for the
Community

clients whio
have mobility
problems as
space to park
iz hard to find
putside and
close to the
Community
centre

Wednesday

Mountain of the Lord"s House
Prayer Meeting

Inter-denominational
ministry committed to
helping people in positive
ways through Evangelism,
to pray & daily cutreach:.
Bringing youth together,
teaching the importance of
owe, respect for
themselves & their
parents. Marriages: Dealing
with marital problems
through counselling.
Teaching parents how to
relate with their children,

18

10 women
B men
Agzes 35 — 54

Free of charge

Free parking
SPECE 15 Very
valuable for
those who
have very little
rmomney




€G abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

especially those in their
teens. Give hope to the
hopeless, teaching
prisoners to become
responsible citizens, by
istening to their views of
what lead them to commit
a crime. Help bring them
back to Christ & reconciling
them with their families.

Wednesday Davies School of Dance Ballet & Tap - Established 16 Ages 3-16 f4 per session Parking is wery

for over 20 years. Davies convenient as
Ann Davies School of Dance offers a Fees are deliberately kept low | @Quipment

ra |_'|gE of dance classes for to enable children from a neeﬁs tFl be
children of school age, ) camied in. lt's
ranging from Tap 8. Ballet wide range of backgrounds to also very
to Street Dance. Ann attend. Free trial sessions are | -eful for
Davies has trained with the offered along with free classes | parents and
Royal Ballet & iz a fully during the lead up to the children.
qualified & experienced students taking their dance
teacher. Examinations in R
|IDTA offered with a 100%
pass rate. Every year your
child will perform on ocuwr
annual show designed to
showcase their skills &
bwild their confidence.
Past pupils have moved on
to further study at the Brits
£ have even performed in
‘West End shows.

Wednesday Hatha Yoga Ideal for beginners. A class | 20 Wide range of £12 per class or £7 for Parking is a

that foecuses on improving

ages, 15-70rs.

CONCessions

premium for




G abed

Woluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to censultation

Sarah Hanks

well-being physical and
mental. Physical work
benefits, stability, mobility
and strength. Classes
always include a pericd of
meditation and rest.
People often begin yoga as
they have an injury or
problem, ie. a bad

back. Yoga has been
demonstrated in a2 NHS and
British Wheel of Yoga study
to benefit back pain.
Fundraiser im Jam 2015 for
Lewisham Foodbank
TReszel Trust and raized
£5E0+

Mized gender.

(this is the same as doing a
yoga class at a local authority

gym|

gll regular user
groups of
Brandram Hall

Thursday

Home Education

Emma Kendall

This group has besn
meeting at Brandram Road
Community Centre for
many years. By having the
uze of the small room as
well as the main hall the
younger & older children
can be catered for. Home
Educated children benefit
from having a social venue
to meet. Families of young
ones feel the outside space
is safe as it is enclosed &
many cutside activities
have taken place. Flanting,
growing flowers, forest

10 families
[mimirmum

)

Azerange - 11

£3 per family (no concessions,
no free places

The cutside
enclosed space
provides
invaluable
benefits for
the children's
educaticn and
safety.




GG abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

skills, worm-digs to name
but a few of the many
great educaticnal
experiences when an
outside space is available.
Somie children have been
attending for many years
zo the regular meeting
provides a social hub for
friendship & learning
activities plus valuable
discussion time with other

children.

Thursday Theatre Tots Theatre tots offers drama 15 Ages 0 -5 f6 per class The parking is
session for early years chilldren a big draw for

Lawra Sydonie children and their parents and their Theatre Tots offers siblings our customers

and carers. Following CATErS 10% discount and we are —from a safety
themes and using songs, inclusive to children with and
dance and stories Theatre additional needs. 5o if a child | convenience
tots explores early needs support we cover the point of view.
imaginations. cost to enable them to joinin. | We also have a
The storage in the hall I the past this has included few users with
makes it possible for us to blind, deaf children as well as | additiona
store equipment which is a children in the autistic needs and the
rare bonus for any users. spectrum. parking
The hall is very well kept enables them
with baby change, to partake.
committes room, equipped
kitchen, stair gates and
zmall garden area.

Thursday Filates Intermediate/Advanced. 20 Ages 20— B0+ £12 per session Car park is
Improves health & well- very useful for

MNicole Gatter being for all ages, clients who




9G abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

Particularly those suffering
from long-term back/neck
pain £ can also be
successful in helping with

have mobility
problems as

space to park
iz hard to find

chirgnic conditions such as outside and
M5, Asthma & Hyper close to the
Mability, potentially COMMMLUNITY
reducing the demand on centre
the NH5. Awvaluable
service for the elderly,
helping to remain active &
improve strength, mobility,
independence & building 2
network of friends. Pilates
is excellent for both
phiysical & mental
wellbeing for the
CoMmmunity

Friday Theatre Tots Theatre tots offers drama 15 Ages0-5 £6 per class The parking is
session for early years children a big draw for

Lawra Sydonis children and their parents and their Theatre Tots offers siblings our customers

and carers. Following CArErs 10% discount and we are —from a safety

themess and using songs,
dance and stories Theatre
tots explores early
imaginations.

The storage in the hall
miakes it possible for us to
store equiprment which is a
rare bonus for any users.
The hall is very well kept
with baby change,
committee room, equipped

inclusive to children with
additional needs. 3o if a child
needs support we cover the

cost to enable them to join in.

In the past this has included
blind, deaf children as well as
children in the autistic

spectrum.

and
COnVenience
point of view.
We also have a
few users with
additiona
needs and the
parking
enables them
to partake.




1G abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

kitchen, stair gates and
smazll garden area.

Friday Murmnmy & Baby Yoga — New To help mums regain 15-20 Mummies ages | £69 for & sessions used over a | Space for
Born to pre-crawling. strength & muscle tone. Mummiss | 18 —45 Babies | flexible 7 week course. buggies or
Sensory work for your little | and 15 -20 | range from 4 parking
Julie Adam one through laughter, song | Babies weeks to 9 £11 50 per class facilities
& play. Improve digestion [currently | mionths. needed for
for both Mummy and Baby. | 20in this Concession rate: offered to Mum's with
'WE finish with a period of group die Mixed Ethnic low imcome households. back/weak
relaxation followed by a to the new | group £42 for the course. £6 per abdominal
well earnt cup of tea & the | baby class muscles.
opportunity to meet the boom!)
commumnity of Mew Mums Free places available
in the Blackheath,
Lewisham, Hither Green &
Lee area
Friday Gardening Project Drop in for total beginners | No regular Free to attend
to the experienced. Help attendess
The Local Compunity to grow a variety of flowers | as yet
& vegetables for each
season & share your
expertise of gardening with
others to pick up tips to
help gain knowledge.
Friday Restorative Yoga Thesze well supported 10-12 Wide range of £20 which includes fresh Accessible
poses allow you to linger students ages, from 16 — | soup, bread + butter after parking
Julie Adam quiethy for a time & assist T+ class. facilities
your parasympathetic and needed

sympathetic nervous
system to reduce stress
evels & support the
healing and nurturing
process. WE finish with

Mixed gender
class

Concession rate: £10

Free places available




gG abed

Waoluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

soup & the opportunity to
get to know you yoga
community in the area.
Suitable for everyone.

Friday

Congquerors Covenant Saints
Ministries — Faith Group

Victor Charles-Ayuto

Im these days of fimancial
stresses & desp
depression, help &
encouragement is one of
the best things that we can
do for each other. We seek
fresh ideas on how to help
our community to help
each other. We seek fresh
ideas on how to help our
community to help families
& individuals. A great deal
of outreach happens to
help people in a varisty of

Ways.

A Little about Us: We are
committed to helping each
other grow im Our Christian
faith and in cur worship
and service of God. We
believe that peocple need
Jesus and as a church we
have found that faith in
him makes a difference in

10-15

Wide range of
ages

Mo Charge but requested
donations
from well wishers

The car park is
essential for
wheel chair
users and
makes getting
into the hall a
lot easier.




6S abed

Woluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

our everyday lives.

Our Vision: To be a chiurch
that demonstrates the
reality of God's love and
power 5o that we can
impact the community
around us and the world.

Friday

Sound Bath

MNicola Kelly

A beautiful deep
mieditation experience that
uzes ancient instruments
from arcund the world.
This unigque experience can
help you release stress and
feel more energised
happier and uplifted.

Mo regular
attendeeas
as yet

£10 per class

Carparkiza
bonus

Friday

Sound Therapy

Sarah Hanks

Suitable for everyone. A2
hour session of sound
therapy where people have
the opportunity to relas. It
is especially helpful to
those who feel stressed
and ower whelmed and
want to make a positive
change in their mind set.
Regular attenders report
that it improves sleep,
reduces anxiety and stress.

20

Wide range of
ages, 18-70r's.
Mixed gender.

Concession is £15

ino free places as they are not

viable)

Parking is a
premium for
all regular user
groups of
Brandram Hall

Saturday

Community Yoga

This class is for all &
focuses on iMmproving

g-1&
students

Wide range of
ages from 16—

£12 drop in fee. No pre-

bocking required

Accessible
parking




09 abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

Julie Adam flexibility & developing T+ facilities
strength. We finish with a Session rate: £7 needed
period of desp relasation. Mixed gender
Suitable for everyone! This class Free places available
ovely group ranges from
16 — 70+ years in age.

Saturday Pregmancy Yoga Bring energy, peace & 14-16 Age ranges £60 for 5 sessions with flexible | Accessible
balance imto your students from 15— 45+ 7 weeks to use, parking
Julie Adam pregnancy & prepare for Mixed ethnic facilities
the birth of you baby. This Eroup Concession rate: £35 for 5 needed as
owely class offers you the sessions with a flexible 7 students
opportunity to meet other weeks to use. preznant
presnant ladies in your students
community & the support attend classes
that this can offer! from 12715
weeks and up
to and
including 41 +
b wesks
pregnant
Saturday Active Birthing Workshop with | These one-off two hour Mazimum | 183 —45+ £90 for a one-off two howr Accessible
partners sessions are designed to 5 couples SESSion parking

help prepare you & your Mixzed Ethnic facilities

Julie Adam birthing partner for labour group Concession rate: £35 needed as
£ thie birth of your baby in students
a fum & informative way. Free places available attend from 32
Cowvering active birthing weeks and up
positions, breathing, to and
visualization & massage including 40
techniques & ways your weeks
partner can support you pregnant
through labouwr.

Saturday Children's Parties / Events This space is regularly used | Often full All ages attend In the past parties went on The car park is




L9 8bed

Valuntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

and is ideal for children’s use of as children's until late at weekends, but a great help

parties. People love the halls parties brings niow parties stop at Gpm. This | when bringing

fact that the hall is not too | capacity families and has been in place for the last im anything

big or too small and has a friends year or 50 and has ensured from cars for

very welcoming feel together. better relationships with the the party or

because of this. neighbours living in close event.
proximity to Brandram Hall.

Saturday Charity fund raising events This time is used |where All ages. The outside
diary permits) for fund space provides
raising events for charities, A time for the extra
and have been to raise cormmunity to possibilities for
money for British Heart help others less fund raising
Foundation & Dementia fortunate than ideas.

UK, and have included themselves,

events for parents with providing a

children to enjoy. Events great

such as painting cornmunity

competitions have taken Spirit.

place that provides some

entertainment and a

meeting place for loca

residents.

Sunday Congquerors Covenant 5aints In these days of financial 20-25 Wide range of Mo Charge but requested The car park is

Minsistries stresses & deep ages donations from well wishers essential for

depression, help & wheel chair
Victor Charles-Ayuto users and

encouragement is one of
the best things that we can
do for each other. We seek
fresh ideas on how to help
our community to help

each other. We sesk fresh

makes getting
imto the hall a
lot easier.




29 abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

ideas on how to help our
community to help families
Eindividuals. A great deal
of outreach happens to
help people in a variety of
ways. A Little about Us:
We are committed to
helping each other grow in
Owr Christian faith and in
our worship and service of
God. We believe that
people need lesus and as a
chiurch we have found that
faith im him makes a
difference im cur everyday

ives.

Owr Vision: To be a church
that demonstrates the
reality of God's lowve and
power so that we can
impact the community
around us and the world.

Sunday

Faith Group

Andre Gabriel

This welcoming Faith
Group has been meeting at
this venue for 30 years.
Repular members pay a
small subscription to cover
thie hall hire costs.

10 regular
members

Mixed ages
young to elderhy

Guests are welcomed for free.

The car park is
essential for
wheel chair
users and
makes getting
imto the hall a
lot easier.




€9 abed

Woluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

Sunday Tamil Community & Youwth We organise sports 10—-25on | Parents and Members are not charged for ‘Valuable
Centre Arts & Sports Activities | activities, postry & chess norma children attending s=ssions. outdoor sports
competitions every year. days activity space
Alfred Venthakone We fortnightly meet on And But some senior members is available at
Sundays to discuss issues fore on contribute towards hiring the Brandram
that affect the community | special Road
with a professional or days hall on Sundays Commumnity
experienced person Centre
present. Such as the
importance of parents
understanding their
children in the newly
adopted environment,
women's education &
EMpowerment, parenting,
physical & mental health
issues.
Sunday Mew Life World Apostolic This is 3 multi-cultural 15-20+ 10 females Mo chargs Some
Church Church that regularly uses S0Me £ 5—10 males members use
the centre to serve the Eh'll:.:lren tth car. park
Jacob Abraham [varies) Young to which is o
community. The Centre has elderly COnvEniemE

been & conduit in helping
us connect with loca
community, develop &
build positive relationships.
Members greatly value the
services, these include
spreading the Gospel of
JESUS CHRIST, Revival
Concerts and opportunities




9 abed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

for young people to learn &
practice musical skills. We
also organise and deliver
Bible studies for all the

Community.

Sunday

Chakradance

Christine Wykes-Driver

Free style Dance
Mednation to Music.
CHAKRADAMNCE is a dance
practice for body and soul.
It's & powerful experience
that will free and energize
wou. It combines
spontaneous dance, guided
imagery and music to
promote that wonderfu
state of calm vitality known
as “wellbeing”.

Mo regular
attendees
as yet

£10 per class
Concessions £5

Wheel chair
USErS are
welcome for
this event and
the use of the
car park is very
helpful




Champion Hall

Thank you for your time recently. | have sent the template of usage back to Evette McDonald plus a
copy in the post.

| would just like to add that from December we will have a recognised martial arts group using the
hall also. | would like consideration to be given to Champion Hall as an important part of Sydenham
life. Apart from the usage shown the hall is widely booked on a Saturday and Sunday, with Kumon
teaching on a Saturday morning and Greater Grace Church on a Sunday with events in the afternoon
and evening for birthdays/christenings etc.

We would like to look to paying a rental for use of the hall and would be grateful if this would be
possible and, if it is, how much we would need to be.

Thank you for your help and if you need any further information please let me know.

Mo Sheahan

for Champion Hall

Page 65



Community Centre: ___Champion Hall

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ Additional requirements/
activity attendees charges user restrictions
Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users
Sunday Greater Grace Faith Group 40-50 Varied ages and types Donations
Church from 4-80. Separate
classes within the
service for children
Monday, Angel face pre Nursery 20-30 Under 5 for pre school A lot of funding
Wednesday, school After school varies but £30 for the
Thursday, day
Friday
Monday, Sydenham Dance 20-30 25-70 years old £7.50 for the
Wednesday Dance centre evening
Tuesday, Friday, | Kumon centre 20-30 Mainly under 10s In line with
Saturday teaching kumon prices
Tuesday Tea dance Drop in 10 OAPs/ disabled but all £1.50
welcome
Tuesday Greater Grace Prayer 20/30 Donations
prayer group
Thursday Badminton Sport Approx 8-10

Q9 abed




Evelyn Community Centre

From FORVIL

We are a service group that caters for the Vietnamese and Chinese community on the Evelyn estate
and across London; we have over 100 users at present attending Evelyn. We operate 5 days a week
Monday-Friday and hold a luncheon club for our community on a Thursday and Friday. On these
days we are able to have many different services come and educate a lot of our users. Our concern is
that if the centre was taken away from us, there would be know where for our elderly and other
Vietnamese and Chinese user group go to access the support we provide. We are a community that
learn and trust one another and have come to rely on us to help them with very pressing matters
and private matters. Most of our service users trust us and come to our luncheon club not only to
socialise but to find out life changing information they might otherwise not have been able to
access. We work closely with several organisations in Lewisham and other boroughs and through
this many of our users now have knowledge that could potentially, help them have a better quality
of life. We have the local optician come in and check our member’s eyes, we have Lewisham health
team come and check members health i.e. blood pressure, heart, diabetes, cholesterol levels etc.
We also have the local fire brigade come and give demonstrations on how to check their smoke
alarms, and also ensure they know who to call in case of a fire. The local police also come in and
educate user groups on how to report a crime and how to keep themselves safe. We have the local
dieticians come and educate them on healthy lifestyles. We help our user groups with housing
issues, employment issues and offer English language sessions. We have a keep fit class every Friday
afternoon that is not only open to the Vietnamese and Chinese community but to all the community
which is growing in numbers week by week and every other Thursday we offer classes for the
community residents who’s mobility is poor, to do chair aerobics. Many of our users rely on us to
help them with their day to day living as without us they would have no one to turn to. We pride
ourselves on being a central hub for our Evelyn community Vietnamese and Chinese residents who
have over the years become reliant on use to give them the opportunity to not live isolated but be
part of a group where they feel they belong to. We are working in a community centre with other
user groups within the centre allowing us to branch out. The loss of this centre would deeply effect
not only the users of our group but ourselves in being able to accommodate and facilitate the
services we offer and provide.

Page 67



To whom it concern,

| have been lead to believe Evelyn Community Centre is up for consideration in the redevelopment
of a smaller centre and possibility of housing. You only have to look outside the centres doors to see
the vast array of housing comprising of high rise, flats and houses. | was moved to Evelyn Community
Centre nearly a year ago from another centre that was beyond economical repair which become too
dangerous for user groups to use. Over this time at Evelyn my client list has grown. When this first
occurred | was worried that | would lose my user group, but they faithfully moved with me. | run two
classes a week on Monday and Wednesday evenings from 18:30-21:30. My target group is the
youngsters and youths keeping them off the streets, and showing them a different way to channel
their energy into a focused disciplined sport. Teaching self- defence through karate has been proven
to help improve and develop confidence, co-ordination, concentration and discipline in both adults
and children. I run classes for children and adults, and have enjoyed working within the community.
Being moved once had a knock on effect as | did lose a small percentage of my students and have
had to build it back up, but fortunately being moved to Evelyn Community Centre has had a positive
impact on my services, giving me the opportunity to pass on not only a skill i learnt but a way of life.

Yours Sincerely
Felix Nelson

(Newcross Karate Academy)

Page 68



Dear sir/madam
Background Information:

My name is Keith and | am the chair person for Evelyn Tenants and Residents Associations (E.T.R.A). |
took this post on after the late Julia Donovan sadly passed away last year who we sadly miss; we are
funded by Lewisham Tenets Levy (LTF).

I am involved with:

The Evelyn coordinating group

MET police safer neighbourhood team and local PCSO’S

The ASB team,

The scrutiny group along with Tepas

As well as many other departments within Lewisham and Lewisham Homes.

Our aims as a TRNA is to serve and help within the local community, with housing, block and estate
issues, supporting tenants residents and lease holders with their issues and problems, also facilited
within the TRNA meetings. Sourcing information for all of the above, and pointing them to the right
departments or services, and offering ongoing support where needed along with supporting the
elderly Re:f housing and OT. Who we co-work with within the centre are all groups as required in a
supporting role along with grant applications and more. | would like to point out that Sharrone
Harvey has been very helpful and instrumental in ensuring that the centre is being used to its full
potential along with moving three displaced user groups to within this centre increasing its usage
providing more facilities for the local community. Due to a reduction of the number of caretakers
from 7-3 workers myself and others on a voluntary basis help as we can, within and outside of the
building and at times with some financial costs to ourselves i.e. cleaning materials and products,
maintaining the cleanliness of the kitchen along with the cooker, cooker hood and other general
hygiene matters within the kitchen and on occasions dust and mopping the main hall floors. If it was
deemed that the centre was to go it would have a devastating impact on the community and the
services it provides within that said community including childcare. It was suggested that a smaller
building within a new development may be under consideration by yourselves, with the increase
usage of the centre a smaller centre would not suit purpose as the church group regularly fills the
hall to near capacity, similarly with the self defence group and other user groups within the centre. |
thank you for your time and hope this will help you to allow all the groups and users of this
community centre to continue helping and serving the community as it has done for many years.

Yours Sincerely

Keith chairperson of ETRA

Page 69



BunnyHop Day Nursery, 1 Kingfisher Square Deptford London SE8 5TW

Re: Voluntary Sector Accommodation- Response to the consultation on proposed closures and
Redevelopment of community centres.

Dear Mayor and Cabinet,

Background information: We are a private day nursery operating Monday-Friday 08:00-18:00 hours.
We cater for children aged 2yrs -5yrs, 50 weeks of the year situated within Evelyn Community
Centre. We have been serving the community for over 20 years, offering full-time and part-time
spaces for children that have come from many multi-cultural backgrounds. At present we have 36
children and families attending BunnyHops, over half of our children are currently in receipt of the
free 15 hours nursery place. This is a clear indicator that the need for a nursery is very high. We work
alongside several other agencies within Lewisham borough, and continue our rapport with them on
a daily basis. The community centre where we are situated is in the heart of a community, where
several high rise housing, lower lever flats and houses are situated. 95% of our families live in the
immediate area and many come from disadvantage backgrounds. We work alongside Local
authorities where many of our parents have links with, such as social services as some of our
children are on the ‘at risk register’, or family members having mental health issues, or children that
are in care system. Due to the volume of high rise flats and houses we constantly have a waiting list
as parents/carers are in desperate need for good quality child care. The impact of the centre closing
would mean a huge chunk of a growing community gone, and children left without any form of
childcare/education in the early years. By the nursery taking children from the age of 2 yrs.” We can
identify early on of any additional needs a child might have. We currently have 12 children that have
Special Educational Needs, and are now getting the correct help and support needed for them and
their families. The government have brought forward plans to double free childcare for working
parents, to support working families with the costs of childcare, and without us already offering
affordable childcare, this would drastically decreases the numbers of parents actively looking for
employment or are currently in higher education, as childcare is so sought after in this area. We are
in a community centre that is used by so many different cultural groups on week days and weekends
for private hire and for regular users. There are roughly eight user groups actively using the centre
but working in partnership with one another.

Yours Sincerely

Natasha Ricketts (Manager)

Page 70



RE: EVELYN COMMUNITY CENTRE CONSULTATION MEETING

MONDAY, 215" SEPTEMBER 2015 — 5:00 TO 6:15 PM.

Manifesto of Mount Carmel Church

The foundation of this church is built upon the inspiration of Jesus Christ, where a collective group of
worshipers shares fellowship within Evelyn Community Centre.

Mount Carmel Church was fortunate to take up residency through Lewisham Council at Scotney Hall, New
cross, Sharratt Street in the 1980’s. The nature of Mount Carmel Church today and when it was based on
Sharratt Street, Scotney Hall was to provide a place of worship for people within the community, offering
support to all who may be facing difficulties within their life’s, provide a place for children of all ages a
warm and friendly Sunday school environment, to share creative activities with other children, to develop
their understanding of good choices to make in life and support the importance for them to attend
school.

The community did participate in much of the Church service and special occasions over the years where
food was also provided as a sense of giving to all that came. Unfortunately, due to a major water leak,
leaving the main hall in a bad disrepair state in November 2014, we were offered a short term Tenancy at
Evelyn Community centre on the 2" of December 2014.

The members of Mount Carmel Church embraced this change and were able to settle in Evelyn
Community Hall very quickly. However, there are some underling matters to be resolved, but we have
adapted to the current location and the community in like manner when located at Scotney Hall. People
have visited from the community and commented on how they enjoyed the service and just wanted to
come in and listen, which is always welcomed.

There are elderly members who are within the borough and the community area which find this location
very accessible, where they are able to share a meal and have a sense of family unity as some live on
their own.

Mount Carmel Apostolic Church Objective:

In a community where there are many families and people with many financial problems, fragile sense of
well being, Mount Carmel offers a place for all to come and have rest from the many challenges people
face individually or as a community and can help towards the progression of a peaceful well being.

Mount Carmel Apostolic Church Aim:

We have much passion to extend the foundation of Mount Carmel Church to more of the
community and continue to co-operate with the other user groups within the centre, so that lives in
the surrounding area can benefit from this good support network and contribute to the stability of
the community.

Mount Carmel Apostolic Church & Evelyn Community centre Future plans:

Page 71



Following the meeting on the 215t of September 2015, we welcome the idea to develop the
community centre, as we appreciate the need for more housing within the Lewisham borough, but
see the vital importance for the community centre to remain.

The centre most certainly could benefit from an upgrade to improve the lighting where currently
two thirds of the lights are not in operation. The oven is in a hazardous disrepair state, lack of
storage space for all user groups and general wear and tear throughout the hall.

Therefore, should the decision be made to redevelop the community centre with Housing , we
would strongly request that the premises is not down sized, as with more housing this would result
in more residents in need of the centre.

We anticipate that this manifesto will be taken into consideration when future plans for Evelyn
Community centre is made.

Page 72



Ewart Road Club House

17t September 2015

Ms Liz Dart
Lewisham Borough Council

Dear Ms Dart
Ewart Road Community Clubhouse

| am writing this letter in regards to the recent threat of closure and
redevelopment of our estate clubhouse.

| am the Chair of Ewart Road Housing Co-operative Ltd and | am raising these
concerns with you on behalf of the Management Committee and the residents of
our estate.

We are deeply troubled and alarmed about the recent proposal by The London
Borough of Lewisham to close our clubhouse with the aim of demolition and
redevelopment of the land. The clubhouse is an integral part of our estate and
our community and we simply cannot afford to lose it.

Residents, local faith groups, other charitable organisations, children’s groups,
sports and well-being as well as residents and the management committee use it.

We have some queries that | hope you are able to answer:

+ It seems that no one has visited the site or discussed this properly with the
co-op: has such a visit occurred?

+ Planning permission was not given to the property next door, so we would
question the probability of getting one for the clubhouse development you
propose

%* | am sure you are aware of the fact that we are a registered social landlord
and that we have just signed a new 5-year agreement to manage the
estate and clubhouse?

+ In the event that our wishes to keep the clubhouse are overruled by LBL,
the Council will still have to provide us with alternative accommodation:
many of our residents are vulnerable and elderly and would find it very
difficult to travel to meetings that are not on the estate.

% If new dwellings are built on the site, it states in your agenda from the
meeting we attended at the town hall on Wednesday 15" July that
Lewisham Homes are interested in managing any new development on our
clubhouse land, (page 98 of your agenda). We would also question this
decision, as we think it is completely inappropriate. We are more than
qualified to manage properties on our own estate and have done so since
we formed as a co-op in 1982.

Page 73



% You also stated that one of the reasons for selling community buildings is
due to the cost to the council of maintaining these buildings. Our
clubhouse does not need your financial support: it generates income, has
a surplus, is managed by a dedicated group of volunteers and is, in our
opinion, self sufficient and not dependent on council funding.

To be quite frank, the co op feel that we have been side-lined and not consulted
in a fully transparent way in terms of these decisions being made on our behalf
that directly affect our residents and wider community, who use our clubhouse for
social and community meetings, events and projects.

The loss of our clubhouse will actually undo many years of work in terms of
community cohesion and tenant relations and we would urge the council to
reconsider this idea, especially in view of the fact that it is a policy of The London
Borough of Lewisham to promote diversity, community care, outreach and
concern for those who are isolated, vulnerable and lonely, in particular the
elderly. The Ewart Road Clubhouse is of paramount importance to people on the
estate and the wider community that are come together in community spirit.

| would be obliged if you would give the time to answer these questions and
concerns we have raised.

| look forward to your reply.

Yours sincerely
Brian Courtney

Chair of Management Committee

Ewart Road Housing Co-operative

Page 74



Sir Steve Bullock
Mayor of Lewisham
Mayor’s Cabinet

Dear Sir
Re: Ewart Road Housing Co-operative Community Clubhouse

| am the Chairperson of the Management Committee for Ewart Road Housing Co-operative
Ltd, and | am writing to you on behalf of the Committee and the Co-operative. We have just
been made aware that our Community Clubhouse is under threat from Housing
Development.

| feel anger that this is even being contemplated. We are a committed group of people who
have worked hard over the years to keep our estate well maintained and our residents
happy. The clubhouse is the central meeting place for our committee and residents, the
hub of our estate.

Whilst it is true that the clubhouse has not been used to its full potential recently, we have
been lucky enough to get on board a young woman who has the energy, confidence and
commitment to get the clubhouse running more like it used to be. Apart from our monthly
and quarterly meetings, we have TMO Liaison meetings with the other co-operative in the
borough, we hold table sales monthly and we have Bingo sessions starting on 23" July, with
coffee mornings starting on 11t August. We also have a few faith groups who use the space
for their prayer meetings. These people also belong to the community. Our problem has
been that people are unaware of our clubhouse or its location. This is about to change and
we had already started working on a comprehensive plan for our community clubhouse
when we heard about the council’s latest plans.

We have met with a representative of Community Connections wo gave a us a lot of advice
and is committed to supporting us in the future. She informed us that there is a need for our
clubhouse as the Forest Hill and Catford areas do not have a community centre/clubhouse
and she has given us connections to organisations that would be interested in our space.
This makes it an asset to the community as this area will be non-profit making. Our next
step once this side is set up would be to concentrate on the private sector to make the
Clubhouse financially self-sufficient, so the upkeep of the clubhouse will come out of the
profit and not be a burden on the council.

We are in the process of designing flyers and posters to be distributed ahead of the two
events mentioned above and to advertise other events which we are in the process of
arranging.

We are Registered Social Landlords. | want to know if you really can strip us of this asset? Is

the council legally entitled to destroy part of our community? It is certainly not morally
entitled.

Page 75



Our members are working extremely hard to make our community clubhouse a success for
the estate and the wider community, and will continue to do so. In the event that all this is
of no avail, | would like to know what the council will provide us with as an alternative to
our community centre. Also, is our estate office under threat as well?

Some of us will be attending your meeting on Wednesday evening and trust you will be able
to read this letter and the accompanying draft Plan for our Community Clubhouse before
the meeting. We are determined to keep our community clubhouse for the community and
will work unceasingly to that end.

Yours faithfully
Brian Courtney
Chair

on behalf of Ewart Road Housing Co-operative Ltd
and the Management Committee (Enc)

Page 76



]/ @bed

Honor Oak Community Centre

Community Centre: _ Honor Oak Centre

Type of session/

Number of users/

Session fees/

Additional requirements/

Day ST ) e activity attendees s E e charges user restrictions
Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users
Tuesdays Mini Drama Drama for kids 10 children 3-11 £5 per session NA

0

Community Centre: __Honor Oak Community Centre

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ Additional requirements/
activity attendees charges user restrictions
Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users

Friday

Grace Church
Brockley

Toddler Group

Variable (15 — 40)

Parents and pre school
children

£1 per session

We use the kitchen,
créche/lounge rooms and
the outside area




Trustees

Honor Oak community Association (HOCA)

30 September 2015

Dear Ms

Honor Oak Community Association (HOCA) - voluntary sector accommodation
consultation response.

HOCA welcomes the opportunity to respond this consultation on voluntary sector
accommodation.

Our aims
The aims of HOCA are:

to promote the benefit of the inhabitants of the area of benefit without distinction of sex,
sexual orientation, age, disability, nationality, race or of political, religious or other
opinions,

by associating together the said inhabitants and the statutory authorities, voluntary and
other organisations in a common effort to advance education and to provide facilities in the
interests of social welfare for recreation and leisure-time occupation with the object of
improving the conditions of life for the said inhabitants;

establish, or secure the establishment of, a Community Centre and to maintain and manage
the same (whether alone or in co-operation with any statutory authority or other person or
body) in furtherance of the Objects;

promote such other charitable purposes as may from time to time be determined. The
Charity shall be non-party in politics and non-sectarian in religion. The area of benefit
(“area of benefit”) shall be Lewisham and the surrounding areas.

Our views

HOCA and its user groups /users do not support proposals to redevelop the current site of
the community centre and youth club to instead provide housing with smaller and shared
community space.

Page 78



The plans for smaller and shared community space will mean that many of the activities currently
being undertaken at the community centre will not be able to continue. The main hall in the
community centre is our main source of income and if we lose this facility we will no longer be able
to continue in our current capacity and also it will no longer be viable for a number of our
user groups to continue to operate.

The community centre is very well used to the point that it is often difficult to schedule
request to hold activities and events. It provides public space for the young and old and
tamilies to meet and undertake a variety of activities .One of the objectives of this
consultation exercise was to address underutilisation of community centres. Honor Oak
Community centre is very well used and is attended by various groups every day and night
of the week. The tackwondo group has been operating from the community since 1981 (one
year after the centre opened). This group is very popular and has been attended by
generations of the same families.

We believe that any proposal for additional housing on Honor Oak Estate is not well
thought out. The area is already very highly populated and really does not need additional
people in the area. We all recognise that there is need for more housing in Lewisham but it
is almost inconceivable that you would consider reducing the amount of community space in
this very populated area and then increase the population. We hope that the two tragic
killings on the estate in September will cause you to rethink this proposal.

Information on the user groups and the regular activities undertaken at the community
centre is included in the response template and attached as a separate document. Where
user groups/users have provided additional responses these are also attached.

The consultation was aimed at voluntary and community organisations that provide
services in London Borough of Lewisham. However, the plans for redevelopment of the site
for housing and reduced community space will impact on the residents on Honor Oak
Estate and HOCA believe that it was a poor judgement on the part of Lewisham Council to
exclude the residents from the consultation at this stage. For this reason we do Not believe
that the consultation that has been undertaken thus far in relation to Honor Oak
Community centre has been conducted appropriately.

On becoming aware of the threat to the Honor Oak Community Centre, a petition was
started by HOCA and we currently have over one thousand signatures which we plan to
seek permission to submit to the Mayor and Cabinet meeting in November.

Information on usage of the centre

In an attempt to reach more members of the community we commissioned research on the
relevance of the community centre, as although it is very well used, we are aware that many
people in the community are not aware of the activities being run at the centre. This also
provided information on the activities they would like held at the community centre and
community space featured highly on their expectations..  68% of respondents expect a
communaty centre to offer services and activities which relate to ‘Social space’

This may go some way to explain the success of our private hiring arrangements.

Page 79



The below figures show private hire to April 2015 the forward bookings for both Saturdays
and Sundays were continuing to strengthen. At that point, every Saturday and Sunday in
May, apart from Sunday 31st was booked. At the time of writing this consultation response
we had to turn people away in October as most Fridays and Saturdays are booked each week
tor private hire.

YT
May | Jun | Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan. | Feb. | Mar | Apr. D
Previous year 8 7 11 9 5 9 12 6 4 2 8 5 86
Last 12
9 8 10 | 7 5 6 5 7 5 7 8 12 89
months

The table below was produced on 19 May 2015 and shows the events booked in the last 12
months. Honor Oak Community Centre is just a few minute’s walk from Honor
Oak Crematorium, Brenchley Gardens and therefore it is not surprising that the highest
number of private hire bookings is for funeral receptions. Funerals, birthday parties,
christenings and weddings account for over 75% of private hire bookings.

| EVENT TYPE NUMBER | % k
\ Memorial dinner 1 1.04% |
: Birthday party 21 21.88% :
. Chld's party 1 1.04% :
| community fair 1 1.04% |
. Christening party 12 12.50% |
. Family reception 3 3.18% |
' Funeral 29 30.21% !
! Graduation party 1 1.04% !
! Jehova's witnesses 2 2.08% !
I Leaving party 1 1.04% !
I Naming ceremony 3 3.13% !
' Sound check 6 6.25% ;
' Potter's house church 1 1.04% ;
: squash party 1 1.04% !
' memorial 1 1.04% :
| Wedding reception 12 12.50% |
: Total | 96 100.00% |

The table below shows that Saturdays are most popular for private hire with 45% of

bookings being made on Saturday. Fridays are very popular for funerals. There is little
private hire undertaken on weekdays, which is usually reserved for community development
activities/user group bookings

Page 80



DAYS I\Q:E;ﬁ,Q,O K I be!rgs 1,

% Wednesday, 1, Series 1
Series 1, 6\ m o

/3/}% Thursday, 5, 4,
Sunday, 24, 7, /

4%
21%

Series 1,

Friday, 27, 5,
23%

Series 1,
Saturday, 52,
N 6, 45%

Some analysis was done on the private hirers of the centre over the two year period to 19
May 2015. Residents in Brockley postcode SE4 made the highest number of private hires.
Over 67% of private hirers were from the borough of Lewisham. The community centre is
located on the cusp with Southwark so it is not surprising that it attracts hires from this
borough.

‘Where our hirers come from

Post Hirers X with that | Post g::frs with
codes S codes postcode*
SEA 1 SE2s |8
SE15 17 SES8 6
SE14 13 BR4 5
SE6 12 SE9 5

SE13 8 SE16 %
SEe2 |8 SE1s |4

99 39

*Where there were fewer than 4 hirings from any given postal area, numbers are not included

Expression of Interest for Asset Transfer

As part of this consultation response HOCA would like to express an interest in transferring
a community asset into our ownership. Our expression of interest is outlined below.

Page 81



The community centre is central to creating a space for community activities for the local
people and meets the needs of younger and older people and brings the different
communities together. The attached document showing the user groups and activities they
provide to the local community is evidence that the community centre has a track record of
delivering recreational, social and educational activities/service to the local community.
Over the next five years we plan to expand on the community development activities, with
this in mind we have scheduled the organisation ‘prison link’ and ‘MEND’ to run
courses/programmes at the community centre in October 2015.

The activities that are currently run at the centre attracts a diverse group of people and we
want to further develop the services/activities offered at the community centre to support
the local community and to change lives.

We have recently set up as a charitable incorporated organisation and have undergone lots
of change in terms of board members and administrative /governance procedures. We are
now moving forward and have 5 potential trustees/members attending our next meeting on
1st October, all of whom live on the Honor Oak Estate and keen to help promote and build
the community centre as an asset of value in the community. They have all been sent our
skills audit form for completion so that we can be sure to attract the right skills on the
trustee board.

We currently have a part time admin worker and volunteer working in the office. Current
trustees are also putting in a lot of time to ensure that we can effectively manage the centre
while we build our membership and trustees. HOCA trustees/ workers are scheduled to
attend free training courses provided by Voluntary Action Lewisham. We are also booked
on National Training courses in November on charity fund raising and governance. This we
believe will assist us in making applications from funders that we have already identified
and help us to maximise opportunities to ensure sustainability of the community cerntre.

HOCA Trustees endeavour to be compliant with charity regulations and our governing
documents and have already taken a difficult decision, against the wishes of a former trustee
to ensure that we do not breach our governing document. We are also scheduled to have
training on charity governance which will further assist us in the management of the
community centre. Although current trustees have management and HR experience,
financial management experience, and knowledge of equality, data protection and freedom
of information legislation. We aim to get a good handle on charity regulations to ensure we
run an effective and efficient business to meet the needs of the community and where the
diversity of people’s backgrounds is valued.

The repairs and maintenance cost to the centre in 2013/ 14 was 4£19,678. There were no
additional actual costs incurred by the Lewisham Council in this respect. Our approved
financial accounts to March 2015 can be made available on request.

Yours sincerely

Page 82



Yvonne Peart, Wonyo Setufe, Dorcas Erekosima, Purazeni Chigarire

HOCA Trustees

Enclosed:

Letters/emails from:

Leon Onen (resident)

Suzy Moxhay (resident)

S Griftiths (user group)

Pastor David Brown (user group)

Christina Israel (user group)

Introduction letters:
MEND

Prison Link

Page 83



Dear Mr Mayor

Subject: Re: Consultation with affected groups - redevelopment proposals for Honor Oak Community
Centre.

| am very disappointed to hear that the Honor Oak community centre is scheduled to close. My
family has been a regular user of the centre since we moved to Brockley/new cross 10 years ago. |
have used the centre for sure start sessions with both children (and meet other parents for support
there), my children have used the adventure playground and youth club and more recently | use the
sports hall to play badminton — which has encouraged me to be more active improving my health.

| am also aware that the centre runs a food bank which is always very busy (I play badminton at the
same time as they are open) and which meets a need that should not exist in the capital city of a
wealthy country — but sadly does.

| understand that the plan is to build additional housing which | am sure is required, however, is it
not possible to continue to provide facilities for these new residents as well as existing users on the
centre by providing the same facilities that exist on the ground floor of any new building. My
concern is — very much like the selling off of school playing fields — short term concerns are storing
up more issues for the future — the population of the Lewisham district is growing but facilities for
the local communities are shrinking.

Kind regards

Sian Griffiths

Page 84



28t September 2015
Dear Sir,
Ref: Honor Oak Community Centre, 50 Turnham Rd, London, SE4 2JD

| am writing to argue against the closure of the youth centre situated at 50 Turnham Rd, London, SE4
2JD. It is my belief that the youth centre allows young people to socialise, make new friends and try
a wide range of new activities. With the closure of the centre, youths are more likely to loiter around
more, hence causing social problems. Recent research and statistics by The Home Office show
under 18’s commit a quarter of all crimes.

| am sure that you will agree with me when | say that in these current economic conditions, it is
necessary to find ways to prevent youngsters from committing crimes. With the UK economy still
struggling, not only is it essential to find ways to reduce crimes, but it is also essential to try and
stabilise the economy for the future. What is really worrying in these times is that many people lack
the appropriate skills needed to work in a team, communicate and invest their money and their
ideas. This is, in my belief, a major factor preventing economic growth. The community centre can
potentially be a place to address issues regarding employment, training, learning, and social
interaction.

There has been several recent studies relating to the youths most likely to commit or attempt
suicide, | will refer to the one carried out by Childline, an organisation which promotes the well-
being of youngsters. They found that children who were unable to make any friends where the
one’s at risk of committing or attempting suicide.

Therefore, in my opinion | find it unbelievable that the council is taking away something necessary
for youths to live a happy and successful life. | cannot understand why the council do not think
about such aspects and the knock-on effect the closure will have to the community.

The closure of the youth centre could potentially have harmful effects both to the youths
themselves, and to the social well-being of society.

Thank you for taking the time to read this letter

Yours Faithfully

Leon Onen

Page 85



Subject: Re: Consultation with affected groups - redevelopment proposals for Honor Oak Community
Centre.

Hi Yvonne,

First | want to thank you for the work you are doing in trying to save Honor Oak Community
Centre. The long hours spent in meetings and diligent effort in addressing issues all in favour
of the community is invaluable.

Our church, Living Water Christian Centre has written to the Mayor's cabinet when we
discovered quite by accident as no one had said anything to us, that the centre was
earmarked for possible closure. The reply from the Mayor's office mentioned that he would
ensure that officers would take my concerns on board.

We use the centre weekly on some days and periodically on other days as follows:

Sundays: Church service for adults, teenagers and children (between 50 - 80 each Sunday)
Sundays: Sunday Club for children aged 5 - 11

Sundays: Youth alpha Course for 12 - 17 year olds

Wednesday - Food Service for the poor in the community and wider residents of Lewisham.

Thursday: Worship Team

Apart from the above, there are other outreaches we run and also training course at other
sites due to unavailability of HOCC such as Men's Fellowship; Women's Meetings; Bible
Studies, Counselling, Pre Marital Counselling Course for those engaged or hoping to be
engaged. All of these are free to the public.

We are in the process of forming a dance group (children and adults) and also a wider Arts
Ministry which again will be open to all who are interested. Closure of the centre would see
all these and more service we offer interrupted. We have seen people come into our church
from the community and embrace our teaching thus making a change in their lives and in the
lives of others.

After nearly three years of operating our Food Service, we have received letters, cards and
countless thank helping residents through a rough patch of their lives whether due to
joblessness, benefit cut, family breakdown or one of five other reasons for their

hardship. Since January this year alone to 16th September we have distributed over 6.5 tons
of perishable food and given away 7,167 items of non perishable food over the same

period. We have formed trusting relationships with members of the community. One of our

Page 86



Food Service customer admitted to me that if it wasn't for the Food Service he would be
stealing to make ends meet.

LWCC is at the heart of the community at Honor Oak. The recent murder of a 17 year old
has brought us into a positive relationship with members of the family whom we did not know
before this tragedy. We have assisted and contributed to their nine night function and The
mother has asked Pastor David to assist in and take part in the funeral service. We are
concerned for people and demonstrate this through practical love not just words. He has
already been approached by people in the community to see what can be done to prevent
this from happening again.

A new build of 57 new homes with 8 car parking spaces and a smaller hall for community
use is not only inadequate to accommodate the current services offered by both the Youth
Centre and User groups at the Community Centre, but also create problems in terms of the
centre which is used for funerals and also wedding receptions. It would just not be able to
sustain the demand currently placed on the Community Centre. There is no guarantee that
our church would be there and even be able to accommodate our current services let alone
the additional services we want to offer.

Our work as we see it is only just beginning. Whether we are able to remain at the heart of
the community will depend on the Mayors decision in November this year. We hope that
everything on Turnham Road remains as it is which is the desired outcome of the residents
expressed in the public consultation held earlier this month to is of course hangs

Pastor David Brown

LwCC

Page 87



Subject: Venue booking

Hi there,

We would be interested in booking the main hall at Honor Oak from Tuesday from 10:30-
12:00 to deliver a MEND Mums programme — please see attached for information about the
services we are commissioned to deliver across Lewisham.

Can you confirm if you have availability at that time and if so what the hire cost will be?

We would like to make a block booking from w/c 5t October for 10 weeks (excluding half
term).

Look forward to hearing back from you.

Kind regards,

Julia

Page 88



Subject: Re: User Group Stats

Dear Yvonne

I am sorry I have not responded before. Please find attached my

Completed consultation template.

'T am saddened at the proposal to close the Community Centre. it is such a
vital hub in the community. It is a large enough space for all kinds of

lifetime celebrations and is actively used as such.

I believe it is also important to maintain it for generations to come.

The Over 55s Thursday Club which started at the beginning of 2014 has been
Steadily growing with people returning who used the Centre many years

ago.

There is such an incredible air of vitality when members of the

community gather together in a safe, warm, welcoming and known

environment'

Regards

Christina

Page 89



Subject: criminal justice course

Dear sir or Madame

I am the CEO of a charity that helps prisoners resettle back into the community and helps them stop
reoffending.

We also presently run a course that helps people get training to work in the criminal justice system.
We have run this course since 2004 and made quite a good impact in the west mids.

On the last course there were 2 participants from south east London, who came each of the 8 sessions
of the course, so they could start the type of work we do in Birmingham in London. With this in mind
we are looking for a venue in your area to run the course which runs once a week for 8 weeks. We
are a registered charity and are asking a donation of the use of your building (3 hours a week for 8
weeks) to make a difference in your community. Please see our web site for background info;
prisonlink.org.uk

Please let me know how we could move forward with this.

Ricky Dehaney

CEO

Page 90



Subject: Fwd: Honor Oak Community Centre

Hi Rumbi,

Here's the email from ClIr Joan Millbank | mentioned..

It looks like she didn't read my original email properly because | said that | knew the council proposed
to include some sort of community centre in the new development and | wasn't given incorrect
information by HOCA.

| was thinking it would be good to get the email addresses of everyone who is concerned about the
proposal so we can keep each other up to date with any news.

See you at the meeting tomorrow!

All the best,

Suzy

Page 91



Subject: RE: Honor Oak Community Centre

Dear Ms Moxhay

Thank you for your email.

I note that my two colleagues have already replied to your email. They have said much of
what | would have said so | will not repeat it.

| can appreciate why you are worried; you are no doubt responding to information being
circulated by the trustees of the Honor Oak Community Association which runs the Centre
on behalf of the Council telling residents that the current building is being demolished and
replaced by housing only. This is untrue; the Association knows that new youth and
community facilities will be provided. | don’t know why they choice to only tell residents part
of the proposal but it has not been very helpful. If you are able to come to their public
meeting on September 4" perhaps you could ask them?

Please be advised there are no plans to close the Adventure Playground that your
councillors are aware of. The Council is becoming increasingly hard pressed financially
because of the Conservative government’s attack of public authorities and public finances
but here in Lewisham services for our children and young people remain a priority.

| have to say that | am a little bemused — and shocked - that as a Labour voter you are
objecting to more housing. There’s a massive housing crisis in London. People need decent
quality, affordable, secure homes. That’'s what | have and | assume you have too. Others
need the same.

Finally | can appreciate that building work will cause you some disturbance but it will be
temporary inconvenience, and one which other residents have had over the years as new
blocks like Edgehill Lodge have been built.

| do hope that we have been able to reassure you and | look forward to meeting you on
September 41,

Yours

ClIr Joan Millbank

Cabinet Member for the Third Sector and Community

Page 92



Subject: Honor Oak Community Centre

Dear Ms Millbank,

Are you the right person to contact regarding the potential loss of the much valued Honor Oak
Community Centre?

I was shocked and angered when I found out from my neighbour (no word from the council) about
plans to replace Honor Oak Community Centre with social housing.

The Community Centre is directly opposite my flat on Turnham Road and so I am aware of just how
valued and well used it is. It really is at the heart of our community. Turnham Road is a bit of an in-
between place- it is not very near the centre of Brockley and it is away from the centre of Crofton
Park.

Having the Community Centre there provides a central point to make those that live in the area
connect with one another and feel like they are part of a community.

It is used all the time for various clubs- especially for young people, and many social events including
wedding receptions and wakes. It is also much valued as a centre for religious events- I love hearing
the Gospel singing on Sundays.

I have lived in other areas with community centres which are not so well used but this is certainly not
the case with Honor Oak Community Centre.

Turnham Road is a very long road which is mainly residential/ social housing. There are a lot of
young people with not much to do living here and the Community Centre is invaluable in giving them
somewhere to go and clubs to join. If they do not have this [ am sure it will lead to an increase in
antisocial behaviour. I hear that the children's playground and youth club are also under threat which
will make the situation even worse. There are many people living here with young families who use
those facilities all the time.

Myself and all my neighbours are really anxious, angry and worried about these proposals and want to
do everything in our power to save our Community Centre. What can we do to stop this?

I am very disappointed having voted for Labour to find that our local community amenities could just
be wiped out like this. It makes me wonder why I voted for Labour at all. Aren't Labour supposed to
value community amenities?

My neighbour told me that there is a plan to include some sort of community centre integrated into the
new development but this is no good. To be used as it has for these sort of events and gatherings it
needs to be a dedicated hall as it is now. A space in a residential development is not the same thing at
all.

Page 93



My other worry is about the building work. My bedroom window is directly opposite the community
centre as is my flatmates'. We both work 12hour nightshifts from 7pm-7am. It will be absolute hell
for us if there is such extended building work going on directly opposite us during the day when we
need to sleep.

Please reply and let us know what we can do to oppose this plan. Everyone I have spoken to down
Turnham Road is very angry about it.

Regards,

Suzanne Moxhay

Page 94



G6 abed

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ charges Additional requirements/
activity attendees user restrictions
Monday Little Darlings A group of local No feedback Adults and children
Childminders and | received —
10-30-11.30 children for play 0-5
Approx 4 adults
and 12 children
Monday, 5.30 | Parents as Group work 5 couples (10 Parents with Free to users (funded We provide refreshments
-7.30 Partners programme of 16 people) plus communication and through the and childcare, so need
weekly sessions, children relationship difficulties | Directorate of Work & | access to a kitchen area
involving exercises, _ and a room large enough
video, discussion Pensions) for a creche. For two of
the sessions we separate
the group by gender, so
also need a second
meeting room.
Tuesday MEND MEND Mums 10 weeks No charge
programme commencing 5
10:30-12:00
Oct 2015
Tuesday 10.30 | Allin one Children’s group — | No feedback 0->5years
—13.00 soft play, received —
gardening

Approx 30—-40




attendees

Tuesday Slimming Weight loss No feedback
World /nutrition received —
6.30 pm
however over 40
attendees
Wednesday Mini Drama Teaching drama No feedback 0- S5vyears
received —
10.30-11.30
Monday Little Darlings A group of local No feedback Adults and children
Childminders and received —
10-30-11.30 children for play 0-5
Approx 4 adults
and 12 children
Weds 8-9 Honor Oak Badminton Usually 8-10 Ladies aged between £6 a month We use the badminton
ladies ladies turn up 23 and 55 - when nets supplied by the
badminton (usually people drop out we centre. Thereis a

depending on if
they can get a
babysitter) — the
membership is
14. For most
members this is
the only sport
they play

advertise on the
brockley blog for
potential new
members

shortage of available
courts in the area and
many new members have
been looking for
somewhere to play for
some time

06 9bed




16 9bed

Wednesday ( Honor Oak Badminton players 4 -8 mixed group £5.00including shuttles | Intermediate ability
Badminton age/gender/ethnicity
Soci Social ocasionally more No beginners
ociety)
Badminton
Wednesday LWCC Food Food Bank Between 25 to 40 | age 18 to 60+ yrs mixed | No charge Some limited mobility
Service users each week gender/ethnicity users Food Service for the
6pm - 9pm . .
poor in the community
and wider residents of
Lewisham. Referrals
MIND
Thursday Little Darlings - | A group of local No feedback Adults and children
childminders and received —
10-30-11.30 children for play 0-5
Thursday Yummi Yogi’s Yoga & Meditation | 25 Children: 6-16 years old | £6 for Adults per Some limited mobility
classes session users
6- 7pm Adults: 17 years +
£3 for Children per
7.30-8.30 .
session
pm
Thursday 60 Up C.I.C. in Social Group for 37 Service users Older people(over 55s) | £1 per session Some with mobility issues
partnership the prevention of
with HOCA social isolation Approx 12 per
week.
Thursday Digital Assisted digital Re -starting with Over 55s No charge

new facilitator on




Q6 9bed

Discovery support 8 October 2015

Thursday Martial Arts Taekwondo No feedback Young people

received —
6pm = 7pm however well

attended approx

20 users
Thursday Prison Link Criminal justice 8 weeks course No charge

course from 8 October
7.30
Alternative LWCC Choir Up to 10 people No charge
Thursday 7.30 | Practice
- 9PM
Friday Chatterbox - Play and learn No feedback A group of local mums, | No charge
toddlers 'n received — dads and carers who
10.00-11.30 parents group meet with 0-5yr old
children
First Friday of Potters House Gospel social event | No feedback
the month received —
First Saturday | Chatterbox Play and learn No feedback A group of local, dads No charge
of the month9. | Dad’s received — and carers who meet
00-10am with 0-5yr old children
Sunday LWCC Church Sunday service, 50 - 80 0-60 + No charge
Sunday club (5-

10-2pm

11), youth alpha




66 9bed

course (12-17)




Officer Comments:

A number of responses refer to the closure of the Honor Oak community centre and
youth centre. It is clear that the council’s intentions have not been accurately
communicated as at no time has the closure of the community centre and youth
centre been proposed. The proposal is to redevelop the site and to build new youth
and community facilities.

The size of any new youth and community centre will be the subject of detailed
feasibility and design work. The information given so far is only a rough indication of
what could be possible and will change subject to further consultation.

There is no intention to exclude residents from consultation in relation to future
housing development. Consultation with residents is planned.

The council adopted an asset transfer framework in 2008 which was updated in July
2015. It lays out how the council considers proposals for community asset transfers.
One of the key considerations at the beginning of that process is whether the asset is
required for another priority use. In this case the proposal is that the site is required
to be redeveloped for housing with the reprovision of community facilities and the
asset would therefore not be available for a transfer.

Page 100



L0l ebed

Saville Community Centre

=
The Saville Centre (and LPF) played an essential role in the Save
Lewisham Hospital Campaign (and one which will be needed again).

It was a drop off point for huge print deliveries and collecting point for

leafleteers. Above top right are the PLUS clients decorating display
letters for a rally, and the "Sholley” march to the hospital (with Heidi
Alexander) and “Buggy Army” that went to Westminster 14 February
2013 made their preparations and set out from here.

Office base and cellar storage
close to the Hospital —

essential to the SLH campaign.

The Saville is light and airy
and a pleasure towork in. |
Right: sponsors and
volunteers stuff 600
“Information Bags” for the
annual Pensioners Day.
Below: teams work on the
bi-monthly mail-out to LPF
members and over 150
community groups and LBL
sheltered schemes.

Regular use by social groups
and others

A traditional bingo session and the
Saville Knitters have a giggle.

The “Monday Project” has just been started up with
significant legacy funding from an EU grant and a small
contribution from the Rushey Green Assembly that was
used to bring WiFi to the Saville Centre. Ukuleles, singing,
knitting, the newly popular adult cc\ourlng and a “digital

surgery” with potential for
more work being developed
with MyCompleteFocus,
Community Connections and
others to address the issues
of digital exclusion among
the elderly in a low-key and
acceptable way.

Information hub: people call
in off the main street ta look
at the leaflets and passers by
study the windows.

wizrars hues the VO r’

One-off events—Ileft a small
group gossiping at the NPC
Dignity Day, below a Hustings
{with purpose-made bunting) 'f
and right a couple of volunteer
parties, one with a student
harpist recruited from Trinity.

-~ e

Book sales held as fundraisers—assistance
from Police Cadets and enloved by all ages.

Sorting for
4 the book sale
in the week
before and
. the buzz of
activity on
the day itself.

g The Saville garden in

Tea and fancy cakes make the
book sales a nice day out—and [
at one the SLH campaign had a
tiny table to collect signatures

to the current petition.

use for the bric a brac
and toy stall, and the

police cadets who are
regular helpers.




Appendix 1

Lewisham Pensioners Forum Fundraiser

Big Book Sale &

With the genereous and proctical suppart of
Harradines ssuth tonder based removols &
storage for aver 40 years 020 3124 1811

f Barradines

Hardbacks: (mostly) 50p to £2
F’ee Enay Paperbacks: 25p or five for £1
Sunday 6 July-11to3

The Saville Centre
436 Lewisham High Street, SE13 6LJ

(a couple of blocks south of the hospital—street parking on

Sunday and on lots of bus routes from Catford or Lewisham)

Come browse, come buy—a huge range
of books sorted for easy searching...
Fiction A-Z / Biography / History / Cockery / Self-Help

Science / Literature / Childcare / Sport / Politics / Economics

Travel / Memoirs / Film & TV / Music / Children's / etc., etc.

We plan to keep adding fresh stock during the

day so please “bring” as well as “buy”

Also: “pop-up cafe” with tea,

%i coffee, squash and cake,

=== plus toys, puzzles and bric-a-brac
For more information and to arrange coffection i you
have books to donate please phone 020 8690 7869

A Partnership Project in Action—Weekly
Digital Inclusion sessions at the Saville made
possible with funding to install Wi-Fi from

the Rushey Green Assembly

1 Po Lewisham
w Pensioners
®4d Forum

Page 102



Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

As part of the further consultation on proposed closures and redevelopments of community centres, we would like to include information on current centre

activities and users, along with your response in the report back to Safer Stronger Select Committee and Mayor and Cabinet.

Community Centre: _The Saville Centre — Lewisham Pensioners Forum

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ Additional requirements/
activity attendees charges user restrictions
Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users
Monday LPF Monday Project - Up to 30 People 55+ £1.00 am Former Saville Club lunch
Weekly Varied: Ukelele, £1.00 pm group members attending
Singing, Art, Digital and arriving by Dial-a-ride,
Exclusion “buddy” plus others
sessions, Knit and
Knatter
Tuesday LPF Volunteers Up to 10 - People 55+
Bi-monthly supporting the
work of LPF — mail
out and stuffing etc
Tuesday LPF Executive Strategic and Up to 15 People 55+
Bi Monthly Trustees Governance of LPF
Tuesday or LPF “Save Our Open to all older Up to 30 People 55+ Attendees make
Wednesday NHS" Campaign | people — a voluntary
Bi Monthly Group meetings | Information/ contribution of
discussion and approx £1 to
campaign on NHS mailing costs,
and other health etc.
issues
Tuesday Pensioners Interest and Up to 60 People 55+ Majority BME membership
Occasionally — Action Group campaign group LPF provides low level

about twice a
year when Civic

able to target
issues of concern

support to PAG with room
hire and copying

€0l abed




0l ebed

Voluntary Sector Accommodation - Response to consultation

e The Saville Centre has and will continue to support a range of partnership projects open to ALL older people in Lewisham, including:

# What do you need to know about Will Writing — with Co-op Funeralcare

# Understanding ‘Digital’ with a POP Up Techy Tea with Community Connections and MyCompleteFocus funded by the
Positive Ageing Council

# Libertea — Marking 800 years of the Magna Carta as part of the Parliamentary Qutreach Project

= London Borough of Lewisham to consult with on the proposed changes to charging for adult social care

# 'Our Healthier South East London’, Presentation by the Chair and Chief Officer of the CCG on an ‘ssues Paper’ which
sets out a range of challenges faced by the NHS in south east London.

+~ Save Lewisham Hospital Campaign — The Saville Centre and its facilities played an integral role in the day to day
operations of the campaign to save Lewisham Hospital enabling the community and users of the building to get

involved and have a voice (See Appendix 1)

» Making Good Use of the Saville Centre - LPF fully accepts that the Council wants to ensure better use of its buildings. However, LPF
feels strongly that a failure in recent years to make full use of the office space and hall will negatively impact on financial assumptions
about income generation. There have been regular and constant enquiries to rent both office space and the hall and all have been
signposted to the Council. For whatever reason the potential of the Saville has in recent years been untapped. LPF has supplied the
Council with information to support this.

e  Existing User Groups want to be a part of a community solution so that their members will, with their help, continue to be active
members of Lewisham’s community. (See Appendix 2 Saville Centre In Use)



Dear Liz Dart

We are sorry that this email comes after the deadline for responses but we have only just become
aware that the Saville Centre, which houses the offices of the Lewisham Pensioners Forum, may be
under threat of closure.

We're deeply concerned for two main reasons.

The Saville Centre offers central and safe premises for the Lewisham Pensioners Forum. As a health
campaign we are only too aware of the importance of such a secure and accessible place for older
citizens to meet, discuss, find empowerment and a voice, all of which takes place in abundance at
the Savile Centre. The contribution to the health and wellbeing of these Lewisham citizens is
considerable.

Secondly, the Lewisham Pensioners Forum has provided assistance and facilities to our campaign
which, together with the Council, fought successfully to keep Lewisham Hospital open. The Forum
continues to be of assistance in many ways, particularly in terms of storage space, in our ongoing
work to protect health services more broadly within the borough. The Pensioners Forum of course
also have a very active and very intellectually engaged group working on the NHS,

For all of these reasons, we urge you not to close the Savile Centre.

With best wishes

Dr Louise Irvine
Chair, Save Lewisham Hospital Campaign

Olivia O’Sullivan

Secretary, Save Lewisham Hospital Campaign
07956 590773

Page 105



Artful Dodgers' Response To The Proposed Closure Of The Saville Centre
30th September 2015

In 1998 the cardiac rehabilitation nurses at Lewisham Hospital set up a support
group for people with various heart conditions. They named this group "The Artful
Dodgers".

In about 2008 funding was withdrawn from the nurses and the Primary Care Trust
took over the running of the group. This change resulted in a drop in attendance at
our meetings.

Lewisham Hospital then increased the fees for the meeting room and the PCT moved
our meetings to Lewisham Library. This resulted in another drop in attendance
numbers.

After deciding that Lewisham Library did not meet our needs, the PCT then moved
our meetings to the Saville Centre. Again, this move resulted in a drop in attendance
numbers.

In 2011 the PCT'S support was withdrawn as a result of NHS reorganisation and the
Artful Dodgers have been self-supporting since then. In accordance with British Heart
Foundation guidelines, attendees are not expected to pay anything at their
thereafter a voluntary donation of £3 is suggested. This helps the group to be more
inclusive.

The group was very successful in helping me come to terms with my heart disease
and combating my depression.

Various investigations have shown the effectiveness of support groups.

The Artful Dodgers do not receive any financial support other than voluntary
donations and broke even, financially, over the past year.

It has been suggested that the Saville Centre will close. From past experience it is
clear that a change in venue will result initially in a drop in attendance numbers.

It has been suggested that the group could move to tthe St Laurence Centre. This
would result in an increase in rental cost from £29 to £50 per meeting. This increase
in costs plus the decrease in attendees would be likely to result in the end of the

group.

Page 106



Another suggestion is that the group could move to Lewisham Irish Centre.
Unfortunately this venue is not available at times convenient to the group.

It has also been suggested that the Artful Dodgers could move to the Leemore

Centre. This is 200-300 metres walk from the nearest bus stops. This is largely uphill.

On arrival at the Leemore Centre there are 7 steps or a steep ramp and then a door
which is too heavy for most of our members to open. These access difficulties make
this venue inappropriate for a group of people with heart problems.

The conclusion is that under the current circumstances the closure of the Saville
Centre is likely to lead to the end of Lewisham's heart support group.

Page 107



80| 8bed

As part of the further consultation on proposed closures and redevelopments of community centres, we would like to include information on current centre
activities and users, along with your response in the report back to Safer Stronger Select Committee and Mayor and Cabinet.

Community Centre: Saville Centre

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ Additional requirements/
activity attendees charges user restrictions
Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users
Tuesday Artful Dodgers Heart support 10-20 Heart patients Voluntary Some limited mobility users
group donation - £3 and limited vision users
suggested

Community Centre: __The Saville Centre

Day Group/ user Type of session/ Number of users/ | Types of users Session fees/ Additional requirements/
activity attendees charges user restrictions

Example: Monday Dance Itd Line dancing class 15 Older people (aged 50+) £5 per session Some limited mobility users
Monday Igra somali Information and 5 Adults 18+ Free

health and Advice centre

equational

development
Tuesday Information and 5 Adult (18+) Free

Igra somali advice centre

health and

equational

development




60} 8bed

Saturaday Igra somali Supplementary 20 Young people (aged 5- Free
health and school 16)
equational
development

Sunday Igra somali Supplementary 20 Young people (aged 5- Free
health and school 16)
equational

development




Our organisation aims to provide information and advice to disadvantaged Somali people
residing in the Borough of Lewisham particularly struggling with poverty due to factors such
as language barriers and cultural difference. In our advice centre, we offer information and
advice regarding welfare rights, housing rights, utility debt, help with completing forms and
translation service.

We also run a supplementary school on weekends whereby we aim to improve children’s
educational achievement by helping with their school work since most of these children do
not have someone in their families to help them with their homework. Also, some of these
children are new arrivals in the UK and we teach them main core curriculum subjects
including Maths, science and cultural language in order to increase their level of educational
attainment. We believe that if we provide children with the right educational support we
improve their attainments in school and have the confidence to participate and integrate in
society, ultimately preventing to join criminal gangs.

After summarizing our core aims and objectives, we strongly believe that Iqra is contributing
to Lewisham Borough immensely by providing services for the Somali community while
having a positive impact on young people’s lives. We believe the proposed closure and
redevelopment will adversely impact the services we provide because the current location of
Igra at Saville centre is an ideal place as it has an excellent transport connection and has great
visibility which means that everyone can easily find us. More importantly, our organization
has been using the Saville centre for since 2000 and people from the Somali community who
live outside of Lewisham come to us for our services and if the Saville centre was to close
then a lot people from the Somali community will be struggling with poverty as they will not
have access to a culturally appropriate advice service delivered in their own language
anywhere within easy travelling distance within and or outside Lewisham.

We strongly hope that you reconsider the proposed closure and redevelopment.

Abdiasis Basaweyne,

On behalf of Igra trustees

Page 110



Re: Closure of the Saville centre

We Action Family Centre (formally known as African Family Project) writing to express our support
for the Saville centre which we understand is at risk of being closed.

Our organisation provides education, health and wellbeing information and support to families in
Lewisham. We work with parents and their children to increase formal skills and develop social and
emotional skills. The families we support have many problems including single parent families, low
levels of spoken and written English, issues with crowded or unsafe accommodation, problems at
school, deprivation due to low income or unemployment and risks from gang, knife and drug crime.

We are about to begin running services at the Saville centre but we only have an assurance that we
can use it until April next year. By using the Saville centre we will be able to expand our services. At
the moment we provide activities for 25 children on one day a week but because of the Saville
centre we will be able to run activities for 75 children on three days of the week. We have a waiting
list of families who will immediately be able to benefit from this expansion of our services.

We believe that in deciding what to do with the Saville centre you should take into account the costs
that are saved to the council because of the work that community groups such as ours can do.
Without our activities our children and young people would have nowhere to go and they would join
in the street life that is such a danger to them. Social and personal problems would increase and all
these problems will bring an increased financial cost to council services.

Our organisation depends on volunteers and on funding that we raise and the difficulty of finding
affordable space for our work is having a big impact on us. We would be very grateful if the Saville
Centre stays open beyond April next year. It would enable us to bring long term benefits to some of
the most deprived families in Lewisham.

Regards

Jameela Osman

Chair of AFC

Page 111



Officer Comments:

There are a number of alternative premises that could accommodate Saville Centre
users including the Irish Centre, the Point community centre, Calabash Day Centre,
the St Laurence Centre and the Leemore Community hub. We understand that not all
of these premises will be suited to all current users of the Saville Centre but we will
provide assistance and information to help groups relocate to other local facilities
that may be available and meet their needs.

The council is responsive to all enquiries to rent/ hire out its assets including those
relating to the Saville Centre. There are a number reasons why in some instances this
may not have resulted in full use of the office space and hall at the Saville Centre.
These include not always having the right space and/ or times available for enquirers;
some organisations withdrawing their interest for various reasons and the use of the
Saville centre being earmarked predominantly for older people's services and
activities. Nevertheless, none of these reasons negate the need for the council to
rationalise its assets at this time.

Page 112



Scotney Hall Community Centre

30" September 2015

Scotney Hall — Listed Asset of Community Value

I am writing regarding the management of Scotney Hall. Our charities, Reconcilers
Evangelical Ministries and REMEC are the resident occupiers of Scotney Hall since 2000.

Scotney Hall is a community hall situated in the middle of Sharratt Street and fronting the
Windslade Estate, off Ilderton Road. Ilderton Road is off the Old Kent Road near the bridge
and is North of the borough between Lewisham and Southwark boroughs. Although Old Kent
Road is accessible by public transport with a number of buses passing by the end of the road
and of course, Sharratt Street and the surrounding area have few facilities close by. The area
was once part of the New Cross Gate NDC development which saw Scotney Hall thrive with
active community involvement.

Unfortunately in the last three years, Scotney Hall has suffered from neglect, as the hall has
been closed by the Council who have not repaired a leaking problem on the roof, which
resulted in the flooding of the floor causing damage to the floor.

At a recent Mayor and Councillor meeting, Scotney Hall was listed an asset of community
value that was earmarked for development into future housing stock. It was also stated that
while plans are in place about the future of Scotney Hall, the Council should consider
seriously the role that the community centre has played and continues to play in the
community. One of the key roles is the provision of youth, social and educational facilities
and it’s historic role in combatting crime and anti-social behaviour. This report asks the
Council to take into consideration that the Windslade estate relies mainly on Scotney hall as a
community provision in a marginalised neighbourhood with few facilities and social
provisions.

As the Council has listed Scotney Hall as an asset of community value, REMEC the
occupiers of the property since 2000, would like the Council to enable the group to manage
the property until final decisions about its future. We believe we should be able to bring it
back to a useable state. The Hall has a long history of association with the estate and we
believe that the community would benefit greatly if we are able to reinstate it to its full use.
the full use of Scotney Hall - which in the past formerly housed many social provisions,
from educational centre and youth club to music radio studio, and other provisions for the
Windslade community.

Winslade Estate, where Scotney Hall is situated presently housing over 650 households and
residents, the removal of a community facility would have a detrimental effect on people’s
lives. It would reverse the work that has taken place in previous years in partnership with the
police, the youths and other community services.

Page 113



We receive approximately 40 phone enquiries every month about the possible use of the hall.
The constant use of the hall strengthens community cohesion which has been threatened since
the recent closures. At this moment, we don’t known what plans are in place to repair the
building. However our occupation and use is affected by the disrepairs. As we have a duty of
care to our volunteers and service users, we would like to see the building repaired as soon as
possible. Alternatively, as the present occupiers, REMEC would like to ask the council to
consider a basic repair of the hall — boiler/ leak/floor to bring it back to use or allow REMEC
to carry out these repairs and to be reimbursed later, some part of it through rent.

Who uses Scotney Hall?

REM EDUCATIONAL CENTRE (REMEC), a community voluntary sector group was set up
by Reconcilers Evangelical Ministries, REM, in 2006. REMEC has been delivering youth
services and activities in the community since 1991. REMEC is in the Winslade estate, off
Sharratt Street,SE15 INR . Situated North of the borough it straddles Lewisham and
Southwark boroughs and was part of the New Cross Gate regeneration over a decade ago.
REMEC spearheaded the campaign to save the estate’s youth club which has had a historic
presence spanning over forty years. The opportunity presented to youth by the youth club was
pivotal in fighting youth crime and anti-social behaviour on the Estate. Ilderton Road is just
off the Old Kent Road seemingly a ‘busy’ area but the Windslade estate is a fair distance to
public amentities, including shops, libraries, recreational facilities etc. The estate has an
elderly people’s sheltered accommodation People Lewis Silken House next door to Scotney
Hall and a day nursery. Apart from a small corner shop, Scotney Hall is the main facility on
the estate and has been used by residents of the Winslade and nearby Tustin estates and
residents from the surrounding neighbourhood.

Services and Activities:

REMEC support the community, especially services geared towards children and young
people.

Our projects have been frequently funded national and local funding bodies including The
Big Lottery, BBC Children in Need, Community Chest Fund, NHS Health as well as by
voluntary donation of faith groups and individuals.

1. REMEC Saturday School and REMEC After School Homework Club

Started in year 2000

Before it stopped in 2012, it had helped over five hundred children and young people
Teaching Maths, English, Science and ICT and preparing young people for GCSE and SATS

2. The Homework Club has helped over 600 hundred children and young people, after
school,

teaching Maths, English, Science, and ICT and preparing young people for GCSE and SATS.

This project is still on-going helping children of the poor and the marginalised, majority of
them Lewisham children and young people.

3. REMEC Holiday & Summer Activities —

This is still on going and has helped over 500 children and young people in North Lewisham
since the year 2000. Every holiday, we provide activities that educate, occupy and help the

Page 114



children and young people to socialise and have fun and live safely together. We have
supported local schools as teachers have commented to parents on the progress and
attainment of the children who attended the Saturday schools/homework clubs. Past students
have successfully gained places in local apprenticeships, colleges and Universities including
top ranking Universities.

4. REMEC Youth Club

The REMEC Youth club started in 2006. It has been a great gathering for children and
young people in this area of North Lewisham. It provides social, cultural, health and well-
being facilities for this youth between the ages of 10 to 18 years. In recent years young
people- many whose parents are unable to afford holidays, have relied on this provision
especially during the summer period. Some activities have included, health awareness,
relationships and sexual health, food and healthy eating, educational outings, museums,
places of interest and sporting activities from ices skating to canoeing. REMEC Youth Club
has recently engaged in some health awareness initiative sponsored by the
Lewisham/Greenwich NHS Trust and REMEC was voted first among over 30 bidding
organisations as a service of the highest value, both in its projects and presentation (2014).

Since it started the youth club has helped hundreds of children from the estate and other parts
of the borough socialise, extend their education, stay out of crime and develop skills that have
led them to further or higher education and enter employment.

We provide in-door and out-door sports & games and the youth club has also provided
employment and training for adults in youth-work. Our current youth-worker leader started as
a volunteer and has now become a qualified youth worker. She is among several that have
gained Youth Work skills/qualification since joining the group.

6. REMEC Online IT centre

REMEC has over 15 computers in its suite which we use to teach computer and information
technology to the children and young people in the area. We have also given tailor made
computer classes for the elderly, especially those at Lewis Silkin House, near Scotney Hall.
We also serve as the only internet café in the whole of the Windslade and Tustin area.

7.Language classes — including English For Speakers of Other languages classes

In all these years and in all the activities above, REMEC has helped a lot of volunteers who
have moved on in life to bigger and better jobs. This is in accordance with the Governments
strategy to tackle unemployment and include marginalised groups into society. A recent
example being a Polish lady who volunteered with REMEC as a book keeper improved her
ESOL skills, completed a course in accounting while volunteering with REMEC and in the
summer of 2015 secured a job in a top accountancy firm. Other volunteers went on to
complete Teaching /childcare courses taking up work in these fields. Other volunteers now
work in public sector, some have gone to university, others have graduated.

Page 115



8. REMEC Media Training Group (audio, video and radio) We have facilities that are set up
to train, not only young people but for everyone in the community to learn about the media,
whether it be audio editing, video editing of broadcasting on radio. These are skills that are
transferable and can be applied to other areas of work.

9. Reconcilers Songwriting Academy

The aim of our song-writing programme is to train and prepare individuals who have
identified music as gift . Students who undertaking this course receive instructions in the
following areas.

The theoretical and practical aspects of music (The building blocks of music)
The task of organising musical events

As well as practise writing their own songs

Pre Recording audios and demos

Editing techniques

Access to professional musicians

As well as the learning in the activity, individuals are supported to work together, interact
with the whole group, solve problems together, communicate in a number of different ways
and develop their confidence and self-esteem. These skills support our service users to
increase their social mobility, develop employability skills, thus creating confident, informed
and communicative individuals who can actively resolve any problems and issues in order to
become contributory members of the community. These activities help break down the sense
of loneliness and isolation and create opportunity for interactions that encourages friendliness
and community cohesiveness.

OTHER ACTIVITIES OF COMMUNITY VALUE (present and potential)
Previous users of Scotney Hall have all been included

1. 2. Karate Club

3. Windslade Estate Tenants and Residents Association 4. Women and Toddler Group
Mount Carmel Apostolic Church — faith group
5. Community Counselling & Advice

6. Security Certificate Training

7. Training Resources & facilities (generally)
8. Election (Polling Station)

Other regular community activities include

9. Birthday Parties

10. Renting the Kitchen for Caterers or trainers
11. Christening or naming ceremonies

12. Wedding receptions

13. Funeral receptions

14.MP/Councillors surgery

The estate would be at a great loss if was deprived of the use of Scotney Hall which even
geographically stands in a very prominent position at the entrance of the estate. In a
neighbourhood which is already marginalised its loss would lead to the loss of social
cohesion, increased crime and an increase in anti-social behaviour or even depression.

Page 116



We feel that the Council would greatly reduce its cost by allowing us to manage this building
and we can assure you that we would be able to restore it to its former use and manage it to
full capacity.

Kind Regards
VincentOAOnwukanjo
Dr Vincent Onwukanjo
Director, REMEC

Page 117



Sedgehill Community Centre

Hello Liz
Thank you for meeting with us the other day.

Further to our email sent to you on 1 June 2015, of which a copy can be re forwarded to you, if need
be.

We would like to reiterate that we have worked extremely hard with the local community to include
not only local residents but also local professionals i.e. Health Visitors, Children's centres, Lewisham
Early Years department, Social Services, GP's, Speech & Language, Family Support agencies and
schools, to mention a few, to run a reliable, professional and successful breakfast, full day, after
school and play scheme facility from Sedgehill community centre for 21 years and would endeavour
to continue this for many years to come. We pride ourselves on having built an excellent working
relationships with these agencies and being a very reliable tenant to Lewisham Council ourselves.

At present we cater for approximately 100 families per day. These families are either accessing the 2
or 3 year education grant and are studying or working and on whom, the effects of Happy Days
having to close for even 1 day would have a completely devastating effect. Indeed, when Sedgehill is
not available to us on Polling Day each year, our parents are aggrieved, as they are fully reliant upon
us.

The area where the community centre is based is very convenient for all our families as there is
ample parking and it is conveniently located for older siblings attend the local surrounding schools.

With the new build in mind we would request that you would seriously consider making provisions
for us to be able to continue running our services for the local community.

In view of the scale of the site, we would like to put forward purchasing or leasing a set area, ie
existing car park area, for Happy Days or Lewisham council to build. We would be happy to have this
conversation with you at your earliest convenience.

On a separate concern, will you please give us reassurance that you will provide us with facilities to
continue with our services once Sedgehill is shut down and building works commence.

Please feel free to contact Paul Yiannakou, 2 year grant manager in Lewisham early years dept, as a
reference for us.
We look forward to your response

Kind regards

Mrs Julie St Hilaire
Senior Manager

Page 118



Venner Road Community Centre

Voluntary Sector Accommodation Proposal Response by Venner Road Hall Community Association

Thank you for meeting with the Association's representatives on July 8 and September 18, 2015. We
are grateful for the clarifications you have put forward regarding the Council's proposals in
connection with the Borough's community centres.

The Venner Road Hall Community Association's Premises Management Committee has consulted
widely with the User Groups and community residents and the unanimous feeling is that the halls, at
the very least, Venner Road Hall, should still be available for use by the community. Provisions
proposed by the council falls short of the needs of the community.

Venner Road hall is widely used by the local community, in providing affordable premises for various
elderly groups, residents and community groups, church groups, education, extensive childcare,
weekend children’s parties and the provision of employment for local residents.

Essentially the premises is not been sold to raise funds for the council. The council is proposing to
change its use by marketing it as a nursery. As the council is aware the premises is used mainly as a
childcare centre.

At both meetings we asked that if the exercise is purely financial, then the council should indicate
the level of income it hopes to realise by marketing the hall as nursery. This is because the PMC and
the principal users of the hall would like to propose that they be given the opportunity to continue
to use the hall under a leasing arrangement which will give the council the income it desires and
more importantly keeping the premises for use by the community.

You agreed at our meeting in July that this was a feasible proposal and that you will get back to us
about what income the council will be expecting. As we did not get the information you promised,
we raised the issue at the last meeting on 18t September 2015. We also asked whether as current
users we will be given the first option or whether it will be put to public tender straight away.

We were pleased when both you and Councillor Best confirmed that we will be given the chance to
consider an arrangement to pay rent to the council subject to valuation.

In your letter of 28t September, you stated that it was taking longer than you anticipated to get the
rent valuation. Therefore as you suggested, we are making our initial response to the consultation
with in principle proposal of taking on a lease for Venner Road Hall subject to the rent valuation
being provided.

Once the figures are available we will be in a better position to make a more meaningful proposal
and we welcome the opportunity you have afforded us to update our response before the final
report goes to Mayor and Cabinet on 11" November.

I look forward to receiving the information about the rent valuation.

Yours sincerely

Tony Mensah
Chair — Venner Road hall Community Association

Page 119



Wesley Halls Community Centre

REPORT regarding the Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Centre to be presented to the Mayor and
cabinet as part of their community assets review.

Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Centre is one of Lewisham’s community assets that have been
earmarked for redevelopment or disposal. It would seem that since our space has been included into
the development proposal there is a view that some of our current space can be reallocated for the
use of community housing, leaving us with less space. We would like to offer our thoughts on the
proposal as we understand them.

Our view is that the existing halls should be retained and the housing development should be built
adjacent to with an L-shape design fronting onto Bankfoot and Downham Way. Ideally this would be
for specialist accommodation housing adults with disabilities or elderly people so that they could use
the community space during the day.

1. Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Association is a registered charity number 275373. The
association manages and develops the programme at the community centre. It is managed by
seven trustees who also liaise and work in partnership with local providers such as the
Goldsmiths community association, Ringway Community Association, Adult Learning Lewisham,
The Irish Centre, Lewisham Mencap, Lewisham Disability Coalition, London Probation and local
primary schools. Unfortunately, despite our suggestions to Phoenix that they work in
partnership with us; to-date they have dismissed our offer.

2. Downham is one of the most deprived wards in Lewisham, it has a large proportion of aging
population, with higher levels of poverty, lower average incomes, more people living with
disabilities and more people with caring responsibilities than most of the rest of the borough as
evidenced by the returns of the 2011 census.

3. Over a thousand people attend the centre weekly to partake in activities for their mental and
physical wellbeing. That number does not include those who attend the centre for one-off
events and social gatherings.

4. The Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Association is generally self-financing supported by a
subsidised rent grant from the LBL.

5. There are three large halls within the centre. A sports hall, a hall with a stage and a hall that has
direct access to a kitchen. Therefore the premises can be used for wide range of activities and
events such as sport, performing arts, crafts, lunch clubs and as function rooms.

6. Phoenix Community Housing state that their vision is “to work together to build a better future
for our Phoenix community” therefore they develop services for people who live in their social
housing. So far we have had very little contact from Phoenix to discuss what is being proposed.
However, we have had experiences where Phoenix ignored our provision and our invites to
cooperate with our association, and we have witnessed on two occasions that when Phoenix
provide activities they offer them at no cost to Phoenix residents whilst non-Phoenix local
people have to pay. Our association works with all local people for the benefit of all members of
the local community to improve people’s lives — rather than just for the benefit to people from
within a particular housing association. We recognise the needs of everyone within our local
community and work in partnership with other local providers.

Page 120



7. Area 3 of Lewisham has no council led youth service provision. At our community centre we
have an extensive programme for young people.

8. Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Centre is an intrinsic part of the Downham Estate and is a
local landmark. It is an attractive and distinctive building that was built in 1929-30 at the same
time as the estate. It was originally built as a Wesleyan Church and during the 2" world war it
served as a mortuary. After the war the Wesleyan Church joined with the United Church and
they did not require the building anymore therefore they sold the site to the Greater London
Council.

9. When the GLC was abolished the building was transferred to Lewisham Council. Lewisham
Council wanted to demolish the church to make way for housing but local people proved that
there were as many empty houses within the locality as the Council were proposing to build.
Clir Norman Smith and Clir Tom Bradley led a campaign to develop the church into a community
centre. The Inner London Education Authority invested financially in the building thus enabling
it to be used for the current purposes. In 1978 the church started to be used by the Lewisham
Youth Service who established a boys club. Many developments followed throughout the
following years and it is now a thriving community centre for local people regardless of their
faiths, gender, sexuality, ethnicity, ages and social standing.

10. The association meets all of Lewisham’s core sustainability strategy principles.

11. The building is fit for purpose and has full disability access. It is secure, with secure door entry
and CCTV. The external grounds are fenced off from the road thus providing a secure
environment for children and vulnerable adults.

12. By being located centrally it enables local people to walk, cycle or travel by public transport to
the centre.

13. We ensure an effective protection of the environment (solar panels, various electrical devices to
reduce the energy costs)

14. We endeavour to maintain a stable level of economic growth and employment. We employ one
full-time worker and four part-time workers.

15. The Centre is open seven days a week and up to 13 hours a day. From time-to-time we also hold
all-night sittings, which is an awareness campaign for young people organised by SHELTER to
fundraise for homeless people.

16. The function rooms are let out with self-catering facilities thus minimising the cost of hire for
local people.

17. There are no other local centres or halls that can accommodate large events at a cost affordable
to Downham families. Our halls are available for hire as function rooms and they are regularly
used by local people for wedding receptions, funeral wakes, children’s parties, exhibitions,
training seminars, traveller’s forums and faith gatherings.

18. The fact that there are three halls of varying sizes means we are able to offer a varied
programme of activities (not available elsewhere) for people’s physical and mental well -being.

19. We are currently working on a business plan to establish a Community-Heart provision for
people with disabilities called Wider Horizons. This will commence in December 2015.

20. As requested we attach a timetable of regular activities within our centre. This timetable, does
not, however, take account of one-off lettings for private functions such as wedding receptions,
funeral wakes, children’s parties, exhibitions, pantomimes, training seminars and faith
gatherings and graduations.

21. We have no objection to Phoenix housing being built on the land behind our Centre and
between the large hall and Downham Way but would argue strongly that the loss of the existing
buildings and its grounds would be detrimental to the local area and its people.

Lastly, can you please let us have answers to the following questions?

Page 121



Questions:

a. How would the local council benefit by redeveloping what the community association has
already in place?

How would the local people benefit by the centre being rebuilt?

What studies and costings have to date been undertaken?

When was the decision taken that the land should be taken over by Phoenix?

Currently the land and the building belong to all Lewisham people — what would the benefit be
for transferring its assets to Phoenix (a private organisation) whose sole purpose is to manage
and develop provision for social housing.

f. Ifitis not broken why fix it?

® oo o

Kristina Green

Chair of the Management Committee

Page 122



€l ebed

Downham (Wesley Halls) Community Centre regular programme

> Type of Ly Session fees/
% | Group/ user P . . . users/ Types of users Notes
o session/activity charges
attendees

ALL Yoga Fitness/Education 10 Mainstream £ 40.00
> | London Probation Payback t.o 3 Adults and Young People £ -
8 Community
c
o .
2 | Parent & Toddler Group Learn through play 24 Parents/Carers with Young £ 9.00

People
. . . Start D

Wider Horizons Community Hub 25 PWLD tbd 20a1r5 ec

ALL Dance Experience - PWLD Education 12 PWLD £ 40.00

ALL Parent and Toddler Yoga Education 14 Parents/Carers with Young £ 40.00

People

ALL Personal skills - Sports Fitness - PWLD Education 13 PWLD £ 40.00
> | Cooper School of Dance Education 50 Children £ 79.56
2
s
F | Millinery Education 9 Seniors £ 8.46

Shekinah House of Praise Ministry Faith worship 63 Mainstream + Young People £ 36.25

Tai Kwan Do Fitness/Education 23 Adults £ 29.38

Wider Horizons Community Hub 25 PWLD tbhd ;’Balr; Dec




vC| ebed

Group

ALL Performance - Music of the World - PWLD Education 13 PWLD £ 40.00
ALL Performance arts
E ti 1 PWLD £ 40.

- Drumming workshop - PWLD ducation > 0.00
ALL Personal skills - Music - PWLD (High Education 12 PWLD (High Dependancy) £ 40.00
Dependancy)

> . . .

8 | ALL Pilates - Intermediate Education 19 Adults £ 30.00

"

£

é Cheerleading Fitness/Education 35 Young People £ 40.00
Martial Arts Fitness/Education 25 Adults and Young People £ 17.63
Youth Soccer Fitness/Education 12 Young People £ 26.00
Wider Horizons Community Hub 25 PWLD TBA zgalr; Dec
ALL Creative 3D toys Education 10 Young People £ 40.00
ALL Painting & Drawing - PWLD Education 16 PWLD (Mental Health) £ 40.00

& | ALL Personal skills - Shortmat Bowls - PWLD Education 15 PWLD £ 40.00

©

(7]

5

= Cheerleading Fitness/Education 37 Young People £ 40.00
Elderly Health Group Fitness/Education 9 Seniors £ 9.50
Lewisham Disabilty Coalition Advice & Support Welfare Advice 1 Dissabled £ 45.00




G¢l ebed

Payback to

People

London Probation . 13 Adults and Young People £ -
Community
Martial Arts Fitness/Education 35 Young People £ 23.50
Parent & Toddler Group Learn through play 22 Parents/Carers with Young £ 9.00
People
. . . Start D
Wider Horizons Community Hub 25 PWLD tbd 20a1r5 ec
Wel Lunch Club - I
elcome Lunch Club - pool, darts and board Social Gathering 39 Mainstream + PWLD £ -
games
) Start Oct
T | Table Sale/Market Community Activity tbd All tbhd
e 2015
Wider Horizons Community Hub 25 PWLD tbd ;’:)alr; Dec
7th Day Adventists Faith worship 92 Mainstream + Young People £ 112.00
. . Faith worship .
Downham Community Choir . 14 Mainstream + Young People £ 15.00
education
>
S
5 | Lewisham Sports Club - PWLD Fitness/Education 35 PWLD f 30.00
3
Phoenix Exercise Class Fitness/Education 14 Mainstream + Young People tbd
Yoga Fitness/Education 11 Mainstream + Young People £ 9.00
> | 7th Day Adventists Faith worship 117 Mainstream + Young People £ 42.00
3
5 P ts/Carers with Youn
9 | Julitsu Fitness/Education 25 aren g £ 37.50




9¢Z| ebed

Parents/Carers with Young

Martial Arts Fitness/Education 29 29.38
People

Sacred Africa Church Faith worship 35 Mainstream + Young People 84.00

Shekinah House of Praise Ministry Faith worship 79 Mainstream + Young People 100.00

Tai Kwan Do Fitness/Education 25 Mainstream 29.38




Officer Comments:

By redeveloping the Wesley Halls site, the size of the new community facility could
be maximised along with the number of new homes provided. The new facilities and
homes can be designed to complement each other and provide a sustainable
community focussed development for the long term benefit of local residents.

Only an initial feasibility/capacity study has been conducted which has enabled high
level financial appraisal of a number development options.

The decision was made to work with Phoenix Housing as they are a local housing
provider with a reputation for working with the community on projects such as these
and those identified below.

Response from Phoenix Community Housing:

Phoenix Community Housing provides a range of activities and events for all
residents that live in the neighbourhoods were they have housing. Phoenix
Community Link Events, which are held three times a year and are open to all
residents living in Downham Whitefoot and Belllingham, allowing residents to come
together, to identify what the key issues are in the neighbourhoods and establish
Community Action Plans. Through Phoenix £100,000 Community Chest funding,
organisations and individuals are encouraged to bid to deliver projects that will
improve residents lives or the neighbourhoods. Through the Phoenix Job Club and
Roots into Work programme over 70 residents were supported. Some of the key
residents projects that have been delivered by Phoenix:

Space Invaders — reduced flytipping on vacant site by working with residents to
develop these sites into colourful flowerbeds and seating area’s.

Summer Fun - These events are held annually in Downham and across the Phoenix
area 3 days per week in the School holidays all residents living in the neighbourhoods
are invited to attend these.

Phoenix Festival - Over 6,000 residents per year attend this free fun and informative
event.

Job Club — held weekly in the Green Man to enable them to gain employment and
300 were provided with training

Page 127



Woodpecker Community Centre

Milton Court TRA
Submission on Woodpecker Community Centre Issue.

Milton Court TRA (MCTRA) on behalf of the Community of Milton Court Estate, wish to make a
very strong submission regarding London Borough of Lewisham's proposal to close Woodpecker
Community Centre, at 101 Woodpecker Road, London SE14.

Firstly, the community at large are dismayed about the news of the demolition of the Centre an
icon of the Estate more than 30 years now. Madam, you're tearing out the heart of the Estate
from itself. This is a very deprived community. It beggars' believe that you're demolishing the only
Centre for social events/activities - How cruel it would be to the residents in the estate.

4 -

\;Voodpecker Commun.ity Disused Pub (abandoned for 5 Desmond Street, SE14
Centre 20yrs) (Unused for 15yrs)
SITE-ONE SITE-TWO SITE-THREE

There are three sites in Milton Court Estate, depicted above as (Sitel), (Site2) and (Site3).
Originally, Lewisham Council was not aware of the abandoned sites(2&3) until MCTRA told them.

Since Lewisham Council wanted to demolished site(1) for housing; it could be reprieved/spared
from closure while sites(2&3) are developed for housing. This is fair and it makes a lot of sense.

Following from 7 September, 2015 consultation meeting between Lewisham Council Officers, and
MCTRA and the Community, we say the criteria(s) employed by the Council were very vague,
irrational and subjective without a proper yardstick (threshold) set to prove beyond all reasonable

doubt that Woodpecker Community Centre should be closed.

1. Lewisham Council Set of Criteria

The Head of Culture and Community Development, Liz Dart of Lewisham Council set out her

criteria for closing the Centre as below:
(a). Reduction of funding from the Central Government, UK.

(b). Lewisham Council want spaces to provide affordable homes for the inhabitants in
Lewisham. (There are three sites(1,2&3) pictures shown above; leave site(1) and build on
sites(2&3))

(c). Under usage of the Community Centre (no figures of expected usage threshold was
ever given to qualify the word "under usage" by Lewisham Council).

(d). Realized Revenue was very low (again no budgeted amount was mentioned to qualify
the "low revenue in take").

(e). Other amenities within the Estate (in Milton Court Estate, Woodpecker Community
Centre is the only accessible Council's or public provided centre and affordable to all
deprived people living in this ward).

Page 1 of 5

Page 128



2. MCTRA Cross Examining Lewisham Council Official

In his inquisition of Liz Dart's consultation and explanations given earlier, the MCTRA Chair
politely demanded answers to many questions and follow up questions regarding the
Woodpecker Community Centre and the Community wellbeing taken into consideration thus:
A. When did London Borough of Lewisham decided to closed the Woodpecker Community
Centre? (Liz answer - "in May 2015").

B. If LBL is short of funds hence, closing Woodpecker Community Centre, Can the MCTRA and
Other users takeover the Centre and run it to the benefit of the Milton Court Estate and
sundries? (Liz answer - "No!"). Why? (Liz answer - "No! No by shaking off her head with light
laughter!").

C. Can LBL build on both 5 Desmond Street SE14 (abandoned for over 15years) and the Pub
opposite the Woodpecker Community Centre (abandoned for 20years) instead of closing the
Centre? (Liz answer - "No! However, LBL Development Manager is aware of the two sites and
they are going to take the 'Pub' back from the owner for non-usage as contracted for a long
time for re-development").

D. When did LBL gave occupancy to 5 Desmond Street, SE14 this year (2015)? (Liz answer - "It
was on and about July 2015 it become occupied").

E. If you know about the closure of Woodpecker Community Centre in May 2015, why did
Lewisham Council rented/leased 5 Desmond Street, SE14 in the months of July, after your
decision on the Centre's faith? (Liz answer - "5 Desmond Street, SE14 refurbishment cost a lot
of money!").

F. What are you going to do to the School situated in Woodpecker Community Centre as they
have nowhere to go to - Do you think about the disadvantage children wellbeing in the first
instant? (Liz answer - "As a private school or organization, they have to find somewhere else").

G. Do you know that 5 Desmond Street, SE14 is a storey building which could have housed the
said 'School at Woodpecker Community Centre' upstairs while the Community used the
Ground floor for their events/activities before you lent it? (Liz answer - "The Development
Manager is looking into the possibility of 5 Desmond Street and the Pub being developed into
affordable housing and the Centre too").

H. Why do Lewisham Council want to leave the Milton Court Estate over 1000 homes without
a public space or a facility to all residents in this troubled Estate? (Liz answer - "We need more
affordable houses in the Borough of Lewisham").

I. Can the Council build houses without proper public amenities for the residents? There a lot
of empty spaces to build on in the park (Fordham)? (Liz answer - "Not the parks! The day |

embark on such exercise my job will be on a chop")

J. MCTRA can get funding from Europe and other Agencies to upgrade and convert the Centre
into a storey building allowing the School to move upstairs while the Ground floor is used by

Page 129



the community activities with full marketing strategy for surplus revenue. Do you agree to this
offer to keep the Centre opened? (Liz answer -"Sorry, No! It has low usage").

K. What is the threshold figure used by LBL to determine "low usage" ? (Liz answer - "You said
the school does not make other activities possible when in session"). [With due respect - This
answer does not say what constituted "low usage" of Woodpecker Community Centre. The
Council and (Liz Dart) based their decisions on subjective opinions rather than factual and
objective reasoning.]

3. The Case for Woodpecker Community Centre to be Reprieved from

Demolition

After close review of the Lewisham Council's consultation criteria(s) (see Section 1 (items (a) -
(e); page 1 above)) put to the Milton Court Community on the 7 September, 2015 by Liz Dart
(Head of Culture and Community Development Directorate) was revealing and ambiguous.
MCTRA cross examination (see Section 2 (items (A) - (K); page 2&3 above)) of the Head of
Culture and Community Development Directorate, Liz Dart and the replies given thereafter
confirmed our fears that decisions to close Woodpecker Community Centre was in a bit of a
rush.

The criteria(s) were very simplistic without any historical data or set of thresholds to qualify a
success or failure for the Centre to meet/improve their performances over years. No threshold
figures for so-called "low usage of the Centre (see criteria Section 1 item (c); page 1 above)"
was given. MCTRA tried in their cross-examination (see Section 2 items (K); page 3 above)" to
the Council Officials did not explain or present further evidence to prove that indeed
Woodpecker Community Centre is "under used".

It should also, be noted that the Community is not the people running the Centre but, the
Lewisham Council. They are the body who make the bookings. There are greater demand for the
Woodpecker Community Centre usage, if there is a room during the day time. The Community
sort alternative places like "Deptford Green School" and others as far as Peckham, Old Kent
Road, Camberwell Green and many such halls for hire to hold their burial activities; due to lack
of proper usage/booking planning by the Centre management. Therefore, the fault is the
Lewisham Council not the Community. However, many residents cannot get enough of the
Centre usage in the day hence Council's expressed "under used" terminology is not justified to
close Woodpecker Community Centre.

In the same token "revenue in take from the Centre is low" ((see criteria Section 1 item (d);
page 1 above)" purported by the Council was as a result of lower booking by the Centre
management and lack of appraisal on targeted marketing acumen. From the MCTRA cross-
examination (see Section 2 item (J); page 2 above) was in evident that Lewisham Council major
aim is to demolish the Centre for housing but, no other suggestion will do. An offer to sort
funding from Europe and Grants from other Agencies to keep the Centre viable was rejected.
The fact that the ideas to closed all but, just few Community Centre opened in London Borough

of Lewisham at first glance without consultation and proper risk assessments say it all. As for

Woodpecker Community Centre our position is "Extraordinary" for the fact that this Centre is
unique to the Community wellbeing and cohesion (the only one public free space accessible to
all people both fable and strong and affordable in money wise) proved our case for a reprieve.

Page 130



The Woodpecker Community Centre serves the community well based on the pledges and
covenant made between Lewisham Council and Senior Citizens to keep the property as
Community Centre. This covenant has never been broken for over 30years by successive
Council Officers, Mayors and Cabinets - It should not be the Honourable Liz Dart to force the
hands of Mr. Mayor and Cabinet of 2015 to sweep the covenant aside. What a dangerous
precedent to set for this new generation and your office to the Community at large.

The houses to be built would not be social housing. These will be in excess of £400,000 per
apartment of one bed room or more which are neither built for the homeless nor the deprived
residents in the Estate, Said MCTRA Vice (Stella). However, (site2&3; pagel above) can be
developed into housing while leave (sitel), the Centre open for the Community use.

MCTRA think there is a need (obligatory) for Lewisham Council to provide their residents of over
7,000 to 10,000 people living in an Estate, a public free space to hold their social
events/activities at affordable price. Madam, this will increase safer and stronger community
bounds which the Council and Mr. Mayor advocated for in his term in office. We humbly
requested that Woodpecker community Centre is considered in a different circumstances; being
a more deprived place and problematic compared to all others centre.

An able body person may take less than 10minutes to walk from Moon Shot to Woodpecker
Community Centre, however, Milton Court Estate residents are full of senior citizens who are
over 80years and some with mobility problems. Seniors of upper ages cannot walk from Milton
Court Estate with their disabilities status to the Moon Shot? Some people may never attempt it
atall.

4. Conclusions

Finally, we have made our submission to Lewisham Council to reconsider Woodpecker
Community Centre from closing and demolition. Because, it usage have been hampered by its
unavailability to the public for the day time activities. This supposed to be righted if the Council
had relocated the school to 5 Desmond Street when in May 2015, when they were looking into
Centre closure in Lewisham. Simple intervention like this could tremendously impacted on the
Centre to increase bookings and revenue for the Council. Whose fault is it? Certainly, the
Community has no hands in it. Now the school has nowhere to go. The pupils are left in state of
uncertain future.

As opinions may vary on the reprieve of Woodpecker Community Centre, the reality of the
world always dictate good decisions which seem beneficial to everybody and those people
coming after us. It could be noted that Moon Shot is outside the Milton Court Estate. This poses
danger to those impaired and hard hearing or with sight problems among other disabilities to
cross the very busy road to get to Moon shot in the dark for meetings/activities.

The responses to cross examination questions (see Section 2 (items (A) - (1); page 2 above))
speaks volume. Lewisham Council has tactically blocked all options and remedies to keep
Woodpecker Community Centre closed. Even the obligatory precedence to have assets transfer
of the Centre to the MCTRA (Community and Other Users) was changed by the Lewisham
Council prior to Liz Dart consultation with the MCTRA and Other Users on 7 September 2015.
This changes was communicated to Justus (MCTRA) after he proposed to Lewisham Council to

have the Community run the Centre. Please, think about Senior Citizens covenant and helpless
school pupils using the Centre. Think about Community cohesion and public free space
accessible to all. Think about the 7,000 to 10,000 people in an Estate without public amenity if

Page 131



the Centre is closed. Think about Voters using the Centre to keep Councillors and Mayors
elected.

More importantly the integrity and fairness of the Council Officers, Councillors and Mr. Mayor
and Cabinet deliberating fairly with a plausible verdicts worthy of their good offices and public
acceptance.

The first (primary) and (last) duties of people holding public office is to play fair and do not be
manipulative of the systems and instruments available to them to do their work. They should
not obstruct the progress of the Community, they are put in charge to develop safer and
stronger communities. Such Officials should not seek the interest of individuals or cooperation
against the community which they are members too.

This is a very sad day, if Woodpecker Community Centre is closed due to unfounded criteria
(Section(1)) above. Replies to MCTRA cross examination (Section (2)) above refers have shown
that Lewisham Council has made their mind up before the consultation process.

The Community are ever hopeful that Lewisham Council and Mr. Mayor and Cabinet including
the Safer and Stronger Community Committee with their infinite wisdoms shall review

Woodpecker Community Centre issue carefully with a favourable outcomes. Keep Woodpecker

Community Centre open!
Your Voters are watching and waiting for the outcome before they act because, they do not

want to cause no shame/bother to either the Officers, Councillors and Mr. Mayor and Cabinet in

protest. The Centre is the only [life and Soul] the Council has left in the Estate for the
Community use. Responsibility is yours. | thank God. | have done my duty in calm and civilized
manner. Therefore, | committed this submission unto your hands for your consideration.
Thank you.

Justus Mugbeh

MCTRA Chair, London
30 September, 2015

Page 132



Private Bookings 2014-15

Hirer Name

Booking Date

Purpose of Booking

Comment

Adekemi Awotungase 12 April 2014 Cancelled Booking cancelled by office
Mrs Ufuoma Awarieta 17 May 2014 Memorial Service
email chase for deposit
payment 02/06/14. Booking
Mrs Vivian Esoko 20 September 2014 [Cancelled cancelled (16/06/14) as hirer
Tessa Gooding Q7 July 2014 Residents Meeting
Dolly Coker 13 September 2014 |80th Birthday
Nicole Richards 05 October 2014 |Birthday Party
Sade Dairo 15 November 2014 |Birthday Party
booking cancelled by hirer - no
Candy Brooks 06 December 2014 |Cancelled refund due as nothing paid
AGM Milton Court
Milton Court TRA 27 November 2014 Meeting
Tina Ngozi Enahoro 21 March 2015 Birthday Party
Milton Court TRA 13 December 2014 |[Christmas Party
Andrew Atkinson 28 February 2015 |Birthday Party
Private Bookings 2015-16
Hirer Name Booking Date . |Comment
Purpose of Booking
Tina Enahoro
23 March 2015 |Birithday Party
Justus Mugbeh, Milton
court TRA 18 May 2015 TRA Meeting
Mary Adeagbo 15 August 2015 Christening Party

Cancelled Bookings

Paid Bookings

Page 133



v€l ebed

WOODPECKER REGULAR USERS 2014-16

Name of Contact | Contact Contact
Centre Name Organisation/Group Facility Used Activity Name 1 Name 2 Name 2
Woodpecker Church Group
Community Christ Above All Gospel
Centre Church Main Hall Ms Mary Adeagbo
Woodpecker Christian School
Community Project Rooms 1
Centre Kings Kid Christian School | & 2 & Man Hall Ms Mary Okenwa
Woodpecker Information &
Community Awareness
Centre Unity in Our Community Main Hall session Mr Emmanuel Kormi
Woodpecker Lewisham Vietnamese Supplementary
Community Women & Families school
Centre Association Main Hall Ms Phung Nguyen
WOODPECKER REGULAR USERS ADDITIONAL 2014-16
Centre Name Name of Date of Purpose of Contact | Contact

Organistiaon/Group Booking Booking Name 1 Name 2
Woodpecker 01/08/2014 -
Community 29/08/2015 Summer
Centre Kings Kid Christian School Playscheme Ms Mary Okenwa
Woodpecker Dates to be
Community confirmed Summer
Centre Kings Kid Christian School Playscheme Ms Mary Okenwa




Officer Comments:

The other sites mentioned will be looked at as part of the feasibility study for
new housing on the Milton Court Estate.

The centre is mainly used by a private, fee paying school that caters for twenty
pupils. The centre is also used by Christ Above All Gospel Church. In terms of
casual hires for events and meetings there were 2 meetings of the TRA, 1 other
residents meeting and 6 private hires during the financial year 2014/15 and
there have been 3 bookings to date in 2015/16.

In addition to the community centre the council also owns and manages a
youth centre located opposite the Woodpecker Community Centre. This
building is available for community hire outside of youth club operating hours.
There is also St Michaels Community Centre which is 300ft away from the
Woodpecker Community Centre that is not owned or operated by Lewisham
but which has a wide range of community facilities. In addition the council
owns and operates the Moonshot Centre which is close to the Milton Court
Estate and only 1 mile from the Woodpecker Community Centre.

The council is not aware of any covenants on the title deeds for the
Woodpecker Community Centre.

Consideration is being given to allowing the private school to remain in the
centre until the site is needed for development, subject to suitable terms being
negotiated.

The council adopted an asset transfer framework in 2008 which was updated
in July 2015. It lays out how the council considers proposals for community
asset transfers. One of the key considerations at the beginning of that process
is whether the asset is required for another priority use. In this case the
proposal is that the site is required for housing and the asset would therefore
not be available for a transfer.

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

Safe Stronger Communities Select Committee

Title Indices of Multiple Deprivation - Overview
Contributor | Head of Corporate Policy and Governance Item 4
Class Part 1 (open) 210ctober 2015

Introduction

1. This briefing paper presents headline results from the Indices of Multiple Deprivation,
which was released by the Department for Communities and Local Government on the
30 September 2015.

Recommendation

2. Member are asked to note the contents of this report.

Summary of key points

3. Inrelative terms, Lewisham remains amongst the most deprived local authority areas in
England. In the overall Index of Multiple Deprivation or IMD (the combined score from
all the indices), Lewisham’s average score was 28.59, which puts Lewisham as the 48"
most deprived of all 326 Local Authorities (one being the most deprived), compared to
a ranking of 31% for 2010 and 39" for 2007. This means that Lewisham is within the
20% most deprived Local Authorities in England.

4. Lewisham is ranked tenth of the thirty three London boroughs (including the Corporation
of London), unchanged from the London ranking of tenth in 2010. The IMD ranking of
most London boroughs has improved, though notable ranking increases have occurred
in Barking and Dagenham (up from 22" to 12"), Westminster (up from 87" to 57™), and
Croydon (up from 107" to 96").

Table 2: London Boroughs by National Ranking

2010-2015

2015 National 2010 National Ranking

Rank Rank Change
Tower Hamlets 10 7 -3
Hackney 11 2 -9
Barking & Dagenham 12 22 10
Newham 23 3 -20
Islington 24 14 -10
Haringey 30 13 -17
Waltham Forest 35 15 -20
Southwark 40 41 1
Lambeth 44 29 -15
Lewisham 48 31 -17
Westminster 57 87 30
Enfield 64 64 0

Page 137




Brent 68 35 -33
Greenwich 78 28 -50
Camden 84 74 -10
Hammersmith & Fulham 92 55 -37
Croydon 96 107 11
Ealing 99 80 -19
Kensington & Chelsea 104 103 -1
Hounslow 117 118 1
Redbridge 138 134 -4
Wandsworth 158 121 -37
Hillingdon 162 138 -24
Havering 167 177 10
Barnet 172 176 4
Bexley 191 174 -17
Bromley 208 203 -5
Merton 213 208 -5
Sutton 217 196 -21
Harrow 219 194 -25
City of London 231 262 31
Kingston upon Thames 278 255 -23
Richmond upon Thames 294 285 -9

Ward Level Results

5. Deprivation is concentrated in New Cross and Downham, where in both wards nine out
of the ten Lower Super Output Areas (LSOASs) are in the 20% most deprived in England.
In Bellingham seven out of nine LSOAs are in the 20% most deprived. In Downham the
situation is unchanged from 2010, but in New Cross relative deprivation has increased
significantly as only half of LSOAs were in the 20% most deprived band in 2010.

6. In neighbouring Evelyn the situation has improved significantly as now only a half of
LSOAs are in the 20% most deprived, compare to 90% in 2010, a reversal of the trend
in New Cross. In Whitefoot the situation is unchanged with five out of nine LSOAs in the
20% most deprived as in 2010.

7. Table 3 (below) presents the number and proportion of LSOAs in the 20% most
deprived band by ward. This table shows that the most severe deprivation is
concentrated in the Evelyn ward where three out the ten LSOAs are in the 10% most
deprived decile in England. There are only seven LSOAs in the whole of Lewisham
which are in the 10% most deprived.

Table 3. Number and proportion of LSOAs in bottom 20% nationally for overall IMD
score, 2015

Number of Number of Proportion of
Number of LSOA.S n LSOAs in ward | LSOAs in ward in Proportl_on of .
Ward ward in . LSOAs in ward in
LSOAs in 20% most 10% most .
10% most . . 20% most deprived
. deprived deprived
deprived
Downham 10 0 9 0.0 90.0
New Cross 10 0 9 0.0 90.0
Bellingham 9 1 7 11.1 77.8

2 Page 138



Rushey Green 10 1 6 10.0 60.0
Whitefoot 9 1 5 11.1 55.6
Evelyn 10 3 5 30.0 50.0
Lewisham Central 11 1 5 9.1 45.5
Grove Park 9 0 3 0.0 33.3
Perry Vale 10 0 3 0.0 30.0
Sydenham 10 0 3 0.0 30.0
Telegraph Hill 10 0 3 0.0 30.0
Forest Hill 9 0 2 0.0 22.2
Crofton Park 8 0 1 0.0 12.5
Blackheath 9 0 1 0.0 11.1
Brockley 10 1 1 10.0 10.0
Catford South 9 0 0 0.0 0.0
Ladywell 8 0 0 0.0 0.0
Lee Green 8 0 0 0.0 0.0
Lewisham Borough 169 8 63 4.7 37.3

8. Table 4 (below) further illustrates ward level change between 2010 and 2015 for overall
IMD. The table reveals that, of the five most deprived wards in 2010, New Cross has
seen the greatest change with 90% of its LSOAs falling within the 20% most deprived
areas in 2015 (compared with 50% of LSOAs in 2010). This is the opposite of what has
happened in Evelyn, where 50% of LSOAs fall within the 20% most deprived in 2015
compared to 90% in 2010. By contrast, Bellingham has shown marginal improvement in
2015 compared to 2010, whilst the positions of Whitefoot and Downham are unchanged.

100
90 *New€ross ®Dotwnham
80
#Bellingham
70
60 : Rubhcy GI‘Z‘CH
¢ ‘Whitefoot
g2 50 *—Evelyn
~ Lewisham B
Central
40 Lewisham
verage
30 Sydenﬁam ke o Grove Park
7 Telegraph Hill
. .
20 » Forest Hill
ot Crofton Park 5\ kheath
P Brockley
Capfgigeth
O lee Grnnn F;erry Vale
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
2010

3 Page 139



9. A further geo-spatial illustration of change between 2010 and 2015 is appended to this
report as Map A.

Conclusions

10. Analysis of the IMD data is ongoing. A more complete appraisal of the dataset will be
made available once that work is complete.

Legal implications

11. There are no direct legal implications arising from the implementation of the
recommendation in this report.

Financial implications

12. There are no specific financial implications arising from the implementation of the
recommendation in this report.

Equalities implications

13. The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty (the
equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age,
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

14. In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the
need to:

« eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.

« advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

« foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

15. The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to it is a
matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and proportionality. It is
not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful discrimination, advance equality of
opportunity or foster good relations.

Further implications

16. There are no specific, sustainability or crime and disorder implications arising from the
implementation of the recommendation in this report.

Background documents

Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2015, Department for Communities and Local Government

For further information about this report contact Paul Aladenika, Policy Service Design and
Analysis on 020 8 314 7148

4 Page 140



Map A: Overall Deprivation

2015

&
p—y
el

| ebed

B Most deprived 20% in England

M Least deprived 20% in England

2010




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee

Title

Development of the comprehensive equalities scheme

Contributor | Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration Item 5

Class Part 1 (open) 21 October 2015

1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Purpose

This report provides an update on the development of the comprehensive
equalities scheme (CES), which will cover the period 2016-2020. An overview
of the data sifting exercise carried out in preparation for the development of the
new CES will be presented at the meeting.

Recommendation

The Committee is recommended to note the steps being taken in the
development of the new comprehensive equalities scheme.

Policy context

The Equality Act (2010) placed a statutory duty on public organisations to have
‘due regard’ to the need to:

¢ Eliminate unlawful discrimination, victimisation and harassment.

¢ Foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

e Advance equality of opportunity between those who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

The Act drew together a range of previous equalities legislation and included
the requirement for organisations to foster good relations between a broader
range of groups protected as well as the existing prohibitions against
discrimination.

The contents of this report are in line with all of the aims of the Sustainable
Communities Strategy (2008-2020), which outlines Lewisham’s ambition for its
communities to be:

e Ambitious and achieving — where people are inspired and supported to fulfil
their potential.

o Safer — where people feel safe and live free from crime, antisocial
behaviour and abuse.

e Empowered and responsible — where people are actively involved in their
local area and contribute to supportive communities.

e Clean, green and liveable — where people live in high quality housing and
can care for and enjoy their environment.

Page 143



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

e Healthy, active and enjoyable — where people can actively participate in
maintaining and improving their health and well-being.

¢ Dynamic and prosperous — where people are part of vibrant communities
and town centres, well connected to London and beyond.

The development of the new CES is in line with the Council’s corporate
objectives, including community leadership and empowerment and inspiring
efficiency, effectiveness and equity.

In setting out his ambitions for this administration, the Mayor committed to ‘work
with people of every background — race, gender, age, sexual orientation,
disability or faith to ensure they can meet the challenges of discrimination’.

The Lewisham Future Programme is the Council’s organisational approach to
meeting the financial pressures placed on it by central government. The
Council is now in the sixth year of an expected ten year long period of resource
reduction. In the period 2010 to 2015 the Council made savings of over £120m.
It is anticipated that there will be a requirement to identify £45m of savings over
the next two years to 2017/18.

At the early stages of the savings process, Mayor and Cabinet, in making
decisions about savings proposals, it would:

1. Take account of the impact on service outcomes and social results for
customers and citizens

2. Be prudent and sustainable for the longer term, not just opt for short-term
fixes

3. Reflect a coherent “one organisation” approach that avoids silo-based

solutions

Encourage self-reliance, mutualism and cooperative endeavour

Mitigate potential harm in accordance with an appropriate assessment of

needs

6. Be mindful of the impact on the geography of fairness across Lewisham
(and its boundaries)

7. Involve service users, staff and other stakeholders in the redesign of
services for the future

8. Consider the current or potential actions of other public agencies and the
voluntary sector locally, including sharing and reshaping services (Total
Place)

9. Consider the impact on the Lewisham approach where all voices are
listened to, all views are taken account of and then move forward to
implementation.

o s

Lewisham’s employment profile outlines the characteristics of the Council’s
workforce and demonstrates the impact of changes in policy on different parts
of the organisation. It provides information on key trends within the Council’s
personnel and an updates on activities over the year to ensure that the Council
is a fair employer. The report is presented to the Safer Stronger Communities
Select Committee on an annual basis.

Page 144



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Background

Under previous equalities legislation, the Council drew up separate schemes
for groups protected under the law:

Age Equality Scheme (AES) 2008-11

Disability Equality Scheme (DES) 2008—11

Gender Equality Scheme (GES) 2008-11

Race Equality Scheme (RES) 2008-11
Religion/Belief Equality Scheme (RBES) 2008-11.
Sexual Orientation Equality Scheme (SOES) 2008-11

The Equality Act (2010) consolidated previous protections into a single legal
framework and created a new ‘public sector duty’. Following the passing of the
act, public organisations were legally required to give due regard to the need to:

¢ Eliminate unlawful discrimination, victimisation and harassment.

¢ Foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

¢ Advance equality of opportunity between those who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

Protection under the legislation was extended to incorporate a broader range of
characteristics alongside existing protected groups:

e Age, gender, gender reassignment, disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation, pregnancy or maternity — it also included marriage or civil
partnership, but only in relation to unlawful discrimination.

In response to the implementation of the Equality Act, the Council developed a
new Comprehensive Equalities Scheme, based on data analysis and
consultation and agreed five enduring objectives:

tackle victimisation, discrimination and harassment;

improve access to services;

close the gap in outcomes for citizens;

increase mutual understanding and respect between communities; and
increase participation and engagement.

arwON=

The Committee has received three annual updates on the delivery of the CES
and Members have agreed that the Committee will scrutinise the development
of the new Scheme.

The Equality and Human rights commission has issued guidance on meeting
the aims of the Equality Act. It has also published key lessons learnt from
judicial reviews brought under the act. The Commission states that the Courts
take the equalities duties seriously and highlights:

Page 145



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

e the need to consider equality issues thoroughly in the context of the duties
before any significant individual decisions are made or any policy is
introduced or subject to significant change

e equality impact assessments may provide important evidence as to
whether the public authority has complied with its duties.

e that a public authority should refer to Commission guidance and codes of
practice explicitly and keep records of its decision making. If it departs
from the code or guidance, there must be clear reasons to do so.

e if another organisation or person is carrying out a function under guidance
by the public authority, the responsibility for ensuring that the general
duties are met remains with the public authority

e the duties apply not just to decision-makers but also to those who
implement them

Development of the CES 2016-2020

The Council’s current CES ends in March 2016. The Council’s Corporate
Equalities Board (CEB) is overseeing the development of the new CES. The
CEB has proposed that the new CES will reemphasize two of the formative
principles of its predecessor: firstly, that delivering equality for all should form
the foundation of equalities work through the Council’s delivery of its business
as usual. Secondly, that the attention given to and effort expended on, the CES
should be proportionate to the decisions being taken and the reach of the
services being delivered.

As previously discussed with the Committee, a period of focused research and
analysis has been carried out in preparation for the new CES. This data sift
draws together demographic data with the ambitions set out in the Council’s
strategic plans. Key areas of strategic action are highlighted, including plans to:

e reduce health inequalities through the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

e support vulnerable people though the delivery of the housing strategy

¢ tackle gaps in the achievement and wellbeing of young people though the
Children and Young People’s Plan

e oppose violence against women and girls and end serious youth violence
through the Safer Lewisham Strategy.

e enable vulnerable jobseekers to find employment through the work and
skills strategy.

The results of the data sifting exercise will be presented to the Committee at
the meeting on 21 October.

Legal implications

The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty
(the equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual
orientation.

Page 146



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard
to the need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and those who do not.

The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached to
it is @ matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations.

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has issued Technical Guidance
on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled “Equality Act
2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code of Practice”.
The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it relates to the
duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals particularly with the
equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what public authorities
should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are legally required, as well
as recommended actions. The guidance does not have statutory force but
nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to do so without compelling
reason would be of evidential value. The statutory code and the technical
guidance can be found at http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-
policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/

The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued
five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty:

The essential guide to the public sector equality duty
Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making
Engagement and the equality duty

Equality objectives and the equality duty

Equality information and the equality duty

The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements
including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. It
covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty including steps that
are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good
practice. Further information and resources are available at:
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-
equality-duty/quidance-on-the-equality-duty/

Page 147


http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equality-act/equality-act-codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/

7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

Financial Implications

There are no specific financial implications arising from the implementation of
the recommendation in this report.

Environmental implications

There are no specific environmental implications arising from the
implementation of the recommendation in this report.

Equalities implications

The Annual Review of the CES has high relevance to equality and diversity.
The CES sets out the Council’s five equality objectives and the Annual Review
highlights new initiatives and areas of good practice in support of these
objectives.

The Council’s employment profile is presented to the Safer Stronger
Communities Select Committee annually. It outlines the profile of Council staff
across the 9 protected characteristics.

Crime and disorder implications

There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from the
implementation of the recommendation in this report. However, it is anticipated
that improving service design and delivery to achieve equality of outcomes for
local people, (while promoting good relations between different groups in the
community) will have a positive impact on matters such as community safety,
crime and disorder, and community cohesion.

Background documents

e Comprehensive equalities scheme monitoring and update, Safer Stronger
Communities Select Committee, 10 March 2015: http://tiny.cc/fckc3x

e Comprehensive equalities scheme monitoring and update, Safer Stronger
Communities Select Committee, 25 February 2014: http://tiny.cc/wykc3x

e Comprehensive equalities scheme monitoring and update, Safer Stronger
Communities Select Committee, 26 February 2013: http://tiny.cc/vOkc3x

e Comprehensive Equalities Scheme, Mayor and Cabinet, 7 March 2012:
http://tiny.cc/k5kc3x

e Draft Comprehensive Equalities Scheme 2012-16, Safer Stronger Communities
Select Committee, 28 February 2012: http://tiny.cc/22kc3x

For further information about this report contact Timothy Andrew, Principal Officer,
Policy Service Design and Analysis on 020 8 314 7916

Page 148


http://tiny.cc/fckc3x
http://tiny.cc/wykc3x
http://tiny.cc/v0kc3x
http://tiny.cc/k5kc3x
http://tiny.cc/22kc3x

Agenda Item 6

Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee
Title Select Committee work programme
Contributor | Scrutiny Manager ltem
Class Part 1 (open) 21 October 2015
1. Purpose

To advise Members of the proposed work programme for the municipal year
2015/16, and to decide on the agenda items for the next meeting.

2. Summary

2.1 Atthe beginning of the new administration, each select committee drew up a draft
work programme for submission to the Business Panel for consideration.

2.2  The Business Panel considered the proposed work programmes of each of the
select committees on 28 April 2015 and agreed a co-ordinated overview and
scrutiny work programme. However, the work programme can be reviewed at each
Select Committee meeting so that Members are able to include urgent, high priority
items and remove items that are no longer a priority.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The Committee is asked to:

e note the current work plan attached at Appendix B; and to agree the suggested
changes to the work programme listed in paragraph 4

e specify the information and analysis required in the report for each item on the
agenda for the next meeting, based on desired outcomes, so that officers are
clear about what they need to provide;

e review all forthcoming key decisions, attached at Appendix C, and consider any
items for further scrutiny.

4. The work programme

4.1  The work programme for 2015/16 was agreed at the Committee’s meeting on 20
April 2015.

4.2 The Committee is asked to consider if any urgent issues have arisen that require
scrutiny and if any existing items are no longer a priority and can be removed from
the work programme. Before adding additional items, each item should be
considered against agreed criteria. The flow chart attached at Appendix A may
help Members decide if proposed additional items should be added to the work
programme. The Committee’s work programme needs to be achievable in terms of
the amount of meeting time available. If the Committee agrees to add additional
item(s) because they are urgent and high priority, Members will need to consider

Page 149



which medium/low priority item(s) should be removed in order to create sufficient
capacity for the new item(s).

4.3  Given the large number of items on the work programme for the rest of the year, the
Committee is asked to consider the suggested changes to the work programme
listed below:

Meeting | Current agenda items Suggested Comments
changes
30 Nov | Poverty review evidence session
Local Assemblies
Equalities Grant Aid Funding
Library Consultation 2015 update | Addition Following from savings
proposal L6. Decision at
M&C on 9 Dec
19 Jan | Poverty review evidence session
Local Police and Fire brigade Added at Sept meeting
Lewisham metropolitan police Added at Sept meeting
service
LDC Hate Crime research
Library and information service Information item
Impact of Public Health savings on | Information item
voluntary sector
Supporting the voluntary sector in | Information item
acquiring external funding
9 March | Poverty review - Report and draft
recommendations
Enforcement review
CES draft strategy
Provision for the LGBT community
Safer Lewisham Plan
Leisure Centre Contracts Addition Following from savings
proposal L7. Decision
expected at M&C in April
VAWG service update Move to April

5. The next meeting

5.1  The following reports are scheduled for the meeting on 30 November 2015:

Agenda item Review type Link to Corporate Priority | Priority

Equalities Grant Aid Performance Inspiring efficiency, High

Funding monitoring effectiveness and equity

Results of library Policy Community leadership Medium

consultation 2015 development

Page 150



Poverty review evidence In-depth review | Community leadership; High

session inspiring efficiency,
effectiveness and equity
Local Assemblies Performance Community leadership Medium
monitoring
5.2 The Committee is asked to specify the information and analysis it would like to see

8.1

8.2

8.3

in the reports for these items, based on the outcomes the Committee would like to
achieve, so that officers are clear about what they need to provide for the next
meeting.

Financial Implications
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
Legal Implications

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, all scrutiny select committees must
devise and submit a work programme to the Business Panel at the start of each
municipal year.

Equalities Implications

The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England,
Scotland and Wales. The Act included a new public sector equality duty, replacing
the separate duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The duty came
into force on 6 April 2011. It covers the following nine protected characteristics: age,
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to:

e eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act

e advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

o foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

There may be equalities implications arising from items on the work programme and

all activities undertaken by the Select Committee will need to give due consideration

to this.

Date of next meeting

The date of the next meeting is Wednesday 21 October.

Background Documents

Lewisham Council’'s Constitution

Page 151



Centre for Public Scrutiny: the Good Scrutiny Guide

Page 152



Appendix A
Scrutiny work programme - prioritisation process

Does this issue affect a number of people
living, working and studying in Lewisham?

Is the issue strategic and significant?

Can scrutiny add value? Is performance likely
to improve as a result of scrutiny activity?

Will scrutiny work be duplicating other work?

Is the Council due to review the
relevant policy area (allowing scrutiny
recommendations to influence the new
direction to be taken)?

Is it an issue of concern to partners,

stakeholders and/or the community?

Are there adequate resources available
to do the scrutiny well?

Is the scrutiny activity timely?

CONSIDER
Medium,/Low
Priorit

ACCEPT
High Priority

Lewisham

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



Safer Stronger Communities Select Committee work programme 2015/16

Programme of work

. . o Strategic |Delivery
Work item Type of item Priority priority deadline 20-Apr 14-May 16-Sep 21-Oct 09-Mar
Lewisham Future Programme Standard item High CP10 .
Ongoing %
Election of the Chair and Vice-Chair Constitutional requirement [N/A - Apr
Select Committee work programme Standard item High CP1 Apr
Main grant programme funding Standard item High CP10 Apr
=
VAWG review report In-depth review High CP4 Apr
Voluntary sector accommodation Policy development High CP1 Apr
Probation service update Standard item Medium CP4 May
Poverty review In-depth review High CP10 May
Provision for the LGBT community Standard review Low CP1 Jul
Implementation of the volunteering strategy Standard review Medium CP1 Jul
Council employment profile Standard item Medium CP10 Jul
Main grants equalities approach Performance monitoring Medium CP10 Sep
Development of the CES Policy Development Medium CP1 Oct
Impact of the.Publlc Health savings proposals on Standard item Medium CP10 Jan
the Community and Voluntary Sector
Local Assemblies Performance monitoring Medium CP1 Jan
Library and information service Performance monitoring Medium CP1 Jan
LDC Hate crime research Standard item Medim CP1 Jan
VAWG service update Performance monitoring Medium CP4 Mar
Safer Lewisham Plan - monitoring and update Performance monitoring High CP4 Mar
Enforcement review Joint scrutiny High CP4 Mar
Comprehensive Equalities Scheme - monitoring Performance monitoring Medium CP1 Mar
and update
Equalities Grant Aid Funding Performance monitoring High CP10 Nov
Supporting VCS in seeking external funding Performance monitoring Medium CP10 Jan
Library consultation 2015 update Policy development High CP 10 Nov
Leisure Centre contracts update Policy development High CP9 Mar
Lewisham police update Performance monitoring Medium CP 4 Jan
Local fire brigade update Performance monitoring Medium CP4 Jan
Item completed Meetings
Item ongoing Wed 20 Apr Wed 21 October
Item outstanding Thu 14 May Mon 30 November
1 Proposed timeframe Wed 1 July Tue 19 January
Item added Wed 16 September Wed 9 March

GGl ebed




This page is intentionally left blank



LS| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

Forward Plan November 2015 - February 2016

This Forward Plan sets out the key decisions the Council expects to take during the next four months.

Anyone wishing to make representations on a decision should submit them in writing as soon as possible to the relevant contact officer (shown as number (7) in
the key overleaf). Any representations made less than 3 days before the meeting should be sent to Kevin Flaherty, the Local Democracy Officer, at the Council
Offices or kevin.flaherty@lewisham.gov.uk. However the deadline will be 4pm on the working day prior to the meeting.

A “key decision”™ means an executive decision which is likely to:

(a) result in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the
decision relates;

(b) be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards.




85| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

August 2015 Community Budget: 21/10/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Establishment of a joint Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
committee between Lambeth, Regeneration and
Lewisham and Southwark Councillor Alan Smith,

Deputy Mayor

September 2015 Making of instrument of 21/10/15 Sara Williams, Executive
Government The Governing Mayor and Cabinet |Director, Children and
Body of te Leathersellers Young People and
Federation of Schools Councillor Paul Maslin,

Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

August 2015 New Homes Better Places 21/10/15 Kevin Sheehan,

Programme Update Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing

February 2015 Review of Licensing Policy 21/10/15 Aileen Buckton,

Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
Community Services and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm

August 2015 Lewisham River Corridor 21/10/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Improvement Plan Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
Supplementary Planning Regeneration and
Document Councillor Alan Smith,

Deputy Mayor

June 2015 Homecare Contracts Extension |21/10/15 Aileen Buckton,

Mayor and Cabinet

Executive Director for




651 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

(Contracts) Community Services and
Councillor Chris Best,
Cabinet Member for
Health, Wellbeing and
Older People
September 2015 Beckenham Place Park Golf 21/10/15 Kevin Sheehan,
Course Contract Extension Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
(Contracts) Customer Services and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm
August 2015 Re-procurement of Sexual 21/10/15 Aileen Buckton,
Health Services (GUM) Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
(Contracts) Community Services and
Councillor Chris Best,
Cabinet Member for
Health, Wellbeing and
Older People
November 2014 Award of Highways Public 21/10/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Realm Contract Coulgate Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
Street (Contracts) Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor
September 2015 Interim arrangements for 21/10/15 Sara Williams, Executive
Project Management Support |Mayor and Cabinet |Director, Children and
to the School Places (Contracts) Young People and
programme Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People
June 2015 Woodvale Contract award 21/10/15 Kevin Sheehan,




09| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Mayor and Cabinet
(Contracts)

Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing

August 2015

Annual Complaints Report
2014/15

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Joe Dromey,
Cabinet Member Policy &
Performance

August 2015

Annual Parking Report

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm

Beckenham Place Park
Consultation

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm

June 2015

Capital and Revenue Budget
Monitorig

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

August 2015

Children and Young People
Plan

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Sara Williams, Executive
Director, Children and
Young People and




191 ebed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

August 2015 Discharge into the Private 11/11/15 Kevin Sheehan,
Rented Sector Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing
September 2015 Disposal of Land at corner of |[11/11/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Deptford Church Street and Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
Creekside Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor
August 2015 Heathside & Lethbridge 11/11/15 Kevin Sheehan,
Housing Regeneration Scheme |Mayor and Cabinet | Executive Director for
update Parts 1 & 2 Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing
August 2015 Homelessness out of Borough |11/11/15 Kevin Sheehan,

Locational Priority Policy

Mayor and Cabinet

Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing

Horniman Museum Heritage
Lottery Fund Proposal

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources




¢9l abed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

August 2015

Housing-Led Regeneration
Opportunities Parts 1 and 2

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing

September 2015

National Non Domestic Rates -
Discretionary Discount
Scheme for Businesses
Accredited to Living Wage

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

The 2020 Programme

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

School Minor Capital Works
Programme 2016

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Sara Williams, Executive
Director, Children and
Young People and
Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

September 2015

Sheltered Housing Investment
and Improvement Update

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing

September 2015

Voluntary Sector
Accomodation Implementation

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Aileen Buckton,
Executive Director for




€91 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Plan Consultation Parts 1 and 2

Community Services and
Councillor Joan Millbank,
Cabinet Member Third
Sector & Community

Working Skills strategy

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor

Annual Report on Energy
Prices

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet
(Contracts)

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

August 2015

ICT Shared Service Update

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet
(Contracts)

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

Award of Homecare Contracts

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet
(Contracts)

Aileen Buckton,
Executive Director for
Community Services and
Councillor Chris Best,
Cabinet Member for
Health, Wellbeing and
Older People

Public Health Contracts for
Health Checks and Sexual
Health Promotion

11/11/15
Mayor and Cabinet
(Contracts)

Aileen Buckton,
Executive Director for
Community Services and




91 abed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Councillor Chris Best,
Cabinet Member for
Health, Wellbeing and
Older People

August 2015

Children and Young People
Plan

25/11/15
Council

Sara Williams, Executive
Director, Children and
Young People and
Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

August 2015

Lewisham River Corridor
Improvement Plan
Supplementary Planning
Document

25/11/15
Council

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor

February 2015

Review of Licensing Policy

25/11/15
Council

Aileen Buckton,
Executive Director for
Community Services and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm

August 2015

Copperas Street Depot -
Disposal

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor

June 2015

Council Tax Reduction Scheme
2016-17

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,




G9| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Cabinet Member
Resources

August 2015

Parks Events Policy 2016- 2020

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor and
Councillor Rachel
Onikosi, Cabinet Member
Public Realm

Planning Service Annual
Monitoring Report 2014-15

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor

June 2015

Revenue Budget Savings

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

August 2015

Section 75 arrangements for
Children and Young People

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Kath Nicholson, Head of
Law and Councillor Paul
Maslin, Cabinet Member
for Children and Young
People

June 2014

Surrey Canal Triangle (New
Bermondsey) - Compulsory
Purchase Order Resolution

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor

Youth Service Mutual

09/12/15
Mayor and Cabinet

Sara Williams, Executive
Director, Children and




FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Young People and
Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young
People

Extension

Overview and

September 2015 FM Contract Structure and 09/12/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Procurement approach Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
(Contracts) Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources
September 2015 FM Compliance Contracts 09/12/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Structure and Procurement Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
approach (Contracts) Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources
September 2015 Extension of Security (CIS 09/12/15 Janet Senior, Executive
Security Limited) & PPM Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
(Interserve Facilities (Contracts) Regeneration and
Management) Contracts Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources
Prevention and Inclusion 09/12/15 Aileen Buckton,
Contract Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
(Contracts) Community Services and
Councillor Janet Daby,
Cabinet Member
Community Safety
Resouce Link Contract 15/12/15 Janet Senior, Executive

Director for Resources &

99| 8bed




L9| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

Scrutiny Business
Panel

Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

Setting the Council Tax Base,

the NNDR Base and Discounts
for Second Homes and Empty
Homes

13/01/16
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member

Resources
August 2015 Determination of the 13/01/16 Janet Senior, Executive
applications to establish a Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
neighbourhood forum and to Regeneration and
designate a neighbourhood Councillor Alan Smith,
area for Lee Green Deputy Mayor
August 2015 Determination of the 13/01/16 Janet Senior, Executive
applications to establish a Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
neighbourhood forum and to Regeneration and
designate a neighbourhood Councillor Alan Smith,
area for Deptford Deputy Mayor
May 2015 Formal Designation of Crystal |13/01/16 Janet Senior, Executive
Palace & Upper Norwood Mayor and Cabinet |Director for Resources &
Neighbourhood Forum and Regeneration and
Area Councillor Alan Smith,
Deputy Mayor
September 2015 Determined School 13/01/16 Sara Williams, Executive

Admissions Arrangements for
2017/18

Mayor and Cabinet

Director, Children and
Young People and
Councillor Paul Maslin,
Cabinet Member for
Children and Young




89| 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials

People
Award of Contracts Tier 4 13/01/16 Aileen Buckton,
Services and Day Programmes |Mayor and Cabinet |Executive Director for
People with Substance Misuse |(Contracts) Community Services and
Services Councillor Janet Daby,

Cabinet Member

Community Safety
Setting the Council Tax Base, [20/01/16 Janet Senior, Executive
the NNDR Base and Discounts |Council Director for Resources &

for Second Homes and Empty
Homes

Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

June 2015

Council Tax Reduction Scheme
2016-17

20/01/16
Council

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

June 2015

Capital and Revenue Budget
Monitoring

10/02/16
Mayor and Cabinet

Janet Senior, Executive
Director for Resources &
Regeneration and
Councillor Kevin Bonavia,
Cabinet Member
Resources

August 2015

Housing Allocations Policy

02/03/16
Mayor and Cabinet

Kevin Sheehan,
Executive Director for
Customer Services and
Councillor Damien Egan,
Cabinet Member Housing




691 8bed

FORWARD PLAN - KEY DECISIONS

Date included in
forward plan

Description of matter under
consideration

Date of Decision
Decision maker

Responsible Officers /
Portfolios

Consultation Details

Background papers /
materials




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2015
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Voluntary Sector Accommodation Consultation Update
	3_VoluntarySectorAccommodation_AppendixAConsultationMeetings_21102015
	3_VoluntarySectorAccommodation_AppendixBConsultationResponses_21102015

	4 Poverty review - evidence session
	5 Development of the comprehensive equalities scheme
	6 Select Committee work programme
	6_WorkProgramme_AppendixBWorkPlan_21102015
	6_WorkProgramme_AppendixCKeyDecisionPlan_21102015


